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FeHow Shareholders

During 2012 Staples achieved sales of $24 billion healthy margins

and solid free cash flow We also remained committed to returning

excess cash to our shareholders and returned $743 million through

dividends and share repurchases While our results were stable they

came in short of our expectations Were not satisfied and we have to

do better

Today businesses of all sizes continue to rely on Staples just as

they have for decades However what businesses need from us and how they buy from us have

changed Customers that once only needed paper ink and toner now need tablets smartphones

services and expertise to help them succeed Customers that once only shopped in our stores now

want the convenience of mobile shopping and fast delivery

At Staples we see enormous opportunities in these changing customer needs Over the past year weve

been working hard to identify our best growth opportunities and build strategic plan to aggressively

pursue them The result is simple vision Every product your business needs to succeed

During 2012 we announced several significant changes to accelerate growth reshape our business

and better meet the needs of our customers Our growth plans include four key priorities First were

expanding our assortment with new categories and building marketplace to establish Staples as the

single-source product authority for businesses This growth priority is in response to feedback from our

customers who tell us they wish Staples offered more products Facilities and Breakroom is great

example of our ability to drive rapid growth in category beyond office supplies few years ago we

expanded our offering lowered our prices and invested in training As result we drove double-digit

growth and generated $1.8 billion of global sales in this category during 2012

Our second priority is to accelerate growth in our online business Staples is already one of the worlds

largest Internet retailers with over $10 billion of annual online sales giving us strong foundation to build

on Weve significantly increased investment in this area over the past few years Weve improved the

functionality and user experience of our website evolved our digital marketing strategies and lowered

prices in key categories to drive demand In 2012 we also launched an eCommerce innovation center

in Cambridge Massachusetts with team focused on developing and enhancing our eCommerce and

mobile commerce capabilities

Third customers have told us they want increased flexibility and consistency We have already launched

many omni-channel capabilities including in-store kiosks an award-winning mobile website website

customized for tablets and the ability to pick up online orders in our stores But were going much further

and much faster few months ago we combined our North American Retail segment and Staples.com

to reorganize around our customers and create seamless experience that will allow them to shop how

and when they want

Fourth were accelerating the growth of product-related services Copy Print and Technology Services

are great examples where were building critical mass Over the past few years weve taken action to

differentiate our service offering Weve remodeled stores invested in training and quality added Copy

imn



the .ime were funding our growth by reshaping our business and reducing costs During

12 we wont tOror gh rigorous cost reduction analysis and built plan to achieve $250 million

onnuel ía tax savings by 2015 Our biggest opportunities to drive savings are in areas like product

osts nc art orocurement store operations and supply chain and weve already started to

ggress after these opportunities We made progress on our plan to reduce retail square

footage North America by 15 percent We restructured our European operations in 2012 by

cosino Pr rcent of our stores significantly reducing headcount and announcing olans to sell

Er uan Printings Systems business We also successfully raised $1 billion of debt at very

avora ii terest rates and used the proceeds to pay off over $600 million of highanterest debt

Our vis owerful because it based on things that Staples is already doing well We have

Jeep rln nships vvith more than 10 million business customers who trust the Staples brand

Pie ne ficant buying power and decades of product expertise including our Staples brand

of erino nave world-class delivery capabilities thai provide next-day delivery to 98 percent of

North nec an expansive retail network and strong online presence We have healthy cash

zlows in grovvth And most importantly we have world-class team of talented associates

dedicrAc to serving our customers Im looking forward to 2013 and Im energized by the

per un as aeao of us

cloc would like to thank our customers suppliers and other stakeholders for their continued

rm St es also like to thank our Board of Directors for its strong leadership and support

ar to criize Mike Miles who recently left our company after 10 years of outstanding service

also ased Act we are nominating Paul Vazquez to join our Board of Directors Paul Chief

Fxecui ye Aficer Drogreso Financiero previously served as the head of global eCommerce at

Valm art id brings wealth of online and retail industry knowledge Finally Id like to thank our

ssoe at their nard work and commitment during 2012 and for going above and beyond to

meet CE ds of our customers every day

IonS rg lt

Thairma Ne Board and Chief Executive Officer

Aoril
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Staples Soul recognizes the close connection between our success and our ability to make

positive impact on our customers our associates and the planet We believe Staples Soul helps to

make us an employer and neighbor of choice differentiates our brand and allows us to grow

profitably and responsibly

In this summary weve provided snapshot of the progress weve made in all four of the Staples

Soul pillars in 2012 community ethics diversity and environment To learn more about

Staples Soul please visit www.staples.com/soul

COMMUNITY

Staples is dedicated to providing education and job skills opportunities to communities where our

customers and associates live and work We contribute through large-scale initiatives as well as local

grassroots programs that promote goodwill and build strong community ties globally

Progress update

Donated more than $14.6 million to non-profit organizations around the world through

Staples Foundation corporate charitable giving programs in-kind donations and cause

marketing efforts

Launched the Million Change program which enabled associates globally to direct more
than $2 million to 470 organizations they personally care about and support

Led three successful school supply drives in U.S Canadian and Portuguese stores

generating more than $2 million in school supplies for local youth in-need

Enabled Boys Girls Clubs of America to increase their number of Torch Club programs to

1892 serving 22627 youth

Piloted an associate Recognition and Rewards program in five countries to allow associates

to recognize each others performance and give selected associates the opportunity to

donate to charity of their choice through Staples Foundation

Associates participated in community volunteering events in 16 countries and raised money
for local organizations through fitness fundraisers in 12 countries

ETHICS

At Staples doing right is just as important as doing well We know that strong foundation of ethics

and governance is comprised of both clear and comprehensive Code of Ethics the Code and

conduct which demonstrates an uncompromising commitment to that Code Both are essential to

build the trust of our customers investors and other stakeholders Thats why we hold all Staples

associates from the boardroom to the store floor to the supply chain to the highest standards of

honesty fairness and integrity

Progress update

Created and launched online Ethics and Compliance Community internal online site

providing associates with single destination to access policies training and resources

Revised and streamlined ethics and compliance training to ensure that associates have easy
access to all of their required training



Provided live training to business units both within and outside the United States to help

ensure that associates are familiar with relevant laws and company policies

Continued to implement the Staples Supplier Code of Conduct which is designed to ensure

that workers making Staples brand products are treated fairly with dignity and respect and

that our suppliers operate in an ethical and environmentally sustainable manner We audit

every factory that supplies Staples brand products if they are located in designated at risk

country for compliance to our Code In 2012 we completed 291 Social Accountability factory

audits at 230 factories

DIVERSITY

Staples commitment to diversity and inclusion stems from our recognition that being successful

company requires people with rich backgrounds and diverse perspectives We know that

differences in age race gender nationality sexual orientation physical ability background and

thinking style allow us to be more innovative as company We believe that attracting developing

and retaining an associate base that reflects the diversity of our customers is essential to our

success Our diverse workforce and network of suppliers strengthens relationships with our

customers and gives us the flexibility to adapt to the ever-changing global marketplace At Staples

we recognize that at every level the best performance will come from people who understand and

appreciate this commitment

Progress Update

Proudly grew our Associate Resource Group ARG network from eight chapters to twelve

Added two Women Who Lead ARG5 one in Ontario Canada and the other in Orlando

Florida Also added Young Professionals ARG in Lincolnshire Illinois and an HOLA

chapter in Southern California In addition associates across our diverse organization are

now able to connect into the ARG chapters through our intranets community pages Our

groups continue to provide members with collective voice formal community sense of

empowerment and decision-making deeper engagement in the company focus on

commonalities and forum to celebrate differences Staples ARGs are key business

partners that support our commitment to global inclusion and diversity

Created an online Inclusion Diversity awareness workshop that will be used in new hire on-

boarding and as resource for Human Resources professionals throughout the organization

Ran successful Mentoring Campaign to gather support and participants for Global

Mentoring Program that will have strong emphasis on ensuring racial/ethnic

underrepresented minorities are partnered with associates that can support and assist in

their development and career progression

Held Annual Business Woman of the Year contest in Australia and New Zealand This

competition is intended to recognize and appreciate the talented women at Staples who

positively impact our company our customers and our communities

In 2012 Staples spent over $303 million with small and diverse vendors and the Staples

Supplier Diversity program continued to engage with diverse suppliers organizations and

the larger community in several ways In Australia Staples partnered with Indigenous

owned businesses and offered diversity products to corporate and government customers

Our Diverse Mentorship Program now in its third year of existence promotes professional

and business development among diverse business enterprises Currently the Staples

Legal Department is partnered with minority-owned law firm in mentoring relationship



while Contract Marketing organization is helping local woman owned marketing

consulting firm get to the next level of growth

Staples Treasury continued to utilize minority-owned securities firm for the

implementation of our share repurchasing program

In 2012 Staples Australia launched our second Reconciliation Action Plan and our

Indigenous Employment Strategy The strategy is about finding and creating opportunities

to introduce Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people into real vacancies and

encourages applications for genuine permanent positions

ENVIRONMENT

At Staples our vision is to generate business and environmental benefits for ourselves our

customers and our communities by leading the way in sustainable business practices

Were working to achieve this vision through continued focus on sourcing more sustainable

products improving our offering of recycling and other green services maximizing our energy

efficiency and renewable energy use to reduce our climate impacts and eliminating waste

In 2012 we continued to make progress towards our global sustainability goals Highlights of

contributing accomplishments include

Globally we offer more than 10000 products and counting with environmental attributes in

our stores and online Staples own eco-conscious product lineSustainable Earth

Brandwas launched across Europe and in Australia in 2012

In North America we recycled nearly 75 million ink and toner cartridges and more than 19

million pounds of technology waste for our customers In 2012 Staples Advantage and

Staples Business Delivery in Canada expanded its customer recycling program in select

provinces to include technology recycling

We are actively rolling out right-size packaging technology in the US and Europe In the

US the Smart-size technology has been launched at 50% of our distribution centers and

reduces average cardboard use by more than 15% and air pillow use by 60% In Europe

we have 12 active Jivaro machines across France Germany Italy the Netherlands Spain

Sweden and the UK

In the US we sourced more than 75% of our electricity from renewable sources last year

and increased our renewable electricity credit and direct renewable power purchases to

100% for 2013 636000000 kWh To date 34 of our US locations host solar power

arrays which produced nearly 15 million of kWh of renewable power in 2012 In 2012

Staples UK completed brand new solar panel installation at its Corby Distribution Centre

At the end of 2012 we had 513 Energy Star qualified facilities in the US easily surpassing

our goal to attain 500 by the end of the year These facilities use 35% less energy than

non-qualified facilities

Staples has obtained 1S014001 certification in China adding to existing certifications across

Australia and New Zealand Canada Denmark Finland France Germany the Netherlands

Norway Portugal Sweden and the UK We now have 107 facilities with certified

environmental management systems

In the US we had 53 all-electric trucks making deliveries to our customers The use of

these trucks eliminated the use of more than 37000 gallons of diesel fuel and more than

400 tons of on-road carbon emissions Additionally Staples UK has formed partnership



with TNT in the UK providing access to 50 of their electric delivery trucks with one vehicle

entirely dedicated to Staples operations

In the UK Staples was awarded the Carbon Trust Standard mark of excellence publicly

recognizing carbon emission reduction efforts These efforts resulted in an 11.1% reduction

in carbon emissions from the previous year

In 2012 Staples Canada donated 20 computer labs valued at $25000 each to

environmentally responsible schools across Canada through its Recycle for Education

Computer Lab Contest Staples Advantage Canada also contributed $25000 to non-profit

Evergreens school ground greening program in 2012 $1 for every Staples Sustainable

Earth Brand remanufactured toner cartridge purchased by our customers And in Australia

Staples awarded $75000 to 17 schools and community groups across the country to

undertake educational environment projects

SOUL RECOGNITION

Thanks to the collaborative effort of our leadership team and our associates globally to drive

progress across all of our Soul pillars several organizations recognized Staples in 2012 for

excellence in corporate responsibility

For the ninth consecutive year selected as component of the Dow Jones Sustainability

Indexes DJSI for 2012/2013

Ranked among retailers and 10 overall in the Newsweek Green Rankings for 2012
which ranks the environmental efforts of the largest 500 companies in the U.S

Named one of the 2012 Top 50 Companies for Diverse Managers to Work by Diversity MBA

Included on CR Magazines 100 Best Corporate Citizens 2012 list

For the third straight year earned 100% score on the Human Rights Campaigns Corporate

Equality Index

EPA Green Power Partner recognition ranked among all retailers among Fortune 500

companies and in the U.S as of January 2013

In 2012 Selected as EPA ENERGY STAR Partner of the Year for Energy Management for

second year in row

Selected as finalist for the 2012 Platts Global Energy Awards in the Corporate Social

Responsibility category

Staples Australia received 2012 Australian Business Award for Environmental

Sustainability This award recognizes organizations that implement policies and/or execute

initiatives that demonstrate leadership and commitment to the enhancement preservation

and protection of the environment

Shortlisted for the European Office Products Industry CSR Award for the third consecutive

year in recognition of our comprehensive CSR offering

For the third year in row Staples Advantage in Canada was awarded the prestigious

Community Leadership Award of Excellence from the Canadian Office Products Association

COPA Staples was recognized for exhibiting leadership initiative creativity dedication and

commitment to making difference in the community



STAPLES INC
500 Staples Drive

Framingham Massachusetts 01702

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held

on June 2013

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Staples Inc will be held at Marlowe Hotel 25 Edwin Land Blvd Cambridge

Massachusetts on June 2013 at 400 p.m local time to consider and act upon the following matters

To elect thirteen members of the Board of Directors to hold office until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or

until their respective successors have been elected or appointed

To approve on an advisory basis named executive officer compensation

To ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of Ernst Young LLP as Staples independent registered public

accounting firm for the current fiscal year

To act on two stockholder proposals if properly presented

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement

thereof

Stockholders of record at the close of business on April 2013 will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting or

any adjournment or postponement thereof

By Order of the Board of Directors

Michael Williams

Framingham Massachusetts

April 12 2013

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOUR SHARES BE REPRESENTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING THEREFORE
WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR PROXY

OVER THE INTERNET BY TELEPHONE OR BY MAIL FOR SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS PLEASE
REFER TO THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS BEGINNING ON THE FIRST PAGE OF THE PROXY STATEMENT
AND THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE PROXY CARD RELATING TO THE ANNUAL MEETING

STREET NAME HOLDERS WHO PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING WILL NEED TO BRING COPY OF
BROKERAGE STATEMENT REFLECTING THEIR STOCK OWNERSHIP IN STAPLES INC AS OF THE
RECORD DATE
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STAPLES INC
500 Staples Drive

Framingham Massachusetts 01702

PROXY STATEMENT

For the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on June 2013

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of.Directors Board of

Staples Inc we Staples or the Company for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders 2013 Annual Meeting or the

Annual Meeting to be held on June 2013 beginning at 400 p.m local time at Marlowe Hotel 25 Edwin Land Blvd

Cambridge Massachusetts and at any adjournment or postponement of that meeting On or about April 24 2013 we are either

mailing or providing notice and electronic delivery of these proxy materials together with an annual report consisting of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2013 the 2012 fiscal year and other information required

by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission the 2012 Annual Report

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

For the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on June 2013

This proxy statement and our 2012 Annual Report are available for viewing printing and downloading at

www.proxyvote corn

You may request copy of the materials relating to our annual meeting including the proxy statement form of proxy

for our 2013 Annual Meeting and the 2012 Annual Report at www.proxyvote.com or by sending an email to our Investor

Relations department at investor@staples.com or by calling 800 468-7751

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING VOTING AND OTHER STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting

At our Annual Meeting stockholders will act upon the matters outlined in the accompanying notice of meeting including

to elect thirteen directors

to approve on an advisory basis named executive officer compensation

to ratify our independent registered public accounting firm and

to consider two stockholder proposals if properly presented

Stockholders may also consider such other business as may properly come before the meeting

Who is entitled to vote

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on the record date April 2013 are entitled to receive notice of the

Annual Meeting and to vote their shares of our common stock at the meeting or any postponement or adjournment of the meeting

Holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share and all votes will be confidential

Who can attend the meeting

All stockholders as of the record date or their duly appointed proxies may attend the meeting Please note that if you hold

your shares in street name through bank broker or other nominee you will need to bring copy of brokerage statement

reflecting your stock ownership in Staples as of the record date to be allowed into the meeting You may obtain directions to the



location of our 2013 Annual Meeting by writing emailing or calling our Investor Relations department at 500 Staples Drive

Framingham Massachusetts 01702 email investor@staples.com or telephone 800 468-7751

What constitutes quorum

The presence at the meeting in person or by proxy of majority of the shares of our common stock outstanding on the

record date will constitute quorum permitting business to be conducted at the meeting As of the record date 668499635 shares

of our common stock were outstanding and entitled to vote Proxies that are received and marked as abstentions and broker non-

votes where broker or nominee does not exercise discretionary authority to vote on matter will be included in the calculation

of the number of shares considered to be represented at the meeting

How do vote

If you received
paper copy of these proxy materials included with such copy is proxy card or voting instruction card

from your bank broker or other nominee for the Annual Meeting If you received notice of Internet availability ofproxy materials

the notice will contain instructions on how to access and review the proxy materials online and how to obtain paper or electronic

copy of the materials which will include the proxy statement the 2012 Annual Report and proxy card or voting instruction card

as well as instructions on how to vote either at our Annual Meeting over the Internet by telephone or by mail

If you are stockholder as of the record date and attend the meeting you may personally deliver your completed proxy card

or vote in
person at the meeting If you complete sign and return your proxy card it will be voted as you direct If the shares you

own are held in street name that person as the record holder of your shares is required to vote your shares according to your

instructions Your bank broker or other nominee will send you directions on how to vote those shares

What 4f sign and return my proxy or instruction form but do not provide voting instructions

If no choice is specified on signed proxy card the
persons

named as proxies will vote

FOR the election of all director nominees and any substitute nominees selected by our Board if any present nominees

should withdraw
FOR the approval on an advisory basis of named executive officer compensation

FOR the ratification of Ernst Young as our independent registered public accounting firm

AGAINST the stockholder proposals and

On any other matters properly brought before the Annual Meeting in accordance with the best judgment of the named

proxies

If the shares you own are held in street name as noted above under applicable stock exchange rules if you do not give

instructions to your bank broker or other nominee it will still be able to vote your shares with respect to certain discretionary

itemsbut will not be allowed to vote your shares with respect to certain non-discretionary items In the case ofnon-discretionary

items the shares that do not receive voting instructions will be treated as broker non-votes The only item at the 2013 Annual

Meeting that is discretionary is the ratification of Ernst Young as our independent registered public accounting firm The other

items are non-discretionary

Can submit proxy over the Internet or by telephone

If you are registered stockholder meaning you hold your stock in your own name you may submit proxy over the

Internet by following the instructions at www.proxyvote.com or by telephone by calling 800 690-6903 Proxy submissions over

the Internet or by telephone are valid under Delaware law If your shares are held in street name you will need to contact your

bank broker or other nominee to determine whether you will be able to submit proxy over the Internet or by telephone

Can change my proxy after return myproxy card

Yes Any proxy may be revoked by stockholder at any time before it is exercised at the Annual Meeting by delivering to

our Corporate Secretary written notice of revocation or duly executed proxy bearing later date or by voting in person at

the meeting

What is the vote required to approve each matter

Election ofDirectors nominee will be elected as director at the Annual Meeting if the votes cast for such nominee

exceed the votes cast against such nominee as long as the only director nominees are those individuals set forth in this proxy

statement

Named Executive Officer Compensation The affirmative vote of the holders of shares of our common stock representing

majority of the votes cast on the matter is required to approve the named executive officer compensation This proposal is an



advisory vote and is non-binding Although no action is required to be taken even if approved by majority of votes cast our

Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors considers the results of the voting in making future compensation decisions

for our named executive officers

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm The affirmative vote of the holders of shares of our common stock

representing majority of the votes cast on the matter is required for the ratification of the selection of Ernst Young LLP as our

independent registered public accounting firm for the current fiscal year This proposal is non-binding

Non-Binding Stockholder Proposals The affirmative vote of the holders of shares of our common stock representing

majority of the votes cast on the matter is required to approve each of the non-binding stockholder proposals Because each of

the stockholder proposals are non-binding resolutions we will not be required to take the requested action if proposal is approved

however we will reevaluate our recommendation if such proposal is approved

majority of votes cast means the number of FOR votes exceeds the number of AGAINST votes Therefore

proxy marked Abstain with respect to any proposal will not have any effect on the outcome of the vote on that proposal and

similarly broker non-votes will not be counted as votes cast with respect to such proposal and therefore will have no effect on the

outcome of the vote on that proposal

Are there other matters to be voted on at the meeting

As of the date of this proxy statement ourBoard does not know of any other matters which may come before the meeting

other than the matters described in this proxy statement and the deadline under our bylaws for submission of matters by stockholders

has passed Should any other matter requiring vote of our stockholders arise and be properly presented at the Annual Meeting

the proxy for the Annual Meeting confers upon the persons
named in the proxy and designated to vote the shares discretionary

authority to vote or otherwise act with respect to any such matter in accordance with their best judgment

Our Board encourages stockholders to attend the Annual Meeting Whether or not you plan to attend you are urged

to submit your proxy Prompt response will greatly facilitate arrangements for the meeting and your cooperation is

appreciated Stockholders who attend the Annual Meeting mayvote their stock personally even though they have sent in

their proxies If you hold your shares in street name you must request legal proxy from your bank broker or nominee

if you would like to vote at the Annual Meeting

Solicitation

All costs of soliciting proxies on behalf of the Board will be borne by Staples D.F King Co Inc has been retained to

assist in soliciting proxies at fee of$ 13000 plus expenses We also have engaged Broadridge Investor Communication Solutions

to serve as the inspector of elections and to assist us with planning and organizational matters along with certain ministerial

services in connection with the proxy solicitation process at cost of approximately $5000 In addition to solicitations by mail

our directors officers and employees without additional remuneration may solicit proxies by telephone electronic communication

and personal interviews Brokers custodians and fiduciaries will be requested to forward proxy soliciting material to the owners

of stock held in their names and we will reimburse them for their related out-of-pocket expenses

Stockholder Proposals

Other than the stockholder proposals set forth in this proxy statement we did not receive any other stockholder proposals

or nominations for director candidates that must be presented at our 2013 Annual Meeting The proposals were received prior to

December 24 2012 the deadline for stockholders who wished to present proposals and wanted such proposals to be included in

the proxy materials In accordance with our by-laws in order for stockholder to present proposal or nominate director candidate

for election at our 2013 Annual Meeting but not have such proposal included in the proxy materials the stockholder must have

provided us with advance written notice by March 2013 If stockholder gives us notice of proposal or nomination after the

March 2013 deadline the stockholder will not be permitted to present the proposal or nomination to the stockholders for vote

at the 2013 Annual Meeting

Stockholders who intend to present proposals at our 2014 Annual Meeting and want us to include such proposals in our

proxy materials relating to that meeting should contact our Corporate Secretary Such proposals must be received at our principal

corporate offices at 500 Staples Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702 not later than December 26 2013 and must be in

compliance with applicable laws and Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of1934 in order to be considered for possible

inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy for our 2014 Annual Meeting



If stockholder wishes to present proposal or nominate director candidate for election at our 2014 Annual Meeting and

the proposal or nomination is not intended to be included in our proxy statement for such meeting the stockholder must give us

advance notice and provide the information required by our by-laws including but not limited to information regarding the identity

of the stockholder or beneficial owner their holdings in Staples securities agreements or compensation relating to such nomination

or matter and any derivatives or other arrangements to mitigate risk or change voting power If stockholder gives notice of such

proposal or nomination after the applicable deadline the stockholder will not be permitted to present the proposal or nomination

to the stockholders for vote at the meeting For our 2014 Annual Meeting our Corporate Secretary generally must receive such

notice at 500 Staples Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702 not later than 90 days and no earlier than 120 days prior to the

first anniversary of our 2013 Annual Meeting However if the date of our 2014 Annual Meeting is more than 30 days before or

more than 70 days after such anniversary date notice by the stockholder must be received no earlier than 120 days prior to the

2014 Annual Meeting and not later than the later ofi the 90th day prior to the 2014 Annual Meeting and ii the tenth day following

the day on which public announcement of the date of the 2014 Annual Meeting is made or notice for the 2014 Annual Meeting

was mailed whichever occurs first

Householding of Annual Meeting Materials

Some banks brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of householding proxy

statements annual reports and notices of Internet availability of proxy materials This means that only one copy of our proxy

statement annual report or notice of Internet availability of proxy materials may be sent to multiple stockholders in household

which helps us reduce our printing costs and postage fees and helps the environment by conserving natural resources However

we will promptly deliver separate copy of these documents to you if you write email or call our Investor Relations department

at 500 Staples Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702 email investorstaples.com or telephone 800 468-7751 If you want

to receive separate copies of the proxy statement annual report or notice of Internet availability of proxy materials in the future

or if you are receiving multiple copies and would like to receive only one copy for your household you should contact your bank

broker or other nominee record holder or you may contact us at the above address email or phone number

Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications

If you received hard copy of your Annual Meeting materials by mail we encourage you to conserve natural resources as

well as help us reduce our printing and mailing costs by signing up to receive or access your stockholder communications via

e-mail To sign up for electronic delivery or access visit www.proxyvote.com Your electronic delivery or access enrollment will

be effective until you cancel it which you may do at any time by following the procedures described at the website listed above

If you have questions about electronic delivery or access please write email or call our Investor Relations department at 500 Staples

Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702 email investorstaples.com or telephone 800 468-7751

Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

We file annual quarterly and current reports as well as other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SECYou may read and copy any document that we file with the SEC at its Internet website at www.sec.gov or at its Public

Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington DC 20549 Ifyou would like to receive copy of our Annual Report on Form

10-K for our 2012 fiscal year or any of the exhibits listed therein please call or submit request in writing to Investor Relations

Staples Inc 500 Staples Drive Framingham MA 01702 telephone 800 468-7751 and we will provide you with the Annual

Report without charge



BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF COMMON STOCK

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our common stock held as of April 2013 by each person
who

is known by us based on schedule 13 filings to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock

and as of April 2013 by each current director and nominee for director each of the named executive officers listed in

the Summary Compensation Table included elsewhere in this proxy statement and by all current directors and executive

officers as group

Less than 1%

Percentage of

common
stock

beneficially

owned

Each person
listed has sole investment and/or voting power with respect to the shares indicated except as otherwise noted

The inclusion herein of any shares as beneficially owned does not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership Amounts listed

in this column do not reflect shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options available on April 2013 or within 60 days

thereafter

Reflects shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options available on April 2013 or within 60 days thereafter

Number of shares deemed outstanding includes 668499635 shares of our common stock outstanding as of April 2013 and

any options for shares that are exercisable by such beneficial owner on April 2013 or within 60 days thereafter

Ownership percentages were obtained from Schedule 3G filings and reflect the number of shares of common stock held as

of December 31 2012

Number of

Shares

beneficially

owned

Number of

shares

acquirable

within 60

daysName of beneficial owner

5% Stockholders

BlackRock Inc

40 East 52nd Street New York NY100222 56637268 8.47%

FMR LLC
82 Devonshire Street Boston MA 02109

43.906028 6.57

Pzena Investment Management LLC
120 West 45th Street 20th Floor 39176.664 5.86%

New York NY 10036

Directors Nominees for Director and Named Executive Officers

Basil Anderson 202440 91.367

ArthurM Blank 139585 118367

Joseph Doody 439749 864.975

Drew Faust 32635

Justin King 44487 82367

Christine Komola 107957 150940

John Mahoney 277673 2046194

Carol Meyrowitz 55718 77867

Michael Miles Jr 51 5238 1904267

Rowland Moriarty 442841 136367

RobertC Nakasone 334.641 11 158867

Demos Parneros 473894 12 939975

Ronald Sargent 2343.1 13 13 4193447

Elizabeth Smith 52351 41954

Robert Sulentic 97060 14 82367

Raul Vazquez

Vijay Vishwanath 59310 86867

Paul Walsh 210757 15 158867

All current directors and executive officers as

group 21 persons 5940500 11135055 2.51%



As set forth in Schedule 13G filed on January 30 2013 BlackRock Inc had as of December 31 2012 sole dispositive

power and sole voting power with respect to all of the shares

6As set forth in Schedule 13G filed on February 14 2013 FMR LLC had as of December 31 2012 sole dispositive power

and sole voting power with respect to all of the shares

As set forth in Schedule 130 filed on February 72013 Pzena Investment Management LLC had as of December 31 2012

sole dispositive power and sole voting power with respect to all of the shares

Includes 12000 shares owned by Mr Andersons wife

Includes 14028 shares owned by the John Komola Trust and 67001 shares owned by the Christine Komola Trust

10 Includes 25235 shares owned by Dr Moriartys children of which Dr Moriarty disclaims beneficial ownership and 200000

shares owned by Movex LLC which is owned by two Moriarty family trusts

11 Includes 165085 shares owned by the Robert Nakasone Trust and 98814 shares owned by Nakasone Capital LLC

12 Includes 337974 shares owned by the Demos Parneros Revocable Trust and 2717 shares that may be distributed from

401k plan account

13 Includes 43577 shares owned by Sargent Family LLC 758964 shares owned by the Ronald Sargent Revocable Trust

19313 shares owned by the Jill Sargent Irrevocable Trust 19313 shares owned by the Ronald Sargent Irrevocable Trust

619174 shares owned by Sargent Partners LLC and 138825 shares owned by Ronald Sargent 2011 Grantor Retained Annuity

Trust Includes 5506 shares owned by the Sargent Family Foundation of which Mr Sargent disclaims beneficial ownership Also

includes 2817 shares that may be distributed from 401k plan account

14 Includes 300 shares held by Mr Sulentics daughter

15 Includes 247 shares held by Paul Walsh IRA and 171787 shares held by the Walsh Family Trust

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Highlights

We are committed to following best practices of corporate governance that are in the best interests of our business and

all of our stockholders We believe we have been on the leading edge in our efforts to reach out to stockholders to discuss their

views and we believe that we have consistent track record of listening and being thoughtfully responsive to feedback Over

the years after considering best practices governance trends and stockholder input we pro-actively adopted many important

governance initiatives such as majority voting an enhanced political contributions policy compensation recoupment policy and

Staples Soul which reflects our commitment to number of important policies relating to ethics community the environment

and diversity

Corporate Governance Outreach Program

We have been conducting formal corporate governance outreach program for many years In the fall we solicit feedback

from our institutional investors labor unions pension funds corporate social responsibility investors and proxy advisory groups

to hear their perspectives on various governance matters our executive compensation program sustainability and other matters

of interest to our stockholders In the spring we may also engage in conversations to discuss matters on the agenda for the annual

meeting In 2012 we approached stockholders representing approximately 50% of our shares and engaged in constructive

dialogue with stockholders representing more than 30% of our shares to learn about their concerns and hear their perspectives

The results were shared with our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Compensation Committee as well as

with the entire Board of Directors We believe that the outreach program is
very

beneficial to our understanding of the issues that

are important to our stockholders and also highlights for us stockholders divergent opinions

Recent Corporate Governance Enhancements

Changes to our Executive Compensation Program To focus our executives on the key priorities of our strategic plan

our Compensation Committee made significant changes to our compensation program for fiscal 2013 These changes

include increasing the percentage of compensation that is performance-based or at risk re-tooling the goals to prioritize

sales growth incorporating relative TSRperformance measure and overall streamlining the long term incentive program

into single element ofperformance shares These changes which align with feedback we received from our stockholders

are discussed in more detail in the Compensation Discussion Analysis section of this proxy statement

Stockholder Action by Written Consent In 2012 we amended our certificate of incorporation to allow stockholders

to act by majority written consent The amendment represented thoughtful response to the votes of stockholders at our

2010 and 2011 annual meetings in favor of stockholder proposal requesting this right and incorporates valuable

stockholder input including on appropriate procedural safeguards received in the course of our corporate governance

outreach program



Enhanced Disclosures Under our Political Contributions Policy In response to increasing general interest in corporate

political activities our Board proactively revised our political contributions policy in 2012 from reporting solely on

monetary political contributions from corporate funds to also providing disclosures of the amounts attributed to political

activities of our material trade associations and our lobbying activities

Chief Culture Officer In our ongoing commitment to responsible corporate citizenship Staples created new role of

Chief Culture Officer in 2012 This individual is tasked to drive improved associate engagement and to coordinate

Staples approach to corporate responsibility The person
will also champion our approach to ethics environmental

sustainability community relations and diversity and inclusion In addition our ChiefCulture Officer serves as President

of the Staples Foundation our non-profit philanthropic organization

You can learn more about our current corporate governance principles and review our Corporate Governance Guidelines

Guidelines committee charters Corporate Political Contributions and Government Activity Policy Statement Code of Ethics

and other significant policies at www.staples.com in the Corporate Governance section of the Investor Information portion of our

website We comply with the corporate governance requirements imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act SEC and NASDAQ Stock

Market We will continue to modify our policies and practices to meet ongoing developments in this area While we have discussed

many features of our corporate governance principles in other sections of this proxy statement some of the highlights are

Stockholder Features

Annual Election of Directors Our directors are elected annually for term of office to expire at the next annual meeting

subject to the election and qualification of their successors

Majority Voting Under our by-laws in uncontested elections our directors are elected ifthe votes cast for the directors

election exceed the votes cast against the directors election If an incumbent director in an uncontested election does

not receive the required number of votes for his or her election our Guidelines provide that such incumbent director

must tender his or her resignation from our Board

No Stockholder Rights Plan We do not currently have stockholder rights plan in effect Our Board has adopted

stockholder rights plan policy under which we will adopt stockholder rights plan only if the plan has been approved by

stockholders either in advance or within 12 months of its adoption by our Board

No Supermajority Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation We have no supermajority voting requirements

under our certificate of incorporation

Right of Stockholders to Call Special Meetings Our by-laws provide that stockholders who own in the aggregate 25%

or more of our outstanding stock may call special meetings

Majority Written Consent As described above our stockholders now have the right to act by majority written consent

Board Features

Independent Board Our Board is comprised of all independent directors except for our Chief Executive Officer

CEO
Annual Review of Board Leadership Structure As described in more detail below every year our Board evaluates

its leadership structure and based on recommendation from the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

determines whether there should be an independent Chairperson of the Board or an independent Lead Director

Strong Lead Director Role Among many other responsibilities our independent Lead Director ensures that independent

directors meet in executive sessions coordinates the annual performance review of our CEO and works with the

Chairperson of the Board to establish the agenda for each Board meeting Additional information about the responsibilities

of our independent Lead Director can be found under the section of this proxy statement called Board Leadership

Structure

CEO Evaluation Every year the independent Board members participate in our CEOs evaluation The evaluation is

done in executive sessions without him being present It is led by our independent Lead Director and the Chair of the

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee The evaluation is also used by the Compensation Committee in

determining compensation for the CEO
Succession Planning Process As required by our Corporate Governance Guidelines our Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee continually reviews succession planning as it relates to the CEO To assist in this process the

CEO prepares an annual report on succession planning for himself and other key senior leadership positions The report

is part of proactive enterprise wide annual talent management process In addition on continuing basis the CEO is

required to provide recommendations regarding his successors should he become disabled Periodically the Nominating

and Corporate Governance Committee also engages consultants for succession planning strategy and to identify external

candidates



Independent Board Committees All members of our Audit Compensation Finance and Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committees are independent directors and none of such members receives compensation from us other than

for service on our Board of Directors or its committees

Committee Authority to Retain Independent Advisors Each of the Audit Compensation Finance and Nominating

and Corporate Governance Committees has the authority to retain independent advisors with all fees and expenses to be

paid by Staples

Audit Committee Policies and Procedures Under its charter the Audit Committees prior approval is required for all

audit services and non-audit services other than de minim is non-audit services as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

to be provided by our independent registered public accounting firm In conjunction with the Audit Committee we have

adopted policies prohibiting executive officers from retaining our independent registered public accounting firm to

provide personal accounting or tax services and Staples without first obtaining the Audit Committees approval from

filling an officer level position in the finance department with person who was previously employed by our independent

registered public accounting firm

Compensation Features

Independent Compensation Consultant The Compensation Committees charter provides that they will not engage

any compensation advisor that performs other services for the Company In March 2013 the Compensation Committee

performed conflicts of interest assessment of our compensation consultant and no conflict of interest was identified

Recoupment Policy We have recoupment policy whereby we provide for forfeiture and recovery of undeserved cash

equity and severance compensation from an employee who engages in harmful or unethical behavior such as intentional

deceitful acts resulting in improper personal benefit or injury to the company fraud or willful misconduct that significantly

contributes to material financial restatement violation of our Code of Ethics or breach of employee agreements

Stock Ownership Guidelines Our stock ownership guidelines require our non-employee directors to own minimum

level of equity in Staples worth at least five times the annual Board cash retainer currently $75000 or $375000 These

guidelines also require minimum equity ownership levels for the named executive officers listed in this proxy statement

including our CEO who must own equity in Staples worth at least five times his annual salary

Other Features

Social Accountability Staples remains committed to responsible corporate conduct Through our Code of Ethics and

ongoing communications and training programs we make it easy for associates around the world to understand what

they need to know and do to make sound decisions in the best interests of our company and stockholders Additionally

our Supplier Code of Conduct requires that certain suppliers comply with Staples expectation in the areas of labor rights

safety environmental and ethical standards We also monitor certain of our suppliers with social accountability audits

and also have team of associates in China overseeing the screening monitoring and auditing of some of these suppliers

Environmental Responsibility Staples continues to lead the way in sustainable business practices We continue to

collaborate with our suppliers in our Race to the Top initiative to develop packaging changes in our private label products

to reduce the size and types of materials used and increase the use of recycled and recyclable materials The EPA recently

awarded Staples with Climate Leadership Award for its Excellence in Greenhouse Gas Management

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors in consultation with our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee determines which of

our directors including new nominees are independent Our Guidelines provide that directors are independent if they meet

the definition of independent director under the NASDAQ listing standards subject to any further qualifications required of

specific committee members under the NASDAQ listing standards and in our Boards judgment do not have relationship

with Staples that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of director Our

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews the standards for independence set forth in our Guidelines periodically

and recommends changes as appropriate for consideration and approval by our Board

In accordance with our Guidelines our Board has determined that all of our directors and our new nominee are independent

except Mr Sargent who is employed as our CEO In determining independence our Board considered all the available relevant

facts and circumstances including the following

Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries has employed or otherwise compensated the independent directors or new nominee

other than for service on our Board and its committees during the past three years



We have not employed or otherwise compensated any family members within the meaning of the NASDAQ listing

standards of the independent directors or new nominee during the past three years

None of the independent directors the new nominee or their family members is partner of our independent registered

public accounting firm or was partner or employee of such firm who worked on our audit during the past three years

None of our executive officers is on the compensation committee ofthe board of directors of company that has employed

any of the independent directors our new nominee or their family members during the past
three years

No family relationships exist between any of our directors our new nominee or executive officers

During the past three years none of our directors our new nominee or executive officers has had material direct or

indirect business relationship with us or related party transaction as described below

Certain Related Business Transactions

In 2012 we had no related party transactions and there were no exceptions to our Code of Ethics for our directors and

executive officers In an effort to be transparent with stockholders we describe our processes and our interactions with director

affiliated entities below

Our written Code of Ethics sets forth the general principle that our directors executive officers and other associates should

avoid any situation that could be perceived as conflict of interest regardless of the dollar amount involved This principle is also

reflected in our written Guidelines and the written materials that we use to educate associates about conflict of interest guidelines

For example under the Guidelines if an actual or potential conflict of interest develops for any reason including without limitation

because of change in business operations ofthe Company or because of directors circumstances the director should immediately

report the matter to our General Counsel who should then report the matter to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Committee for review and determination In the event there is significant conflict the director must resign or the conflict

must be resolved Additionally under the Guidelines any director who wishes to join the board of directors of another company

must provide written notice to the chairperson of the Committee The chairperson of the Committee after consultation with our

General Counsel will then respond to the director with resolution We also ask each of our executive officers and directors to

fill out questionnaires every year to help enable us to identif if potential conflict of interest exists Our Code of Ethics Guidelines

and the charters for all the committees of our Board are available at www.staples.com in the Corporate Governance section of the

Investor Information webpage

Code of Ethics

There may be times when commercial relationship involving our directors executive officers or their family members is

beneficial to us and is not likely to raise material conflict of interest issues Our Code of Ethics provides the following guidelines

for certain types of commercial relationships

Executive officers cannot serve as director for one of our customers or suppliers unless the suppliers or customers

annual business with Staples is less than 5% of such companys annual revenues the executive officer
agrees

not to

participate or influence directly or indirectly any matter affecting the business relationship or transactions between

Staples and the supplier or customer and the executive officer obtains written approval from our CEO or if the

executive officer is the CEO written approval from the Committee

Executive officers and directors must not make or hold financial investments in company that is one of our suppliers

or customers unless the annual sales to or purchases from us are less than 5% of such companys annual revenues or

if such persons ownership interest is both passive and insignificant and for private company such person obtains

written approval from our CEO or if board member written approval from the Committee

Executive officers and directors must not make or hold financial investments in company that is one of our competitors

unless the investment in publicly held competitors is insignificant less than 1% of the companys stock

Non-employee directors may work or consult for or serve on the board of company that is one of our suppliers or

customers if such companys annual sales to or purchases from us are less than 5% of such companys annual revenues

the director discloses the position to our General Counsel and the Committee and the director agrees not to

participate or influence directly or indirectly any matter affecting the business relationship or transactions between

Staples and such company

Director Affiliated Entities

Pursuant to the written charter of the Committee the Committee is responsible for reviewing approving or ratifying any

related party transactions These are transactions which exceed $120000 and in which Staples and any of our directors

director nominees executive officers 5% stockholders and their immediate family members are participants and ii such

participants had or will have direct or indirect material interest In the course of reviewing whether or not the participants should



be deemed to have direct or indirect material interest the Committee reviews the presence
of standard prices rates or terms

consistent with arms-length dealings with unrelated third parties the materiality of the transaction to each party the reasons for

entering into the transaction the potential effect of the transaction on the status of an independent director and any other factors

the Committee may deem relevant If transaction is deemed to be related party transaction the procedures for approval or

ratification of such transaction for Staples our directors executive officers and 5% stockholders are the same as those listed above

for actual or potential conflicts of interests involving directors under the Guidelines

For fiscal year 2012 although we did not have any related party transactions we did provide office supply products or

related services such as copying branding ofpromotional products or technology services to companies or organizations affiliated

with our directors our new nominee and our executive officers Below is list of companies and institutions with which our

independent directors and our new nominee were affiliated in 2012 and for which we received greater than $120000 for providing

our supplies or services

Bain Company CRA International Inc Moodys Corporation

Becton Dickinson Company Emory University PGA Tour Superstore

Bloomin Brands Inc Harvard University Progreso Financiero

CB Richard Ellis Group Hasbro Inc TJX Companies Inc

Cox Enterprises Hormel Foods Corporation

The amounts received by us in 2012 for the sale of office supplies and related services to these companies range from

approximately $135000 to approximately $9.2 million and the median amount received from such sales was approximately

$803000 In each case the amount was immaterial to the company purchasing the goods and services as well as immaterial to

Staples The largest amount of approximately $9.2 million represents 0.038% of our revenues based on sales for fiscal
year

ended

February 2013 of approximately $24.4 billion

In addition in 2012 we also leased certain facilities from CB Richard Ellis for approximately $500000 We also paid

approximately $709000 for employee background check services from privately held company for which one of our directors

serves as the Chairman of such companys board of directors and approximately $706000 to WEX Inc for fleet services

In all instances whether we provided the products/services received the services or leased facility no director or executive

officer of the affiliated company participated in the negotiation of the transaction and the products services or lease were provided

on arms length terms and conditions and in the ordinary course of business No director or executive officer had direct or indirect

material interest in the transaction The Committee determined that none of these transactions were related party transactions

and that such transactions would not interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of

director

Board Leadership Structure

Our Board of Directors determines its leadership structure on an annual basis based on recommendation of the Committee

The Board believes that it should not have predetermined policy as to whether the Board should be led by an independent

Chairperson or independent Lead Director but rather it is best for the Board to evaluate the structure and determine what is best

for Staples based on number of factors such as the size of the Board the number of independent directors the established process

for and record of Board and management interaction the qualifications and skills of the individual directors considered for the

roles and company performance For this year the Board determined that it was appropriate that Ronald Sargent our CEO should

remain as Chairperson of the Board and that Arthur Blank should continue in his role as independent Lead Director The Board

believes that its current leadership structure assures the appropriate level of management oversight and independence The Board

also felt that Mr Sargent is the director most familiar with Staples day-to-day operations The combined role of Chairman and

CEO allows for single clear focus of command to execute Staples strategic and business plans Mr Blanks leadership in

fulfilling his role as independent Lead Director counterbalances any potential conflict of interest arising from having our CEO

serve as the Boards Chairperson

Our Lead Director has the following responsibilities

Assure that meetings with the independent directors are held in executive sessions typically as was the case this year

after every Board meeting but in all circumstances at least twice year

Facilitate communications and serve as liaison between independent directors and the Chairperson of the Board

Coordinate the annual performance review of our CEO
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Work with the Chairperson of the Board in the preparation of the agenda for each board meeting and approve

such agenda

Call if needed meetings of independent directors

Preside at all meetings of the Board where the Chairperson is not present including executive sessions of the

independent directors

Represent the independent directors if meeting is held with major stockholder and

Otherwise consult with the Chairperson of the Board on matters relating to corporate governance and Board

performance

Meetings and Committees of our Board

Our Board of Directors held total of five meetings during our 2012 fiscal year The number of meetings held by each of

the committees of our Board during our 2012 fiscal
year

is set forth below under the description of each committee During our

2012 fiscal year all of the directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of Board and committee meetings except Mr

Blank Mr Blank attended 80% of the aggregate Board meetings Had it not been for an unexpected absence from one Nominating

and Corporate Governance Committee meeting due to illness Mr Blank would have attended an aggregate of at least 75% of

Board and committee meetings Our Guidelines provide that directors are encouraged to attend the Annual Meeting and all of our

2012 incumbent directors attended last years annual meeting

Our Board has five standing committees the Audit Committee the Compensation Committee the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee the Finance Committee and the Executive Committee The chair of each committee as matter of regular

practice and to the extent possible reviews committee meeting materials with management in advance of each Board committee

meeting Each of our standing Board committees operates under written charter adopted by our Board copy ofwhich is available

at www staples corn in the Corporate Governance section of the Investor Information webpage

Committee membership as of April 2013 was as follows

Audit Committee Compensation Committee

Robert Sulentic Chairperson Paul Walsh Chairperson

Basil Anderson Carol Meyrowitz

Justin King Robert Nakasone

Elizabeth Smith

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Finance Committee

Vijay Vishwanath Chairperson Rowland Moriarty Chairperson

Arthur Blank Basil Anderson

Drew Faust Paul Walsh

Rowland Moriarty

Executive Committee

Ronald Sargent Chairperson

Arthur Blank

Rowland Moriarty

Robert Nakasone

Audit Cornrnittee

The Audit Committee assists our Board in overseeing our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements the integrity

of our financial statements our independent registered public accounting firms qualifications and independence and the

performance of our internal audit function and our independent registered public accounting firm through receipt and consideration

of certain reports from our independent registered public accounting firm In addition the Audit Committee assists the Board of

Directors in its oversight of the Companys policies and practices with respect to risk assessment and risk oversight including

discussing with management the Companys major financial risk exposures and the steps that have been taken to monitor and

control such exposures The Audit Committee is directly responsible for appointing compensating evaluating and when necessary

terminating our independent registered public accounting firm and our independent registered public accounting firm reports

directly to the Audit Committee The Audit Committee also prepares the Audit Committee Report required under the rules of the

SEC which is included elsewhere in this proxy statement The Audit Committee has established escalation and oversight procedures

for the treatment of complaints regarding accounting internal accounting controls or auditing matters including procedures for

confidential and anonymous submission by our associates of concerns regarding questionable accounting internal accounting

controls or auditing matters The Audit Committee meets independently with our independent registered public accounting firm

management and our internal auditors The members of the Audit Committee are independent directors as defined by its charter
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and the rules of the SEC and NASDAQ Stock Market The Audit Committee met four times in person and five times by telephone

during our 2012 fiscal year Our Board has detennined that Mr Sulentic is an audit committee financial expert under the rules of

the SEC and all Audit Committee members are independent

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committees responsibilities include setting the compensation levels of executive officers including our

CEO reviewing approving and providing recommendations to our Board regarding compensation programs administering our

equity and cash incentive plans and authorizing awards under such incentive plans The Committee also oversees the administration

ofthe Companys employee stock purchase plans retirement plans and other employee benefit plans The Committee may delegate

its authority to management as it deems appropriate and may also delegate its authority relating to ministerial matters The members

of the Compensation Committee are independent directors as defined by its charter and the rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market

The Compensation Committee met four times in
person

and one time by telephone during our 2012 fiscal year For more information

about the responsibilities of our Compensation Committee see the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy

statement

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees responsibilities include providing recommendations to our Board

regarding nominees for director membership on our Board committees and succession matters for our CEO An additional function

of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is to develop and recommend to our Board our Guidelines and to assist

our Board in complying with them The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also oversees the evaluation of our

Board and our CEO reviews and resolves conflict of interest situations reviews and
approves

related party transactions and

interprets and enforces our Code of Ethics The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also oversees our political

contributions and recommends to our Board any proposed revisions to our Corporate Political Contributions Policy Statement

The members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are independent directors as defined by its charter and

the rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met four times in person during

our 2012 fiscal year

Finance Committee

The Finance Committees responsibilities include being available as needed to evaluate and consult with and advise our

management and our Board with respect to capital structure and capital policies events and actions that could impact capital

structure payment of dividends share repurchases borrowing practices debt or equity financings credit arrangements

investments mergers acquisitions joint ventures divestitures and other similar transactions The Finance Committee met three

times in person and one time by telephone during our 2012 fiscal year

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is authorized with certain exceptions to exercise all ofthe powers of our Board in the management

and affairs of Staples It is intended that the Executive Committee will take action only when reasonably necessary to expedite

our interests between regularly scheduled Board meetings quorum can only be established by the presence of both majority

of the members of the Executive Committee and two non-management members of the Executive Committee The Executive

Committee did not meet during our 2012 fiscal year

Risk Oversight by the Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving our risk management strategy and framework

and key risk parameters In terms of overseeing the broader enterprise risk management ERM program the Audit Committee

under powers delegated by the Board is responsible for the approval and establishment of our risk management framework and

ensuring that appropriate policies and practices are in place for risk assessment and management including that all risk areas are

being monitored by senior management reported to the Board or appropriate Board committee by senior management and addressed

as needed At each quarterly Board meeting the Audit Committee reports to the Board on all of its specific activities

Our most senior executives are responsible for collaborating with the Audit Committee to provide oversight to the risk

management process and prioritize and validate key risks Management through its Enterprise Risk Committee is then responsible

for implementing the Board and Board committee approved risk management strategy and for developing policies controls

processes and procedures to identif and manage risks Our Enterprise Risk Committee is composed of leaders from the functional

areas of Staples and meets quarterly to coordinate information sharing and mitigation efforts for all types of risks The Audit

Committee stays apprised of significant actual and potential risks faced by Staples and the effectiveness of its risk assessment
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and management process in part through detailed presentations at least twice year from the Vice President of Internal Audit as

the representative of the Enterprise Risk Committee During these reports in 2012 management presented to the Audit Committee

the results of its enterprise wide review of the major financial operational and legal risks facing the company and steps that have

been taken to monitor and control such exposures In doing so management reviewed its ERM methodologies for identifying

and prioritizing financial operational and legal risks and discussed the top level risks and related risk management

Independent of the ERJVI process the Audit Committee is made aware of risks as result of being briefed in
person regularly

by our Vice President of Internal Audit as well as an annual briefing and quarterly reports by our Vice President Ethics

Compliance The Audit Committee also regularly meets in executive session alone with the Vice President of Internal Audit The

Audit Committee uses the results of its discussions with our Vice President of Internal Audit to inform its overall view of risk and

approve the proposed audit schedule for the internal audit group Our internal audit
group identifies assesses and assists management

in addressing and managing risks by using the Integrated Framework by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission also 1uown as COSO framework Our Vice President Ethics Compliance also provides quarterly reports

to the Audit Committee on compliance and ethics matters

The Audit Committee administers its risk oversight role through the Board committee structure as well Each Board

committee is responsible for monitoring and reporting on the material risks associated with its respective subject matter areas of

responsibility The Audit Committee oversees risks related to our accounting and financial reporting processes and the integrity

of our financial statements the Finance Committee oversees risks related to capital policies and practices and financial transactions

the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees risks related to corporate governance including director

independence and related party transactions and as discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy

statement the Compensation Committee oversees risks related to our compensation programs including an annual review and

risk assessment of the Companys compensation policies and practices for all associates and risk assessment in connection with

any changes to our compensation program

In addition the Board and the Audit Committee receive presentations throughout the year from management regarding

specific potential risks and trends as necessary At each Board meeting the Chairman and CEO addresses in directors only session

matters of particular importance or concern including any significant areas of risk requiring Board attention Annually our full

Board reviews in detail the Companys short- and long-term strategies including consideration of significant risks facing the

Company and their potential impact We believe that the practices described above facilitate effective Board oversight of our

significant risks

Diversity

Diversity has always been very important to us It comprises one of the four pillars of what we call Staples Soul We strive

to offer an inclusive business environment that offers diversity of people thought experience and suppliers This also holds true

for our Board of Directors Although we have no formal separate written policy pursuant to our Guidelines the Board annually

reviews the appropriate skills and characteristics of the Board members in light of the current composition of the Board and

diversity is one of the factors used in this assessment Not only does the Board view diversity of experience industry skills and

tenure as important but also of gender and ethnic backgrounds We exceed national averages in both women and minority

representation on our Board We also look to enhance our minority representation by our nomination of Raul Vazquez Additionally

the Board is provided with an annual report on diversity initiatives and Staples approach and progress on such initiatives

Director Candidates

The process followed by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to identify and evaluate director candidates

includes requests to Board members and others for recommendations engaging professional recruiting firm to help identify and

recruit potential candidates meetings from time to time to evaluate biographical information and background material relating to

potential candidates and interviews of selected candidates by members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

and our Board

Raul Vazquez was nominated by our Board as director candidate for election at our Annual Meeting During 2012 the

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee engaged third-party professional recruiting firm to search for director

candidate with e-commerce and technology expertise After interviewing several qualified candidates the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee selected Mr Vazquez and recommended his candidacy to the Board

Stockholders may recommend an individual to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for consideration as

potential director candidate by submitting the following information the candidates name appropriate biographical

information and background materials regarding the candidate and statement as to whether the stockholder or group of
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stockholders making the recommendation has beneficially owned more than 5% of our common stock for at least year as of the

date such recommendation is made Such information should be submitted to the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee do Corporate Secretary Staples Inc 500 Staples Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702 Assuming that

appropriate biographical and background material has been provided on timely basis the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee will evaluate stockholder recommended candidates by following substantially the same process and applying

substantially the same criteria as it follows for candidates submitted by others

Stockholders also have the right under our by-laws to directly nominate director candidates without any action or

recommendation on the part of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or our Board by following the relevant

procedures summarized in this proxy statement under the caption Stockholder Proposals

Communicating with our Board

Our Board will give appropriate attention to written communications that are submitted by stockholders and will respond

if and as appropriate Absent unusual circumstances or as contemplated by the committee charters the Chairperson of the Board

if an independent director or the Lead Director if one is appointed or otherwise the Chairperson of the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee with the advice and assistance of our General Counsel is primarily responsible for monitoring

communications from stockholders and other interested parties and for providing copies or summaries of such communications

to the other directors as he or she considers appropriate

Under procedures approved by our independent directors and subject to the advice and assistance from our General Counsel

communications are forwarded to the Chairperson ofthe Board ifan independent director the Lead Director if one is appointed

or otherwise the Chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee who monitor communications from

stockholders and other interested parties Copies or summaries of such communications are provided to all directors if such
persons

consider it important and appropriate for all directors to know In general communications relating to corporate governance
and

corporate strategy are more likely to be forwarded than communications relating to ordinary business affairs personal grievances

and matters as to which we tend to receive repetitive or duplicative communications In addition as provided by our Guidelines

if meeting is held between major stockholder including institutional investors and representative of the independent directors

the Lead Director will serve subject to availability as such representative of the independent directors

Stockholders who wish to send communications on any topic to our Board should address such communications to The

Board of Directors do Corporate Secretary Staples Inc 500 Staples Drive Framingham Massachusetts 01702
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ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Item on the Proxy Card

The members of our Board are elected for term of office to expire at the next annual incetin ect to the election and

qualification of their successors or the earlier of their death resignation or removal In considering whether to recommend any

particular candidate for inclusion in our Boards slate of recommended director nominees the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee applies the assessment criteria set forth in our Corporate Governance Guidelines These criteria include

diversity age and skills such as understanding of the office products market the retail industry finance accounting marketing

technology risk management international business and other operational and business knowledge nceded to oversee global

multi-channel business The principal qualification of director is the ability to act effectivel on behalf of all of our stockholders

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no particular

criterion is prerequisite for any prospective nominee We believe that the specific skills qualifications and experience of our

directors considered as group should provide mix of knowledge and abilities that ssill allow our Board to fulfill its

responsibilities

We believe each nominee in the slate presented below through their own personal accomplshinents aid dedication to their

profession and community has demonstrated strong intellectual acumen solid business judgment strategic sision integrity and

diligence The twelve nominees that are current directors include six directors who joined the Board within the last six years and

four nominees with over fifteen years of service on the Board including two nominees who has served on the Board since our

inception Each of the current directors consistently has demonstrated their strong work ethic and dedication to Staples including

coming prepared to meetings asking insightful questions challenging managements assumption usino on long term business

strategy analyzing challenges evaluating solutions and overseeing implementation Our new nominee brings expertise and

leadership in c-commerce and retail perspective particularly important in the Boards strategic osersight of Staples reinvention

plan We believe that the composition of the Board including the varied tenure of our directors combines institutional knowledge

and understanding of our business model prnducts and services and historical growth strotegies with fresh perspectis es and

exposure to alternative approaches to business process which promotes lively Board discussion and effective ersight and problem

solving

Many of the nominees are either current or former chief executive officers chairpersons or vie chairpersons of other large

international corporations As such they have deep understanding of and extensise experience in many areas that are critical

to our operation and success We have determined that nominees who have served in these roles has extensive experience with

financial statement preparation compensation determinations regulatory compliance if their businesses are or were regulated

corporate governance risk management public affairs and legal matters Set forth below is biographical nformation of each of

the nominees highlighting the particular experience qualifications attributes or skills of each nonnne tho upports th conclusion

of the Nominating and Corporate Gosernanee Committee that these individuals should serse as dmimtcr St pIes

Served as

Director

Since

1997

Basil Anderson age 68

Served as an independent director of Staples since 1997 until

we asked him to become our Vice Chairman from

September 2001 until his retirement in March 2006

IPUJ4fIIII Mr Anderson is also director of Hashio Inc Becton

Dickinson and Company and Moody coiporarion

served as director of CRA International lnc until

January 201l.Among his many qualifications Mi Ande son

has extensive executive experience in corporate finance

VII flJ gained in part from his position as Chiefbinancial Officer of

Campbell Soup Company and prior to that Scott Paper

Company Mr Anderson also brings to the Board valuable

insight into oversight of financial
reporting ann the audit

process based on his experiences serving on the audit

committees of multiple boards Mr Anderson also ia

strategic planning expertise as well as international busi

experience

15



Suved as

rector

Sioc

200

it iii Blank 70

Cha ima ol the Stlanta falcons Motbaif fish

LLC tArts talE eotba haag ieteam smack ebreary 2002

31 so sarw if oa usideot and 11 bra

Ext cut ffie of yy Group LLC Ye
Fchrouy 201 whic its the parer eerrpany fbi Mr ark

prelA is nassas hcse businesses include Allanta

ers iys cal her apy enters ivh eh ovide phu real

he an rr habilitatiou se can PG OUR Soprs ores

pri et cid retaile of gol ar tennis products and

Mo ntar Sky icst Ranch upscale gu aich mso11

\4r HI ik ci is nied Th ante Tot Inc home

imp rent etaile ir 978 ar retired as CoCharn ran of

he Boa VIa 2001 Yr Blank also serv as chai mar

Arti Blaik mily foodatoi ehartable

Ear Smong mroy loal lications an

sue es lb repren or with tensi ore roral

tewla ge th re all doty at also las rde

ra gnr xpc icr ii riereha cism aid cost irner se ye

Farek aged 2012

resider Hr yard iive srty since 2007 As Presi Ia it

Gas is wpoosihle tor all spe ts of tar yard acad Hmrc

ad ad ostiatr act vi tes vh ch include oçeratiom an
res rd mc iog act iti is rross tie giot Sr oct

car as or tM bor rd of arv rd Management pany

wE cli espr nsibla for ir vest og ra irdh erido yr rca and

related Fr ir icial asseE to produce long ta solts to soopor

ci it and ra earch tais of the nive sity am
tEa rra is mation of Hir ard go emanec oc ores

on qi
alificGo is Ii as st brings to the ar

ens ha icrship arid na gament xperiem aid Yr Is

racir iog rep
talent capita plainirg fineocia

ov rsi ri manage cant tee hr egy an st ate

stir Ktng ag 51
200/

iaI sacs mc 0111 cr or Sai Gory pie ed ird nor

fe am er March 2004 wE ic rise Misc an

perateg Boa Pier tejen VI Sa isboyla he

wr ar Fire rtvr Dr ef\ airs at Spencer re .p ph

rem Scpta Far 2002 to fir 1004 Icr Kieg hs

ti experience ha nag held aFar of aniet

pa at A/WaEMa udiag IlK and Retail rs

iag 08 actor of laagc Dr is UK aid ha
ig lb Her

much cf mh career rs Cenfee menary
aid Pep

Jr imte al lie so sacs or the Prime Mme

Business Advisory cop Im tAr char lb 10 to Dec mb
20 51 Kr ifngs to Bm rd both tra agic alas and

mg pa tim vail as on far tandreg of Fe

re nil it speraheg in as itmeea osreassa

if



Carol Meyrowitz age 59

Chief Executive Officer of The TJX Companies Inc
retailer of apparel and home fashions since 2007 and

director since 2006 Ms Meyrowitz was President of TJX
from October2005 to January2011 Prior to that

Ms Meyrowitz was President of The Marmaxx Group the

largest division of TJX from January 2001 to January 2005
and was employed in an advisory role for TJX from

January 2005 to October 2005 and consulted for Berkshire

Partners L.L.C private equity firm from June 2005 to

October 2005 Ms Meyrowitz is also director of The TJX

Companies Inc Previous directorships include Amscan

Holdings Inc from 2005 to 2012 and Yankee Candle

Company from 2004 until 2007 Among many qualifications

Ms Meyrowitz brings to the Board extensive experience in

all aspects of retail operations and management including

real estate c-commerce supply chain and logistics

marketing and customer service

Rowland Moriarty age
66

Chairman of the Board of CRA International inc
worldwide economic and business consulting firm since

May 2002 lIe has been President and Chief Executive

Officer of Cubex Corporation privately-held consulting

company since 1992 From 1981 to 1992 Dr Moriarty was

professor of business administration at Harvard Business

School where he taught among other subjects marketing

Dr Moriarty is also director of WEX Inc and Virtusa

Corporation Until 2006 Dr Moriarty served as director of

Trammel Crow Company which contributed to his

comprehensive understanding of real estate matters Among

many qualifications Dr Moriarty brings to the Board

extensive international experience and has also developed

extensive skills and expertise in corporate governance

matters having chaired eight governance committees of

various public and private boards

Robert Nakasone age 65

Chief Executive Officer ofNAK Enterprises family-owned
investment and consulting company since January 2000
Prior to that Mr Nakasone served as ChiefExecutive Officer

ofToys Us Inc from 1998 to 1999 and in other positions

at that company from 1985 to 1998 While serving as Vice-

Chairman Worldwide Toy Stores and President and Chief

Operating Officer Mr Nakasone led the companys
international expansion into 27 countries throughout Europe
Asia and the Middle East Mr Nakasone is also director of

Hormel Foods Corporation Previously Mr iakasone

served as director of eFunds Corporation from 2003 until

the sale of the company to Fidelity National Information

Services in 2007 Among many qualifications Mr Nakasone

brings to the Board extensive executive level public company

experience
international business development expertise as

well as strategic planning and skills relating to compensation

and corporate governance matters

Served as

Director

Since

2007

1986

1986
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Served as

Director

Since

Robert Sulentic age 56
2007

ChiefExecutive Officer of CBRE Inc global commercial

real estate services company since December 2012 and

President since March 2010 Mr Sulentic has been member
of the CBRE Board since December 2012 He previously

served as President of the companys Development Services

business from December 2006 to April 2011 Mr Sulentic

previously served as Chief Financial Officer of CBRL from

March 2009 and Group President from July 2009 each until

March 2010 Mr Sulentic was member of CBREs Board

and Group President of Development Ser\ ices Asia Pacific

and Europe Middle East and Africa from December 2006

through March 2009 Mr Sulentic was director of

Trammell Crow Company from December 1997 through
December 2006 and served as its Chairman of the Board

from May 2002 through December 2006 He ssas Presideiit

and Chief Executive Officer of Trammell Crms ompany
from October 2000 through December 2006 and prior to that

served as its Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer from Septem her 998 to Octohet 2000 Among nian
qualifications Mr Sulentic has extensive executive level

management experience Mr Sulentic also brings to the

Board significant financial background that qualifies him

as an audit committee financial
expert His insight with

respect to doing business globally is also highly valued

Raul Vazquez age 41

ChiefExecutive Officer and Director of Progress Financial

Corporation or Progreso Financicro financial services

company serving the needs of the growing Hispanic niarket

since April 2012 Prior to that Mr Vazquez served as an

Executive Vice President offrlobal c-Commerce at Wal-Mart

Stores Inc from lebruary 2011 to August 2011 lIe also

served as Executive Vice President and President of Wal
Mart West at Wal-Mart Stores Inc from February 2010 to

February 2011 He served as Chief Executive Officer of

Walmartcom USA EEC from February 2007 to February

2010 where he oversaw all day-to-day operations and

focused on pioviding multi-channel options for customers

lie joined Walmart.com in 2002 lIe is an c-commerce
veteran and has expertise and leadership in c-commerce and

retail including hands-on leadership experience at Wal-Mart

and Walmart.com in marketing and operations among other

roles

2007

Vijay Vishwanath age 53

Partner at Bain Company management consulting firm
since 1993 Mr Vishwanath first joined Bain in 1986 and

leads its consumer products practice Prior to joining Bain
Mr Vishwanath worked at Procter iambIc
Mr Vishwanath previously served as director of Yankee
Candle Company from 2005 to 2007 Among many
qualifications Mr Vishwanath brings to the Board expertise
in consumer products and brands as well as marketing

gained in his position at Bain Company counseling

numerous Fortune 500 companies and previously at

Procter Gamble In addition Mr Vishwanath has valuable

experience in strategic planning and corporate governance

19



Scn das

or

CC

Pa ValsI aged3
910

Se ed CIa an and Chic ceo rose 01 irer ole on

Corps ion tansact on pisecssir
and Ar ana0e neot

mr par or SepteiA 02 net ci onds was req ncr

by Natio vii nfo vition Sersic

Sep 21 Mr Vilsh also has beer the nsier it

Chief con Of PEW Managw vi LL

to iso fit conipa iy ee eb nary 2008

Manag nt LC does osine as Cia Fir feet

50 isors ann argets ins estinents in hot nan ala 3ivrees and

bos ness sarv ices ndustry one with Calera Capital

An org nany qoalitleations Mi Waist hi gs oarxl

ii in ledge relrt to rislc ersigi riM

iar ige sent vimt anee id golatory vic tori

adni valsas IC ut ci via1noree hrngs

nih err ice ii process cxc ii nec eaptal markers

end orattn arc

003 narn cs proxies
11 In eceipt in 01 cx coted proxy

derco ir\l Bla re sO Mes Jn tinKi ic arol yr it nd Moriary

vi ik al El he itt Robrt Srlentic Raul Vaiqura Fr ay sian Mi -u 3ai

ri Lot 2d meal Mecti ig es ea not be vo ed frr agreair im ofpeisons ii

ciror noes arecorcil4 imbersot or Boirt Sb vi omin rye

bet cry shor dbe unrbs ore nrdangto srndi cc pro vi na hevrtcd

Is byn FIrm

BO Hi Rib OMMENDS VOlE FOR IHE ELEC OF EACH HF4 NOMINEES

CE

DI JCIORCOVIP SATIION

esp vi hi for ic ics ng and making rcomr On in is to rrr boarf

no spi yvi or ns de Directors On itside iecto ai rvi 01 ci

tier Ic oinpen ir mAces philosophy rector sno 111 ah

ieOotsid Dice can acash etairci

iv vii or tc ma level if 0u sAc rector ompcrsat tth air of vi arnis

Ti ly en noanies genes find istrv The ow it nsatit ri aitrec ar nrc fly

vi lao oslo OisideDirtorp orrdutet air iavirr tait rcvievc by

fan Ms so on start on eqint prograni as otia Cs the otside cc

1w eeL al iebas op nrA to eqor gr nts in which moon Cl as art wade to Or Ic dc

ai tr mbarofiasc

ira trly ci pryment of $18 75Q rd vi mhorsd easovi txpensrs nicer

oar eha rpcr of the Fodit Committcc rec lives an weB qr tenly ca yr it nt of9 1/i

Cs an in gra it of shares of -mts tec stock enual 7500 Chest ass of cstric

yea
end ray iM sold rpo vesting Ootsirlc Directors ceive vi time ral

ioa 50000 woich yes after rbrer vii All Out ide Dirrto sub4ect to tn

in Ira as ireraincrant havt cyearsafter ningt eBo rd cetsich iii si

it ut bosnes Ii foUr ingtnfis ret darlysch Or dB On Cr eref of or

ci ii ever rnagri asdin uc accaa ccl ags iced cJ
sok nr ii ialueol 40030 heab iiicsoi Cnina

rr rosy CC TIC

ns ted

hr uti Es

IL

Cr cc

ii

10



Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee was granted restricted stoci units ith value

of $32000 and the chairperson of the Finance Committee was granted restricted stock units with value of $8.000 In each

case the restricted stock units vest on the date of each of the four regularly scheduled quarterly Board meetings that such

Director or chairperson holds such position and are paid in shares on the one year anniversary of the award The number of shares

of restricted stock or restricted stock units to be granted is determined by dividing the fixed value by the closing price
of our

common stock on the date of grant Upon change-imcontrol of Staples or upon director leaving our Board after reaching the

age of 72 all of such directors outstanding restricted stock would fully vest and the restricted stock units ou1 fully est and be

paid out

The table below sets forth certain information concerning our 2012 fiscal year compensation of our Outside Directors

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR 2012 FISCAL YEAR

Fees earned or Stock All Other

paid in cash Awards Compensation Total

Nanle 12
________

Basil Anderson 75000 175015 250015

ArthurM Blank 75000 215029 290029

MaryElizabethBurton 18750 175015 193763

Drew Faust 37500 237502 275002

Justin King 75000 175015 122622 372637

Carol Meyrowitz 75000 207026 282026

Rowland Moriarty 75000 183018 258018

RobertC.Nakasone 75000 175015 250015

Elizabeth Smith 75000 175015 250015

Robert Sulentic 90000 207026 297026

Vijay Vishwanath 73000 207026 282026

Paul Walsh 75000 175015 250015

Excludes Mr Sargent our CEO who does not receive compensation for his services as director and whose compensation as

named executive officer is reported in the Summary Compensation Table included in this proxy statement

The amounts shown in the Stock Awards column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of awards computed in

accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification SC Topic

718 for awards granted during our 2012 fiscal year not the actual amounts paid to or realized by our Outside Directors

during our 2012 fiscal year

The aggregate fair value ofthese awards is based on the market price of our common stock on the date ofgrant Fractional

shares are rounded up to the nearest whole share Awards made during 2012 represent

Annual grant of shares of restricted stock to each director with grant date fair value of $175015
For Dr Faust an initial grant upon election as director with grant date fair value of $150001
For Mi Blank our Lead Director for fiscal year 2012 restricted stock units with grant date fair value of $40014
For Ms Meyrowitz and Messrs Sulentic and Vishwanath chair of our Compensation Committee chair of our

Audit Committee and chair of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Con3mittee respectively for fiscal

year 2012 restricted stock units with grant date fair value of $32011 each and

For Dr Moriarty chair of our Finance Committee for fiscal year 2012 restricted stock units with grant date

fair value of $8003

Ms Burton retired from our Board of Directors in June 2012 Amounts listed in the Stock Awards eel uinn em forfeited

upon her departure from the Board

Dr Faust joined our Board in June 2012 Amounts listed in the Stock Awards column include her initial grant and an

annual award prorated for half year of Board service

Amounts listed in the All Other Compensation column includes payments made to Mr King in connection with correcting

tax filing deficiencies due to Staples inadvertent failure to withhold U.S and Massachusetts taxes as required due to Mr
Kings status as foreign citizen in tax years 200720ll Reimbursements to Mr King include interest and penalties

imposed by U.S and Massachusetts tax authorities for late payment and ii taxes owed with respect to the reimbursements

The amounts are pending final resolution uith U.S tax authorities
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis CDA
The Compensation Committee the Committee ofourBoard ofDirectors the Board consists ofindependent directors

who oversee our executive compensation program review our compensation strategy and determine all compensation for our

executive officers This section describes the compensation program for our Chief Executive Officer CEO Chief Financial

Officer CEOand three other most highly compensated executive officers for 2012 whom we collectively refer to as our named
executive officers NEOs Our NEOs include

Ronald Sargent CEO
Christine Komola CFO
Michael Miles Chief Operating Officer employment ended on February 2013
Joseph Doody President North American Commercial NAC
Demos Parneros President North American Stores Online NASO
John Mahoney our former Vice Chairman and CFO is also an NEO as he served as our CFO for the first three days of

fiscal 2012 discussion of Mr Mahoneys 2012 compensation is discussed separately in 2012 Compensation for Departing

NEOs on page 33

Executive Summary

The primary objective of our compensation program is to align executive pay with long term stockholder value creation

Accordingly the 2012 compensation of our NEOs declined an average of 26% as compared to 2011 demonstrating our programs
design which emphasizes at risk pay

Staples is the worlds largest office products company and second largest internet retailer We operate highly complex
multi-channel business and we currently serve businesses of all sizes and consumers in 26 countries In September 2012 Staples

announced strategic plan to accelerate growth and outlined our vision every product your business needs to succeed As the

Committee considered the compensation program for 2013 it focused on driving the highest level of engagement of our executive

team to lead the organization through its strategic reinvention and the importance of attracting and retaining world class talent

capable ofreshaping our business To motivate our executives to execute on the key priorities ofthis plan including to aggressively

pursue growth opportunities improve cross channel coordination and adapt the business to meet the changing needs of our diverse

customer base the Committee made further changes to our compensation program for fiscal year 2013 These changes include

increasing the
percentage of compensation that is performance-based or at risk re-tooling the goals to prioritize sales growth

incorporating relative TSR performance measure and overall streamlining the long term incentive program into single clement

of performance shares These changes which align with feedback we received from our stockholders are discussed in more detail

below

ts
Developed and launched company-wide strategic reinvention plan

Reorganized North American business structure by combining our retail and online businesses to better meet

the changing needs of our customers

More than tripled our assortment on Staples.com ending the year with l00000 products

Announced plan to improve retail store productivity in North America by reducing square footage by 15

percent by 2015

Launched plan to achieve $250 million of annual pre-tax cost savings by 2015
Restructured European businesses including closure of 15 percent of European stores

Generated operating cash flow of $1.2 billion and invested $350 million in capital expenditures resulting in free cash

flow of $870 million

Remained committed to retuming excess cash to shareholders with share repurchase and cash dividends totaling $743

million
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Stockholder Feedback and Say-on-Pay Results In evaluating the 2013 compensation program the Committee carefully

evaluated the results of our 2012 advisory vote on executive compensation and the feedback from our annual stockholder outreach

program served as an important resource The table below illustrates how 2013 changes are in line with stockholder feedback

For discussion of the stockholder outreach program and the impact on other governance changes please see the Corporate

Governance section of this proxy statement

relative TSR multiplier will be based on performance

over three year performance period

We also have enhanced our disclosure in several areas in
response to stockholder feedback In this CDA we have

provided charts for each pay element showing the target awards and where applicable payouts in our discussion of each

performance-based pay element We also have included discussion below about how we set our goals In the future we also

intend to adj List our review of relative pay to use the realizable pay formula recommended by ISS in its 2013 U.S Summary
guidelines

2012 Changes Following the 2011 advisory vote on executive compensation the Committee made certain changes that

took effect in 2012 These changes are reflected in the 2012 compensation which is the subject of this CDA These changes

ineluded

Revised long term cash incentive program goals from annual goals to year cumulative goal

Decreased use of stock options and increased use of performance-based long term cash incentives

market median rather than 75th percentile for long term incentives

lncluded different measures of performance for annual and long term incentive goals

Decreased stockholder dilution by replacing equity incentives with cash for associates below the director level

increase focus on pay for performance long term incentive is 100% performance-based

decrease emphasis on options and time vested
annual grants of stock options eliminated

restricted stock
annual grants of time vested restricted stock eliminated

ua1 cash bonus awards EPS total company sales

and sales beyond office supplies
over reliance on similarmetrics in both short

and long term incentive programs new performance shares RONA% and sales growth
with relative TSR multiplier

consider relative performance metric
relative TSR component added to long term incentive

program

unclear if long term incentives reward long

term performance
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Pay Philosophy and Mix

We seek to achieve our executive compensation objectives by relying on the compensation philosophy articulated below and

through the use of the four compensation components summarized in the table that follows In deteimining the amount and mix

of compensation elements for each NEO the Committee relies upon its judgment and rot upon rigid guor lbnrwas

Pay Philosophy

The Committee periodically reviews its pay philosophy Our current pay philosophy is as follows

Our executive compensation philosophy is that sign/icant portion of compensation should be cliicetly linked to S2aples

overall performance spec/ically

Compensation program is payforperformancethas ccl with excellent results yielding relatively high puj and poor ir oils

yielding relatively low pay
Salaries and incentives are targeted to median of our peer group

Pay Mix

The table below summarizes the core elements of our 2012 compensaton program for our IN LOs

Annual Cash Awards__Md Equity Mvards

Principal Attracts retains and Focuses exeeutises Rewards achievement of long term busniess

Contributions rewards talented on annual financial and objectives and stockholder value creation

to
executives with annual operating results

Compensation
salary that reflects the

eujectives Propels engagement in long term stm
executives Links compensation

vision with upside for superior performance
performance skill set to strategic plan

and value in the

marketplace Enables total cash
Retain successful and tenur managnent

compensation to
tea is

remain competitive

within the marketplace

for executive talent

Performance EPS sales and year cumulatisc limesested restricted

Goals
operating income RONA stock 5Oo cst in

yesrs rernaiimiimg cst in

years Stock optons
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Changes to the 2013 Perjbrmance-Based Annual Cash Bonus

Beginning in fiscal 2013 the performance objectives will be EPS 50% total company sales 25% and sales beyond

office supplies 25% The metrics are directly linked to our strategy for growing sales particularly beyond our core categories

on Term Incentives

In 2012 the Committee relied upon portfolio approach to long term incentives that included mix of long term cash

incentive awards 40% of long term compensation target value stock options 30% of total long term compensation target value
and time-based restricted stock 30% of long term compensation target value This was shift from the previous year of long

term cash incentive awards 31% of long term compensation target value stock options 41-42% long term compensation target

value and time-based restricted stock 27-28% of long term compensation target value In the Committees view at the time of

grant in 2012 the chosen mix of long term equity awards and long term cash struckthe appropriate balance in providing performance-

based incentives that were aligned with stockholder interests and supporting retention of our talented senior executive team in

continually challenging economic environment

2012 Equity Awards Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

The Committee granted annual equity awards to all eligible associates 811 associates in 19 countries including the

NEOs on July 2012 Awards to the NEOs included

Stock options with an exercise price equal to the closing price on the grant date vesting ratably over four-year

period and

Tenure-based restricted stock vesting 50% on the second anniversary of the grant date and 50% on the third

anniversary of the
grant date

Annual time-based equity grants are awarded around the mid-point of our fiscal year after our prior year performance

appraisal and bonus award processes have been completed to serve as an additional recognition event that may drive current

year and future performance

2012 Long Term Cash Awards Amended andRestated Long Term Cash Incentive Plan

Beginning in fiscal 2012 the performance objectives for our long term cash awards changed from EPS RONA and sales

to single performance objective RONA In addition and in response to stockholder feedback rather than setting annual goals

each year over the three year performance period cumulative three year RONA goal as set at the beginning of the performance

period At the end of the three year period the Committee will certify results based on the cumulative three
year RONA The

Committee believes that RONA along with revenue growth are appropriate measures of long term value creation and are theiefore

appropriate long term incentive metrics

The Committee approed the target awards for the NEOs for the 2012-2014 award for our long term cash awards as

noted in the table Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2012 Fiscal Year The award was made on July 2012 We will disclose

the year cumulative RONA goal and the level of achievement against the goal after the performance period is completed

For the outstanding 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 long term cash awards under the 2010 Long Term Cash Incentive Plan

one third of the target award is applied as target amount for each of the three fiscal
years

within the performance cycle At the

end of the performance cycle the Committee upon the certification of the results will determine the amount of the payment to

be made to participant by adding the amounts earned in each component year of the performance period with each years payment

reflecting proven performance in relation to the goals achieved for that 12 month period For the 2012 plan year of these awards

the Committee approved EPS sales and operating Income as the performance metrics The goals are the same as the annual cash

bonus plan
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Retirement and Other Benefits

We do not have defined benefit pension plan in which our NEOs participate However our NEOs are eligible to

participate in defined contribution plans These plans include standard 40 1k qualified plan and Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan SERP Both plans are fully funded by the NEOs and supported by Staples through limited matching

contributions They are also eligible to participate in our 40 1k qualified plan on the same basis as our other salaried associates

howevei their contributions are limited to 2% of eligible compensation Due to the limitations on our officers ability to contribute

to our 401k plan we have the SERF which is non-qualified deferred compensation plan generally intended to provide comparable

benefits above the applicable limits of our 401k qualified plan Under the SERP officers of Staples may defer total of
up to

100% of their base salary bonus and long term cash incentive awards and receive matching contributions up to maximum of

4% of base salary and bonus

Additionally the NEOs are eligible to participate in standard health and welfare programs on the same basis as our other

salaried associates These programs include medical dental vision disability and supplemental life insurance We also have an

Executive Benefits Program consisting of life insurance long term care insurance supplemental long term disability survivor

benefit plan and an executive physical and registry program This program was implemented to enhance our retirement and benefit

offerings for senior management and to further support our efforts to attract and retain top talent All senior officers of Staples

including the NEOs are eligible to participate in this program For each plan or policy described above that requires payment of

periodic premiums or other contributions we generally pay such premiums or other contributions for the benefit of each NEO

Executive Perquisites

Our executive compensation program is relatively free of perquisites The Committee views our limited executive

perquisites as reasonable and very limited compared to our peer group companies To reinforce this position the Committee has

in past years adopted formal policies regarding personal use of our leased aircraft and reimbursement for tax planning services

for senior officers Most recently the Committee adopted policy prohibiting gross up payments to cover taxes triggered by

change in control in any future compensation severance or employment-related agreement

Aircraft Policy Under our aircraft policy our CEO is permitted to use our leased aircraft for personal use so long as

the incremental cost to Staples is treated as compensation income to our CEO Subject to prior approval by our CEO and similar

compensation treatment other NEOs may also use our leased aircraft for personal use There was no personal use of our leased

aircraft during our 2012 fiscal year

Tax Services Reimbursement Program We reimburse each NEO other than our CEO up to $5000 each year for tax

estate or financial planning services or advice from pre-approved list of service providers that must not include our outside

auditors Our CEO is reimbursed up to $50000 each
year

for these services The Committee annually reviews the amounts paid

under this policy for compliance The reimbursements are not grossed up for taxes

Policy against reimbursement of excise tax on change in control payments In March 2011 the Committee adopted

policy that unless required by law prohibits Staples from entering into any future compensation severance or employment-

related agreement that provides for
gross up payment to cover taxes triggered by change in control including taxes payable

under Section 280G of the U.S Internal Revenue Code Under the terms of Mr Sargents long standing severance benefits

agreement we would reimburse Mr Sargent for any excise tax due under Section 280G ofthe U.S Internal Revenue Code incurred

in connection with termination without cause or resignation for good reason following change in control of Staples Mr Sargent

is the only executive with this benefit

2012 Compensation for Departing NEOs

John Mahoney In September 2011 Staples announced that effective February 2012 Ms Komola would succeed

John Mahoney as CFO however Mr Mahoney remained Vice Chairman until his retirement on July 2012 ln connection with

his departure Staples entered into an agreement with Mr Mahoney for advisory services as consultant Pursuant to the agreement

Mr Mahoney agreed to provide advisory services for period of eight months beginning July 2012 and continuing until March

2013 at rate of $37500 per month for total compensation of $300000 As consultant Mr Mahoney is not eligible for

any additional health or welfare benefits Mr Mahoney did not receive any 2012 equity awards

Michael Miles Staples announced the resignation of Mr Miles in December 2012 effective on the last day of our 2012

fiscal year This event entitled Mr Miles to severance pay and benefits under his existing severance agreement See Payments

Upon Termination or Change-in-Control in this proxy statement for discussion of the severance benefits paid to Mr Miles In

addition beginning on February 2013 Mr Miles is employed on part time basis to consult on transitional matters related to
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sum of base salary annual cash bonus value of annual stock options as reported in our proxy statement value of the restricted

stock awards as reported in the proxy statement and the value of long term incentive grants at target

er Group

The Committee plans to review our peer group every three years The most recent comprehensive review of our peer

group was performed in September 2012 The peer group analysis was conducted by the Committees independent consultant The

current peer group was analyzed using proprietary model to compare the fit of each of the peer group companies to Staples

profile based on industry company size market valuation and performance The composition of our peer group goes beyond just

retailers and business to business competitors The Committee compared the scores of the peer group companies to the scores of

fifleen other potential peer companies that fit the profile Based on quantitative and qualitative assessment the Committee decided

no.t to make any changes to the existing peer group The companies in our peer group are

Amazon.com Inc Kohls Corporation Starbucks Corp

Best Buy Co Inc Limited Brands Inc Sysco Corporation

Costco Wholesale Corporation Lowes Companies Inc Target Corporation

edEx Corporation Macys Inc The TJX Companies Inc

Gap Inc Office Depot Inc Walgreen Co

Home Depot Inc OfficeMax Incorporated Xerox Corporation

J.C Penney Company Inc Safeway Inc

iojflg
Based on its review of the data the Committees key findings for the 2012 NEOs are summarized in the table below Our

findings for our CEOs benchmarking review are presented earlier in the Executive Summary The table below reflects our findings

retative to our peers of how our CEO CFO and NAC and NASO Presidents base salary total cash compensation realizable

TDC and TDC as reported in our proxy statement compared over the 2011 period to total shareholder retum EPS growth revenue

growth and return on invested capital
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On balance our three
year perfonnance and total cash and realizable TDC all were generally aligned and were

below the median for the CEO
The one year realizable TDC for all the NEOs was at or below the 25th

percentile of the peer group

The one year reported TDC for all the NEOs approximated the lower third of the
peer group

Recognizing the importance of an even stronger emphasis on pay for performance and accounting for feedback from our stockholder

outreach program the Committee decided to eliminate time based restricted stock and stock options for our executive officers and

to replace them with performance shares beginning in fiscal year 2013

Tally Sheets/Termination Scenarios

For our NEOs the Committee reviews all components of compensation including salary bonus current vested and

unvested long term incentive compnsation the current value of owned shares and cost to us of all perquisites and benefits In

addition the Committee periodically reviews similar information for other senior executives The Committee also reviews the

projected payout obligations under potential retirement termination severance and change-in-control scenarios to fully understand

the financial impact of each of these scenarios to Staples and to the executives Documentation detailing the above components

and scenarios with their respective dollar amounts was prepared by management for each of our NEOs and reviewed by the

Committee in March 2012 This information was prepared based on compensation data as of the end of fiscal
year 2011 and

assumed that the various scenarios occurred at the end of fiscal
year 2011 Similar termination scenario information with respect

to our 2012 fiscal year is presented under the heading Potential Payments upon Termination or Change-in-Control Based on

this review and the views of the Committees independent compensation consultant the Committee found the total compensation

for each of our NEOs under these various scenarios to be reasonable Many factors were considered including but not limited

to the contributions of the executive to Staples the financial performance of Staples the marketplace the particular contemplated

scenario and the guidance provided by the compensation consultant

Input from Management

Certain officers within our Human Resources department regularly attend Committee meetings to provide information

and recommendations regarding our executive compensation program including the Executive Vice President ofHuman Resources

and Vice President ofCompensation and Benefits Among other things these officers present our CEOs recommendations regarding

any change in the base salary bonus equity compensation goals related to performance-based cash or equity compensation and

other benefits of other senior executives These officers also compile other relevant data at the request of the Committee The

CEOs recommendations are based in part on the results of annual performance reviews of the other executives The Committee

is not bound by such recommendations but generally takes them into consideration before making final determinations about the

compensation of such executives other than our CEO The CEO at the discretion of the Committee may be invited to attend all

or part of any Committee meeting to discuss compensation matters pertaining to the other executives and in fiscal 2012 he attended

four of the five Committee meetings When discussing compensation matters pertaining to our CEO the Committee generally

meets in executive sessions with its independent compensation consultant without any member of management present

Administration of Incentive Plans

The Board and the Committee through delegated powers have broad discretion in administering the cash and stock

incentive plans This discretion includes the authority to grant awards determine target awards and select performance objectives

and goals along with the ability to adopt amend and repeal such administrative rules guidelines and practices as deemed advisable

In addition the Committee has broad discretion to modif awards and determine goal attainment and the payment of awards under

each plan The Committee may determine to what extent if any specific items are to be counted in the relevant financial measures

for any particular business and whether special one-time or extraordinary gains and/or losses and/or extraordinary events should

or should not be included or considered in the calculation of goals For the cash incentive plans the Committee can decrease but

not increase cash awards

The Board has delegated authority to the Chairman and CEO to grant stock options restricted stock units and restricted

stock to non-executive employees out of an annual pool of 600000 shares On October 2012 special new hire stock option

award was granted for 426812 stock options to John Wilson who joined the company as President Staples Europe These stock

options included pro rata 2012 award as well as additional stock options in lieu of fiscal 2013 grant The annual pool is

designed to be used between quarterly Committee meetings to facilitate making new hire and retention grants and to reward special

accomplishments and achievements of associates Awards from the annual pool are granted on the earlier of the first business day

of the month that follows appropriate approval or two business days after the Committees ratification of the award
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Related Policies and Considerations

Risk Assessment

In December 2012 the Committee conducted its annual risk assessment of our executive officer compensation programs

The evaluation included an analysis of the appropriateness of our peer group compensation mix performance metrics performance

goals and payout curves payment timing and adjustments equity incentives stock ownership guidelines/trading policies

performance appraisal process and leadership/culture In addition the Committee reviewed the major compensation plans with

regard to the number and type of associates covered performance measures total cost at target of each program and risk mitigators

attributable to each of the programs The risk mitigators included the balanced mix of cash and equity incentives the mix and

quality of the performance metrics the stock ownership guidelines and an aggressive recoupment policy The Committee also

considered and reviewed the executive compensation issues raised by the participants in the Companys corporate governance

outreach program and the changes made to the executive compensation program as described earlier in this CDA Based on its

evaluation and recognizing that all compensation programs are inherently risk laden the Committee determined that the level of

risk within our compensation programs was appropriate and did not encourage excessive risk taking by our executives Accordingly

the Committee concluded that our compensation programs will not have material adverse effect on the Company

Best Practices

We historically have implemented compensation best practices These practices include

No employment agreements for NEOs Double trigger change in control provisions in severance

No tax gross up payments in future agreements
agreements

Stock ownership guidelines
Policy prohibiting hedging

Aggressive clawback policy
Minimal perks

Predetermined stock grant date Independent compensation consultant hired by the Committee

performs no other services for the Company

Some highlights

Stock Ownership Guidelines Within Rcoupnenr Polici Our annual cash fledging Our Insider Trading Policy

fie years of becoming senior bonus plans long term incentive plans and prohibits among many other actions our

executive our senior executi.es must or agreements and severance arrangements associates and directors from entering into

attain minimum ownership of Staples provide fur forfeiture and recovery
of derivative transactions such as puts calls

common stock equal in value to at least undeser ed cash equity and severance or hedges with our stock

defined multiple of their salary The compensation from any associate that

CEO must attain 5x salary engages in certain particularly harmful or

unethical behaviors such as intentional

deceitful acts resulting in improper

personal benefit or injury to the company

fraud or willful misconduct that

significantly contributes to material

financial restatement violation ofthe Code

ithics and breach of key associate

agreements

Our significant policies are located in the Corporate Governance section of our website CULn

Tax and Accounting Implications

Under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code certain executive compensation in excess of $1 million paid to our

CEO and to our three most highly compensated officers other than the CEO and CFO whose compensation is required to be

disclosed to our stockholders under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is not deductible for federal income tax purposes
unless

the executive compensation is awarded under performance-based plan approved by stockholders To maintain flexibility in

compensating executive officers in manner designed to promote varying corporate goals the Committee has not adopted policy
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that all compensation must be deductible The Committee intends to the extent practicable to preserve deductibility under the

Internal Revenue Code of compensation paid to our executive officers while maintaining compensation programs that support

attraction and retention of key executives

All annual cash bonus awards long term cash awards stock options and performance shares awarded to our NEOs are

paid pursuant to plans approved by our stockholders and are potentially deductible for us Time-based restricted stock does not

qua1if for the performance-based exception to Section 162m but the Committee in prior years has determined that the retention

benefit derived from such awards outweighed any potential tax benefit to us

The compensation that we pay to our NEOs is expensed in our financial statements as required by U.S generally accepted

accounting principles As one of many factors the Committee considers the financial statement impact in determining the amount

of and allocation among the elements of compensation Stock-based compensation is accounted for as required under FASB ASC

Topic 718

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee of Staples Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and

Analysis required by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with management and based on this review and discussion recommended

to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement

Compensation Committee

Paul Walsh Chairperson

Carol Meyrowitz

Robert Nakasone
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth at the end of our 2012 fiscal year certain information concerning the compensation of our

CEO CFO and the three other most highly compensated executive officers as well as our former CFO who we refer to collectively

as the named executive officers

Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Principal Awards Awards Compensation Compensation
Position \ear Salar% J2 13 TotalS

Ronald Sargent 2012 1203386 2467504 2467502 336212 6474604

chairman CEO 2011 1174.035 2.272.908 401201 1427.996 584964 8861104

2010 1145400 7692604 3401201 2.448010 477978 15165193

Christine Kornola 2012 430.000 181.208 181.203 58224 850635

CFO

The amounts shown in the Stock Awards and Option Awards columns represent the aggregate grant date fair value of awards computed

in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 718 not the

actual amounts paid to or realized by the named executive officers during our 2012 2011 and 2010 fiscal years An explanation of the

vesting of restricted stock awards and option awards as well as the methodology for payouts under the 2010 Special Performance and

Retention Awards granted in 2010 is discussed in the footnotes to the Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2012 Fiscal Year and Outstanding

Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year End tables below

The fair value of these awards which constitute restricted stock awards is based on the market price of our common stock on the date

of grant For 2010 the amounts also include the 2010 Special Performance and Retention Awards for which the fair value is calculated

at the target share payout as of the grant date

The fair value of each stock option award is estimated as of the date of grant using binomial valuation model Additional information

regarding the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of all stock option awards is included in Note in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our 2012 fiscal year

No amounts were earned in Fiscal 2012 under our Executive Officer Incentive Plan or our Long-Term Cash Incentive Plan as result

of performance below thresholds for payout under these plans

Includes the following items as applicable for each named executive officer

Contributions made on matching basis pursuant to the terms of our 401k plan and Supplemental Executive Retirement

Plan SERP
Dividend equivalents paid on shares of restricted stock granted prior to January 2009

Premiums paid under our executive life insurance and long-term disability plans reimbursement of taxes owed with respect

to such premiums and premiums paid under our long-term care plan In fiscal year 2012 annual premiums paid under our

executive life insurance plan for Messrs Sargent Doody Parneros and Mahoney and Ms Komola were $100000 $50000

$30000 $55000 and $19304 respectively There was no annual premium paid for Mr Miles in 2012 Mr Miles life

insurance coverage is in the form of Death Benefit Only providing for Staples to pay his beneficiary upon his death In fiscal

Joseph Doody 606708 650705 650702 122515 2030630

President North 2011 591910 577606 909401 482312 164948 2726177
American

2010 538100 1733818 909403 643060 92345 3916726
Commercial

JohnJ.Mahoney 2012 31l7
Former Vice 2011 710940
Chairman CFO

2010 693600

996103 1552601

2923105 1552603

613615

1031242

201620

138529

700787

4074879

6339079
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year 2012 annual premiums paid under our long-term disability plans for Messrs Sargent Miles and Parneros were $16836

$3697 and $3569 respectively

Tax preparation services

Executive physical and registry program and

Miscellaneous payments described in the All Other Compensation table

Effective February 2012 Ms Komola succeeded Mr Mahoney as CFO Mr Mahoney retired as Vice Chairman effective July

2012

Effective February 2013 Mr Miles resigned as President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company

The table below sets forth the dollar amounts that we paid for each applicable item listed above

Executive Long- Long-
Dividend Life Term Term Tax

Name Vear 401k SERP Equialents Insurance Disability Care Serb ices Physical Misc

Ronald 2012 $2500 $76715 5037 $171527 28878 1555 $50000

Sargent 2011 2450 111925 167.813 222318 28.903 1555 50000

2010 2450 99.142 173654 121030 30147 1555 50000

ChristineT 2012 2.500 18.760 28264 1.022 326 2.650 3702
Komola

2012 2500 35837 1526 73206 1796 5000

2011 2450 39971 5252 106850 1796 5000

2010 2450 30659 9035 39776

The Misc column includes

accrued severance payments for Mr Miles as detailed in the Termination Scenarios section of this proxy statement

payments made to Mr Mahoney in connection with consulting agreement for work performed for the Company after his retirement

in July 2012 as described in the Termination Scenarios section of this proxy statement and

payments made to Ms Komola and Mr Parneros as reimbursement for compensation lost as result of compliance with company

policy

All Other Compensation

Joseph

Doody

2650

3629

John

Mahoney 2011 2450 54587

2010 2450 47012

2694 94340 941

9208 119667 8825 1883

15507 59039 7638 1883

262500

5000

5000
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS FOR 2012 FISCAL YEAR

The following table sets forth summary information regarding grants of plan-based awards made to the named executive

officers for our 2012 fiscal year

Estimated Possible All Other All Other

Payouts Under Non-Equity Stock Option
Incentive Plan Awards Awards Awards

7/2/2012 6/3/2012 13907 181208

72/2012 6/3/2012 60.516 13.03 181203

Michael Miles Jr 71094 71 0940 1421.880

148520 1485.200 2970400

7/2/2012 6/3/2012 85496 1114.013

7/2/2012 6/3/2012 372041 13.03 1114000

Joseph Doody 48240 482.398 964.797

86770 867.700 1.735.400

7/2/20 12 6/3/20 12 49939

7/2/2012 6/3/2012 217314

Equity awards were granted pursuant to our Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Non-equity awards were granted pursuant to our

Executive Officer Incentive Plan and our Long Term Cash Incentive Plan

Unless otherwise noted restricted stock vests 50% on the second anniversary of the date of grant and 50% on the third anniversary of

the date of grant The vesting of these restricted stock awards is accelerated in the circumstances described under the caption Accelerated

Vesting of Awards below Named executive officers are not subject to additional holding periods after equity awards vest

Stock options vest 25% per year after the date of grant The exercisability of the options is accelerated in the circumstances described

under the caption Accelerated Vesting of Awards below Named executive officers are not subject to additional holding periods after

such equity awards vest The stock options expire on July 2022 ten years from the date of grant

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock granted on July 2012 is $13.03 per share The grant date fair value of the stock

options granted on July 22012 is $2.99 per share The fair value of each stock option award is estimated as of the date of grant using

binomial valuation model Additional information regarding the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of all stock option awards

is included in Note in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our

2012 fiscal year

In March 2012 the Compensation Committee established the performance objectives for fiscal year 2012 under the Executive Officer

Incentive Plan as well as the threshold target and maximum payment levels These performance objectives were not achieved and

as result no amounts were earned in Fiscal 2012 under our Executive Officer Incentive Plan

In March 2012 the Compensation Committee established the performance objective for the 2012-2014 awards under our Long-Term

Cash Incentive Plan Actual cash payouts will be determined at the end of the performance cycle based on the extent to which the

performance objective is achieved Our Compensation Committee will certify the results and determine the amount of the payment to

be made to participant at the conclusion of the three-year performance cycle No payout will be earned if threshold performance is

not achieved

Messrs Miles and Mahoney will be eligible for pro-rated award under the Long-Term Cash Incentive Plan based on the number of

days worked during the performance cycle

Number of

Shares of

Stock or

Ui

Number of

Securities

Underlying

ions

Exercise

or Base

Price of

Option

Grant Date

Fair Value

of

and

JohnJ Mahoney 31178 311779 623558

148520 1485200 2970400

13.03

650705

650702
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Accelerated Vesting of Awards

Equity Awards Under certain circumstances the vesting or payout of restricted stock stock options and performance

shares may be accelerated as described below

Retirement or Resignation If named executive officer retires or resigns and the
age

of 65 has been attained then

all stock options and restricted stock awards vest or ii the
age

and
years

of service requirements of our Rule of

65 attainment of age 55 plus years of service to Staples is equal to or greater than 65 have been satisfied then all stock

option awards vest in full

Termination of Employment by Staples The 2010 Special Performance and Retention Share Award agreements provide

that if named executive officer is terminated by Staples other than for cause as defined in the award agreement

prior to vesting date all unvested shares shall vest in full

Termination for Cause by Staples All unvested restricted stock stock options and performance shares are forfeited

if named executive officer is terminated for cause

Death or Disability All restricted stock stock options and performance shares vest in full upon named executive

officers death or disability

Change-in-Control Under our standard form of non-qualified stock option agreement change-in-control would result

in partial vesting acceleration of outstanding options and termination without cause or resignation for good reason

within one year after change-in-control would result in acceleration of vesting of all remaining options Under our

standard form of restricted stock award agreement change-in-control would result in acceleration of vesting of all

outstanding restricted shares if the change-in-control results in named executive officer not being offered employment

by the surviving corporation under certain conditions or within one year following the change-in-control the named

executive officers employment is terminated without cause or the officer resigns for good reason Under the 2010

Special Performance and Retention Share Award agreements change-in-control would result in accelerated vesting of

shares if the named executive officer does not accept employment with the surviving corporation upon the change-

in-control or within one year following the change-in-control the named executive officers employment is terminated

without cause or the officer resigns for good reason

Cash Awards Payments of annual cash bonus awards under the Executive Officer Incentive Plan and long term cash

awards under the Long Term Cash Incentive Plan also may be accelerated as described below

Retirement or Resignation If named executive officer terminates his employment before the end of performance

period and if the named executive officer has satisfied the Rule of 65 requirements then the named executive officer is

eligible-for prorated annual cash bonus award based on the number of days the named executive officer was employed

during the plan year and ii prorated long term cash award based on the number of days employed during the

performance cycle named executive officer that terminates employment before the end of the performance cycle that

has not met the requirements of the Rule of 65 is eligible for prorated long term cash award based on completed years

in the performance cycle In each case of eligibility for prorated award the award will only be paid out if the

Compensation Committee certifies achievement ofthe objectives and the payouts at the end of the applicable performance

period

Termination of Employment by Staples If named executive officer is terminated by Staples other than for

cause as defined in the Long Term Cash Incentive Plan the named executive officer is eligible for prorated long

term cash award based on the number of days employed during the performance cycle Prorated awards will only be

paid out if the Compensation Committee certifies achievement of the objectives and the payouts at the end of the

performance cycle

Termination for Cause by Staples All annual cash bonus awards and long term cash awards are forfeited if named

executive officer is terminated for cause

Death Upon named executive officers death before the end of performance period annual cash bonus awards and

long term cash awards will be paid out at 100% of the target award regardless of the amount that would have been earned

based upon achievement of the performance goals

Disability If named executive officers employment is terminated due to disability before the end of any performance

period then the named executive officer is eligible for prorated annual cash bonus award based on the number of

days the named executive officer was employed during the plan year and ii prorated long term cash award based on

the number of days employed during the performance cycle In each case of eligibility for prorated award such prorated
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award will only be paid out if the Compensation Committee certifies achievement of the objectives and the payouts at

the end of the performance period

Change-in-Control change-in-control would entitle named executive officer at the end of the performance cycle to

long term cash award payment equal to the greater of 100% of the target award or the amount earned based on actual

achievement ofthe performance objectives if the named executive officer does not accept employment by the surviving

corporation upon the change-in-control or within one year following the change-in-control the named executive

officers employment is terminated without cause or the officer resigns for good reason
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2012 FISCAL YEAR END

The following table sets forth summary information regarding the outstanding equity awards held by each of the named

executive officers as of the end of our 2012 fiscal year

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Market

Number of Securities Value of

Securities Underlying Number of Shares or

Underlying Unexercised Shares or Units of Stock

Grant Date Jnexercised Options Option Option Units of Stock That Have

Performance Options Unexercisable Exercise Expiration That Ha%e Not Not Vested

Name Share Period Exercisable Price Date Vested

Ronald Sargent 7/2/2012 824.068 13.03 7/2/2022 189371 2558402

7/1/2011 215 753 647.259 15.93 71/2021 142681 1927620

7/1/2010 322 79 322792 19.27 7/1/2020 58976 796766

7/1/2009 487068 162356 20.12 7/1/2019

7/1/2008 603932 24.3 7/1/2018

7/2/2007 557653 24.42 7/2/2017

7/3i2006 431.250 24.5 7/3/2016

6/30/2005 525.000 21.29 6/30/2015

7/1/2004 525.000 19.12 7/1/2014

7/It003 525000 12.88 7/31/2013

1/31/OlO

12/2013
141891 tS.1 1916947

/1/009
1/30/2010

43942 593656

christine Kornola 7/2/2012 60516 13.03 7/2/2022 13.907 187.884

71/2011 9851 29555 15.9 7/1/2021 6.341 85667

9/15/2010 4059 54837

7/1/2010 14.739 14.739 19.27 7/1/2020 2.62 35.410

711/2009 22239 7.414 20.12 7/1/2019

T1i2008 18.736 24.3 7/1/2018

72/2007 17300 24.42 7/2/2017

7R/2006 14.075 24.5 7/3/201

6/30/2005 18000 21.29 6/30/2015

7/1/2004 18000 19.12 7/1/2014

7/ 2003 18.000 12.88 7i31/2013

007 7115
1/30/2010

Michael Miles Jr 72/2012 37204 13.03 7/2/2022 85496 1155051

71/201 98488 295465 15.93 7/1/2021 62530 844780

7/1/2010 147350 147.350 19.27 7/1/2020 25846 349.179

7/1/2009 222336 74.112 20.12 7/1/2019

71/2008 275682 24.3 7/1/2018

7/2/2007 254.557 24.42 7/2/2017

7/3/2006 33.979 24.5 7/3/2016

7/3/2006 196875 24.5 7/3/2016

6/30/2005 225000 21.29 6/30/2015

7/1/2004 225.000 19.12 7/1/2014

10/12003 225000 16.2666 10/31/2013

1/31/2010
5045 t5 681593

20059 270997
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Joseph

Doody

Number of Market

Number of Securities Value of

Securities Underlying Number of Shares or

Underlying Unexercised Shares or Units of Stock

Grant Date Unexercised Options Option Option Units of Stock That Have

Performance Options Unexercisable Exercise Expiration That Have Not Not Vested

Share Period Exercisable Price Date Vested

7/2/2012 217314 13.03 7/2/2022 49939 674676

7/1/2011 57687 173062 15.93 7/1/2021 36259 489859

7/1/2010 86307 86307 19.27 7/1/2020 14988 202488

7/1/2009 130231 43411 20.12 7/1/2019

7/1/2008 161478 24.3 7/1/2018

7/2/2007 149104 24.42 7/2/2017

7/3/2006 14843 24.5 7/3/2016

7/3/2006 115325 24.5 7/3/2016

6/30/2005 75000 21.29 6/30/2015

7/1/2004 75000 19.12 7/1/2014

1/31/2010
30270

2/2/2013
408948

2/1/2009

1/30/2010
11750 158743

John

Mahoney

7/1/2011

7/1/20 10

7/1/2009

7/1/2008

7/2/2007

7/3/2006

7/3/2006

6/30/2005

7/1/2004

2/1/2009

1/30/20 10

275682

254557

33979

196875

150000

150000

24.3

24.42

24.5

24.5

21.29

19.12

7/1/202

7/1/2020

7/1/20 19

7/1/20 18

7/2/2017

7/3/20 16

7/3/2016

6/30/2015

7/1/2014

20059 270997

Stock options vest 25% per year after the date of grant The exercisability of the options is accelerated in the circumstances described

under the caption Accelerated Vesting of Awards following the Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2012 Fiscal Year table above

The expiration date is typically the tenth anniversary of the date of grant

Unless otherwise noted restricted stock vests 50% on the second anniversary of the date of grant and 50% on the third anniversary of

the date ofgrant The vesting ofthese restricted stock awards is accelerated in the circumstances described under the caption Accelerated

Vesting of Awards following the Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2012 Fiscal Year table above

Based on the fair market value of our common stock on February 2013 $13.51 per share

Performance shares were paid out in March 2013 based on achievement of the performance objectives for fiscal years 2010 through

2012 Awarded shares vest 33% immediately an additional 33% vest in March 2014 and the remaining 34% vest in March 2015

Performance shares were paid out in March 2010 based on achievement of the performance objectives for fiscal year 2009 Awarded

shares vested 33% in March 2011 an additional 33% vested in March 2012 and the remaining 34% vested in March 2013
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED DURING 2012 FISCAL YEAR

The following table summarizes the option exercises and vesting of stock awards for each of the named executive officers

during our 2012 fiscal year

Name of Executive

Officer

Value Realized

Upon Exercise

Value Realized

on VestingS

Represents the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of our common stock on the date of exercise

Represents the fair market value of the stock award on the date of vesting

NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION FOR 2012 FISCAL YEAR

The following table sets forth summary information with respect to each of the named executive officers regarding

contributions to our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERF for our 2012 fiscal year

These contribution amounts are included in the All Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table

included in this proxy statement

Mr Mahoney took distribution of his SERP in connection with his retirement in July 2012

Our SERP is non-qualified deferred compensation plan which is generally intended to provide comparable benefits above

the applicable limits of our 401k qualified plan Our SERP provides participants with range of well diversified investment

options similar to our 401k plan Eligible executives including the named executive officers may contribute up to 100% of their

base salary and annual cash bonus and will receive matching contributions in cash equal to 100% of each dollar saved up to

maximum of 4% of base salary and bonus The matching contributions generally vest 20%
per year during the first five

years
of

service based on hours worked during calendar year After five
years

of service participants are generally fully vested in all

matching contributions All of our named executive officers are fully vested in their SERP balances Benefits generally are paid

to the participant in accordance with predefined distribution schedule based on the requirements of Section 409A under the

Internal Revenue Code Executives may also contribute portion of their Long Term Cash Incentive Plan payments however

they will not receive matching contributions from us

Option Awards

Number of

Shares Acquired
on Exercise

Stock Awards

Number of

Shares Acquired

Upon Vesting

Ronald Sargent 562500 1241373 4779 16 7217126

Christine Komola 6.423 88517

Michael Miles Jr 63847 880141

Joseph Doody 26736 376397

Demos Parneros 84499 230.641 37245 513540

John Mahoney 150.000 89.135 45.905 645998

Name

Executive Company Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions Contributions Earnings in Withdrawals Balance at

in Last FY in Last FY Last FY Distributions Last FYE

RonaldL Sargent 287716 76715 43148 5084204

Christine Kornola 35041 18.760 62.503 564.999

Michael Miles 40133 40133 21959 810312

Joseph Doody 313270 35.837 538.308 5.63523

Demos Parneros 49064 34879 81842 964297

John Mahoney1 47327 26033 151585 1802935
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

The tables below show the estimated incremental value transfer to each current named executive officer under various

scenarios relating to termination of employment The tables below and the discussion that follows assume that such termination

occurred on February 2013 The actual amounts that would be paid to any named executive officer can only be determined at

the time of an actual termination of employment and would vary from those listed below The estimated amounts listed below are

in addition to any retirement welfare and other benefits that are available to associates generally

FISCAL 2012 TERMINATION SCENARIOS

Termination

Retirement Termination Resignation Following Change-

or Termination Without for Good Change-in- in-Control Death or

Resignation for Cause Cause Reason Control Only Disability

Ronald 1. Sargent

ash Seeranee Pa mclii 474994 4.S4904 l235

Value of Accelerated etinn

of lncentie

ompensatum 3.S$ t.I8S.94S 395.53 13 67.991 98.888 13677.991

onumiaflon of BeneIit 14.S5l 55 381 .54 565 Th5 5O5.55 .195.838

Sun ior Death Benelit

Paoui
-- 7.822009

l\LISC and 46
rscdup

lolal 410103 14550 13.445.233 5836.242 21556.132 98.888 .5 22695838

Termination Termination

Retirement Without Cause or Following Change-

or Termination Resignation Change-in- in-Control Death or

Resignation for Cause for Good Reason ontrol OnI Disabilits

Chrh.tine Komola

Cash SL\erance Panient 549.885 24.532 --

Value 01 Accelerated eiin
of ncenti\

compcnalion
762.090 262 762090

onlinuation of Benctit 39.618 59.740

Stirs nI Death Bene lii

laout 50500

Total 589506 .5 1646662 7.262 2267090

Joseph Dood

Cash Sc eranee Pa nient 924.396 1.386594

Value of Aeceleratd esimg

of lneenti.e

ompensatum 04.311 -- 513258 494 739 26.078 44.739

continuation of BencIii 9.142 9.142 91.479 329110

Stir or Death Bend it

Pa.oui
2669.a15

lotal 113.453 9142 1.529.133 .5 5.014.233 26078 6.164254

Demos Parneros

Cash Se eranee Pa mciii --
991.500 .487250

alue of Accelerated Vciintt

01 Incenthe

Compensation
408 948 3.494 739 26078 494739

Continuation of Benefits 62.863 94605

Surs ivor Death Benetit

Paout 2669515

Total 1463.3i1 5.076.597 26.078 6.164.254

Value of Accelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation in the case of death or disability includes the payout at death for the Long

Term Cash Incentive Plan since the death benefit is higher than the disability benefit All other values are the same for death or disability

Includes year Executive Officer Incentive Plan payout at target in addition to any Survivor Death Benefit Payout

Under the terms of Mr Sargents long standing severance benefits agreement we would reimburse Mr Sargent for any excise tax due

under Section 280G of the U.S Internal Revenue Code incurred in connection with termination without cause or resignation for
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good reason following change in control of Staples Based on the estimated amounts as of year end no excise tax would be due

Mr Sargent is the only executive with this benefit and in March 2011 the Committee adopted policy that unless required by law

prohibits Staples from entering into any future compensation severance or employment related agreement that provides for gross

up payment to cover taxes triggered by change in control including taxes payable under Section 280G

Payouts subject to 409A regulations

See below for additional explanation of the terms of these payments and our assumptions calculating them In addition

please see the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement

Retirement or Resignation

The Retirement or Resignation column includes

Value ofAccelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation For Messrs Sargent and Doody who have met the

age and service requirement under our Rule of65 as described under the caption Accelerated Vesting ofAwards following

the Grants of Plan Based Awards for 2012 Fiscal Year table earlier in this proxy statement amounts represent the actual

value of all unvested stock options as of fiscal
year

end

Continuation ofBenefits The continuation of benefits for Messrs Sargent and Doody represents the provision

of long-term care coverage beginning at age 65 under group long-term care insurance plan

Termination for Cause

The Termination for Cause column includes

Continuation of Benefits The continuation of benefits for Messrs Sargent and Doody represents the provision

of long-term care coverage beginning at age 65 under group long-term care insurance plan

Termination without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason

We have entered into severance benefits agreements with each of the named executive officers that provide compensation

following termination without cause or resignation for good reason The circumstances constituting cause or good reason are

specifically described in the severance benefits agreements for the named executive officers which are listed as exhibits to our

most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and our cash and equity incentive plans if applicable In general under the severance

benefit agreements and our incentive plans

termination will be for cause if the named executive officer has willfully failed to perform his or her duties breached

any confidentiality or non-compete agreement with us or engaged in misconduct that harms us and

the named executive officer will have good reason to resign if we significantly diminish his or her authority or

responsibilities reduce his or her salary or eligibility for bonus and other benefits or require that he or she relocate

their office more than 50 miles following change-in-control of Staples

The Termination without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason column includes

Cash Severance Payments For Mr Sargent the amount represents the continuation of salary and bonus

24 months and forMs Komola and Messrs Doody and Pameros amounts represent the continuation of salary and bonus

for 12 months

Value of Accelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation For Mr Sargent pursuant to his severance benefit

agreement the amount represents the actual value of all unvested stock options and restricted stock as of fiscal year end

For Mr Doody who has met the age and service requirement under our Rule of 65 the amount represents the actual

value of all unvested stock options as of fiscal year end For all named executive officers amounts represent the actual

value of all unvested 2010 Special Performance and Retention Shares

Continuation of Benefits The continuation of benefits represents health and dental insurance coverage for the

severance period as well as executive life insurance For Messrs Sargent and Doody amounts also include the provision

of long-term care coverage beginning at age 65 under group long-term care insurance plan The amounts listed are

estimates based on the current policies in place after applying reasonable benefit cost trend
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Termination Following Change-in-Control

Under our severance benefits agreements with the named executive officers if we terminate the named executive officers

employment without cause or the named executive officer resigns for good reason within two years following change-in-control

of Staples the named executive officer would receive payments in addition to those triggered by termination without cause or

resignation for good reason The circumstances constituting change-in-control of Staples are specifically described in the

severance benefits agreements for the named executive officers which are listed as exhibits to our most recent Annual Report on

Form 10-K In general change-in-control will occur

if another person becomes the owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of our stock

there is an unwelcome change in majority of the members of our Board or

our stockholders approve merger with another entity in which our stockholders fail to own more than 75% of

the combined voting power of the surviving entity

The Termination Following Change-in-Control column includes

Cash Severance Payments For Mr Sargent amounts represent the continuation of salary and bonus for 36 months

and for Ms Komola and Messrs Doody and Parneros amounts represent the continuation of salary and bonus for

18 months

Value ofAccelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation For all named executive officers amounts represent

the actual value of all unvested stock options restricted stock and other than Ms Komola 2010 Special Performance

and Retention Share Awards each as of fiscal year end ii with respect to the 2011-2013 long term cash awards the

target value of the award minus amounts earned through 2012 fiscal year end if amounts already earned were below

target and iii with respect to the 2012-2014 long term cash award the target value of the award

Continuation of Benefits The continuation of benefits represents health and dental insurance coverage for the

severance period as well as executive life insurance For Messrs Sargent and Doody amounts also include the provision

of long-term care coverage beginning at age 65 under group long-term care insurance plan The amounts listed are

estimates based on the current policies in place after applying
reasonable benefit cost trend

Change-in-Control Only

The Change-in-Control Only column includes

Value ofAccelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation For all named executive officers amounts represent

25% of the actual value of all unvested stock options as of fiscal year end

Death or Disability

The Death or Disability column includes

Value ofAccelerated Vesting of Incentive Compensation For all named executive officers amounts represent

the actual value of all unvested stock options restricted stock and other than Ms Komola 2010 Special Performance

and Retention Share Awards each as of fiscal
year end ii with respect to the 2011-2013 long term cash awards the

target value of the award minus amounts earned through 2012 fiscal year end and iiiwith respect to the 2012-2014

long term cash award the target value of the award for disability the named executive officer is eligible for prorated

award based on number of days employed during the performance cycle

Survivor Death Benefit Payout For all named executive officers amounts represent payouts of 100% of base

salary for the first
year

and 50% of base salary for the second and third years made monthly over period of three years

Not included in the table above are the death benefit payouts from insurance policies for which the named executive

officers pay the premiums Payouts under these policies would be $1820123 $1820123 and $1290000 for Messrs

Doody and Pameros and Ms Komola respectively Mr Sargents life insurance coverage is in the form of second-to-

die policy providing for payments either upon the latter of his death or his wifes death For purposes of the table above

we have assumed that payments under this policy which would amount to approximately $12690000 are not triggered

Continuation ofBenefits For Mr Sargent amount represents the costs ofcontinuation ófexecutive life insurance

premiums needed to support the $12690000 death benefit

If the termination is due to the named executive officers disability he or she would be entitled to receive distribution from

our SERP generally in accordance with the plan provisions and any predefined distribution schedule based on the requirements
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of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code The named executive officer would also be entitled to receive disability payments

from our disability carriers if the named executive officer has enrolled in such policy Disability coverage
is generally designed

to replace 60% of the named executive officers compensation up to $600000 for each of the named executive officers who

participated in the group disability plan on July 2005 The disability benefit payouts from disability insurance policies for which

the named executive officer pays the premiums are not inclUded in the table above In addition executive life insurance premiums

will be continued to age 65 as necessary to support the life insurance coverage in place at the time of disability

Agreements Affecting Payments

We provide for forfeiture and
recovery

of undeserved cash equity and severance compensation from any associate that

engages in misconduct We also view recoupment as risk management and asset recovery tool for dealing with particularly

harmful or unethical behaviors such as intentional deceitful acts resulting in improper personal benefit or injury to the company
fraud or willful misconduct that significantly contributes to material financial restatement violation of the Code of Ethics and

breach of key associate agreements For instance each of the named executive officers has executed Non-Competition and Non-

Solicitation Agreement and Confidentiality Agreement that cover the two year period subsequent to termination of his

employment Violation of any of the terms of these agreements entitles us to recover any severance payments and value received

in connection with any equity awards

Actual Payments for 2012 Terminations

Mr Miles resigned as COO from the Company on February 2013 Pursuant to the terms of his severance agreement

Mr Miles is entitled to $1786590 in cash severance payments equaling 18 months of salary and bonus The payments are

subject to month deferral in accordance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and will

subsequently be paid in monthly installments Mr Miles is also entitled to reimbursement of medical and other welfare

benefits for 18 months following his resignation with an approximate value of $16878 Mr Miles is entitled to amounts

earned under his long-term cash awards as disclosed in the Summary Compensation Tablein prior years and for shares paid out

under his 2010 Special Performance and Retention Award as disclosed in the Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year

End Beginning on February 2013 Mr Miles will be employed on part-time basis to consult on transitional matters related

to the Companys international affairs and operations In consideration of providing these services through August 2013 he

will be entitled to $1000 month While serving in this role he will not be eligible for any other cash or new equity incentives

and his existing equity awards will remain outstanding

Mr Mahoney retired as Vice Chairman on July 2012 In connection with his departure we entered into an

agreement with Mr Mahoney for advisory services as consultant Pursuant to the agreement Mr Mahoney agreed to

provide the services for period of eight months beginning July 2012 and continuing until March 2013 at rate of

$37500 per month for total compensation of $300000 While serving in this role he will not be eligible for any other cash

or new equity incentives and his existing equity awards will remain outstanding As consultant Mr Mahoney is not eligible

for any additional health or welfare benefits
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION AT 2012 FISCAL YEAR END

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Number of Securities

to be Issued upon
Exercise of

Outstanding Options
Warrants and Rights

8839

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

of Outstanding

Options
Warrants and Rights

b1

11.96

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Future Issuance under

Equity Compensation
Plans excluding

securities reflected in

column

Weighted-average exercise price calculation excludes outstanding performance share awards and restricted stock units which do not

have an exercise price

Does not include up to maximum of approximately 2358836 additional shares that may become available for issuance under the

2004 Plan through the expiration termination surrendering cancellation forfeiture or settlement of awards granted under the Amended

and Restated 1992 Equity Incentive Plan the 1992 Plan as provided in the 2004 Plan One-half of the total number of shares of

common stock covered by the 2004 Plan including any shares that may become available through the 1992 Plan as described above

may be granted in the form of restricted stock or other stock-based awards other than options or stock appreciation rights

Issued pursuant to our Amended and Restated 1990 Director Stock Option Plan the 1992 Plan and our 2004 Plan We continue to

grant equity awards only under the 2004 Plan Includes number of shares estimated as of our 2012 fiscal year end issuable under

performance share awards and restricted stock units described under the heading Long-Term Equity Incentives in the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement

Includes 10970270 shares available for issuance under the 2004 Plan as well as 10523499 shares available for issuance under our

2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the ESPP of which 2375049 shares will be issuable in connection with the current ESPP

offering period that ends June 30 2013 assuming that our associates enroll to the same extent they did during the offering period that

ended on December 312012 and based on fair market value of $11.48 per share for our common stock on January 2013 the first

business day of the current offering period In the event the fair market value of our common stock is less than $11.48 per share on

June 30 2013 we will issue additional shares for the current offering period

Includes 8839 shares issuable in connection with current outstanding options under our 1997 United Kingdom Company Share

Option Plan

The following option plan has not been approved by our stockholders We no longer issue any options under this plan

although options remain outstanding

1997 United Kingdom Company Share Option Plan

In August 1997 our Board adopted the 1997 United Kingdom Company Share Option Plan the UK Option Plan pursuant

to which stock options for up to 1687500 shares of our common stock could be granted to our associates and our subsidiaries

associates other than executive officers and directors On June 17 2004 when our stockholders approved our Amended and

Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan we ceased granting stock options under the UK Option Plan We used the UK Option Plan

to compensate associates working in our United Kingdom businesses Associates working in our United Kingdom businesses were

also eligible to receive options under our stockholder-approved equity plans We filed the UK Option Plan with the SEC as an

exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 1998

The UK Option Plan was designed to be approved by the United Kingdoms Department of Inland Revenue so that associates

would not be obligated to pay income tax on the difference between the exercise price of the option and fair market value of our

common stock at the options exercise date The Department of Inland Revenue approved the UK Option Plan in January 1998

Participants in the UK Option Plan could be granted in the aggregate over the life of the UK Option Plan up to 30000 British

pounds of tax-advantaged options Eligible associates could receive additional non-tax advantaged options under the UK

Option Plan

The UK Option Plan is administered by our Compensation Committee Our Compensation Committee is authorized to

adopt amend and repeal the administrative rules guidelines and practices relating to the UK Option Plan and to interpret the

provisions of the UK Option Plan Our Board of Directors may amend suspend or terminate the UK Option Plan at any time As

noted above our Board terminated the UK Option Plan effective June 17 2004 with respect to future awards

Plan category
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Our Board or the Compensation Committee selected the recipients of options under the UK Option Plan and determined

the number of shares of our common stock covered by such options the dates upon which such options become exercisable

which is typically 25% on the first anniversary of the date of grant and 2.083% monthly thereafter the exercise price of

options which may not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant and the duration of the

options which may not exceed 10 years With respect to options granted within the 30000 British pound limit preferential tax

treatment generally may only be obtained on the exercise of the option if the option is exercised after the third and before the tenth

anniversary of the date of grant and more than three years after the previous exercise of an option whiÆh has received preferential

tax treatment

Our Board is required to make appropriate adjustments in connection with the UK Option Plan and any outstanding options

under the UK Option Plan to reflect stock splits stock dividends recapitalizations spin-offs and other similar changes in

capitalization The UK Option Plan also contains provisions relating to the disposition of options in the event of merger

consolidation sale of all or substantially all of the assets or liquidation of Staples

As of February 2013 approximately associates have outstanding awards under the UK Option Plan

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During our 2012 fiscal year Ms Burton Ms Meyrowitz Mr Nakasone and Mr Walsh served on the Compensation

Committee and were independent directors during such service None of our executive officers has served as director or member

of the compensation committee or other committee serving an equivalent function of any other entity whose executive officers

served on our Compensation Committee or our Board of Directors

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based solely on our review of copies ofreports filed during fiscal year 2012 by the directors executive officers and beneficial

owners of more than 10% of our common stock required to file such reports pursuant to Section 16a of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and review of written certifications provided by them to the Company we believe that all of our directors and

executive officers complied with the reporting requirements of Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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APPROVAL ON AN ADVISORY BASIS OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

Item on the Proxy Card

Our Board recognizes that it is appropriate to seek on an armual basis the views of stockholders on Staples executive

compensation program Our stockholders are being asked to approve on an advisory basis the compensation of our named

executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement

The primary objective of our compensation program is to align executive pay with long term stockholder value creation

The Executive Compensation section ofthis proxy statement including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis discussion

describes in detail our executive compensation programs and the decisions made by the Compensation Committee with respect

to the 2012 fiscal year ended February 2013 Following the 2011 advisory vote on executive compensation the Committee

made certain changes that took effect in 2012 These changes included

Revised long term cash incentive program goals from annual goals to year
cumulative goal

Decreased use of stock options and increased use of performance-based long term cash incentives

Targeted market median rather than 75th percentile for long term incentives

Included different measures of performance for annual and long term incentive goals

Decreased stockholder dilution by replacing equity incentives with cash for associates below the director level

Highlights from our executive compensation program include the following

Over 61% of named executive officers annual target compensation in 2012 was at risk based on performance

Total CEO compensation for 2012 as reported in our summary compensation table decreased 27% as compared to 2011

This decrease is due to lower payouts on performance-based compensation including no payout for 2012 under the annual

and long term cash plans and reduced option awards The alignment between pay and performance in 2012 is attributable

to our emphasis on at risk pay

For the three year 2009 2011 period compensation decisions were aligned with the marketplace We successfully

aligned compensation with short and long term business objectives We motivated and retained executives during periods

of high volatility in the stock market strong market for talented executives and challenging economic environment

Our executive compensation governance includes many best practices such as stock ownership guidelines policy

prohibiting hedging an aggressive clawback policy and limited perquisites

In March 2013 the Committee engaged in series of discussions focused on potential changes to the compensation

program including strategic review of executive compensation with its independent executive compensation consultant in

light of our new business strategy The Committee challenged prior program design assumptions and focused on evaluating

the performance metrics for each pay element and how those metrics worked together to incent management to execute on the

Companys reinvention plan and drive long term stockholder value As part of this assessment the Committee considered the

complexity of the business historical regression analysis previously discussed with management the independent

compensation consultants input on current market practices and prior years say-on-pay votes with desire to create stronger

link between pay and performance and simplify our executive compensation program

The Committee made the following changes to our 2013 executive compensation program

To support our growth strategy our annual cash bonus plan performance metrics will be 50% earnings per share EPS
and 50% sales The sales component is weighted 25% total company sales and 25% sales beyond office supplies For

purposes of calculating this metric the Company defines office supplies as paper ink toner and core office products

writing folders paperclips etc.

To emphasize long term stockholder value creation our long term awards will be in the form of performance shares

with performance metrics of 50% return on net asset percentage RONA% and 50% sales growth These long term

awards will be subject to three year performance period with goals set annually for each year of the cycle In addition

any award earned based on performance against these metrics will be increased or decreased by 25% based on the

Companys cumulative total shareholder return TSR over the three year performance period relative to the SP 500

To ensure pay for performance alignment we eliminated annual grants of time-based restricted stock awards and stock

options resulting in 100% performance-based long term program

To simplify the program the long term incentive program will be comprised solely of performance shares
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Our Board is asking stockholders to approve on an advisory basis Staples named executive officer compensation by

approving the following resolution

RESOLVED that the compensation paid to the Companys named executive officers as disclosed pursuant to the compensation
disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis the

compensation tables and any related material disclosed in this proxy statement is hereby APPROVED

As an advisory vote this proposal is not binding upon Staples The Compensation Committee considers the results of the

voting in making future compensation decisions for our named executive officers

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL ON AN ADVISORY BASIS OF OUR
NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Item on the Proxy Card

The Audit Committee of our Board has selected the firm of Ernst Young LLP as our independent registered public

accounting firm for the current fiscal year Ernst Young LLP has served as our independent auditor since our inception Although
stockholder approval of the Audit Committees selection of Ernst Young LLP is not required by law our Board believes that it

is advisable to give stockholders an opportunity to ratify this selection If this proposal is not approved at the Annual Meeting the

Audit Committee may reconsider its selection

Representatives of Ernst Young LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting They will have the opportunity to

make statement if they desire to do so and will also be available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION OF ERNST YOUNG LLP AS
THE COMPANYS INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE CURRENT
FISCAL YEAR

Report of the Audit Committee of the Board

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of four members and acts under written charter as amended
and restated on December 2010 copy of which is available at our public website at www staples corn in the Corporate
Governance section of the Investor Information webpage The members of the Audit Committee are independent Directors as

defined by its charter and the rules of the SEC and NASDAQ Global Select Market

The Audit Committee provides independent objective oversight of Staples financial reporting process on behalf of the

Board of Directors Management has the primary responsibility for the preparation presentation and integrity of Staples financial

statements and for maintaining an adequate system of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial

reporting for that purpose In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with management
the audited financial statements for the 2012 fiscal year which review included discussion ofthe quality not just the acceptability
of the accounting principles the reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with Ernst Young LLP Staples independent registered public accounting
firmwhich is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with generally accepted

accounting principles its judgments as to the quality not just the acceptability of Staples accounting principles and such other

matters as are required to be discussed with the Audit Committee under generally accepted auditing standards including Statement

on Auditing Standards No 61 Communication with Audit Committees as amended AICPA Professional Standards Vol.1 AU
Section 380 as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T The Audit Committee also received
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the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by PCAOB Ethics and

Independence Rule 3526 Communication with Audit Committees Concerning Independence The Audit Committee discussed

with the independent registered public accounting firm the independent registered public accounting firms independence from

management and Staples and considered the compatibility of non-audit related services provided to Staples by the independent

registered public accounting firm with the independent registered public accounting firms independence

The Audit Committee discussed with Staples internal auditors and independent registered public accounting firm the

overall scope and plans for their respective
audits The Audit Committee met with the internal auditors and independent registered

public accounting firm with and without management present to discuss the results of their examinations their evaluations of

Staples internal controls and the overall quality of Staples financial reporting

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee recommended to Staples Board ofDirectors

and the Board approved that Staples audited financial statements be included in Staples Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended February 2013 for filing with the SEC

Audit Committee

Robert Sulentic Chair

Basil Anderson

Justin King

Elizabeth Smith

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms Fees

Audit Fees

Ernst Young LLP billed us an aggregate of approximately $9.1 million and $7.2 million in fiscal years
2012 and 2011

respectively for professional services rendered in connection with our annual audit the audit of our internal controls over financial

reporting the review of our interim financial statements included in our Form 10-Q statutory filings registration statements

accounting consultation and compliance with regulatory requirements

Audit-Related Fees

Ernst Young LLP billed us an aggregate
of approximately $222OQO and $359000 in fiscal years 2012 and 2011

respectively for services related to assistance with internal control reporting other reports required to satisfy regulatory

requirements and employee benefit plan audits

Tax Fees

Ernst Young LLP billed us an aggregate of approximately $1.8 million and $2.6 million in fiscal years 2012 and 2011

respectively for services related to tax compliance tax planning and tax advice For fiscal years 2012 and 2011 approximately

$150000 and $160000 respectively
of these fees was related to tax compliance

All Other Fees

We did not receive any other services from Ernst Young LLP therefore they did not bill us in fiscal years 2012 and 2011

for other services

Pre-Approval Policy and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures relating to the approval of all audit and non-audit services

that are to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm These policies provide that we will not engage our

independent registered public accounting firm to render audit or non-audit services other than de minimus non-audit services as

defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act unless the service is specifically approved in advance by the Audit Committee All services

provided to us by Ernst Young LLP in each of fiscal years 2012 and 2011 were approved in accordance with these policies
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

We have been advised that the following non-binding stockholder proposals will be presented at the 2013 Annual Meeting

The proposals will be voted on if the respective proponent or qualified representative is present at the 2013 Annual Meeting

and submits the proposal for vote Our respective statements in opposition follow each stockholder proposal

FOR THE REASONS SET FORTH BELOW IN OUR BOARDS STATEMENTS IN OPPOSITION OUR BOARD
OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTE AGAINST THE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

The text of the stockholder proposals and supporting statements appear below as received by us and we assume no

responsibility for their content or accuracy

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE PROXY ACCESS FOR STOCKHOLDERS HOLDING 1% OF THE
COMPANYS COMMON STOCK FOR ONE YEAR

Item on the Proxy Card

The following stockholder proposal was submitted by Norges Bank Investment Management the Proponent do Grant

Eisenhofer P.A 123 Justison Street Wilmington DE 19801 The Proponent holds 8339355 shares as of December31 2012
of our common stock

RESOLVED

Staples Inc.s Staples shareholders
urge the board of directors the Board to amend Staples bylaws to require Staples

to include in proxy materials prepared for an annual shareholder meeting at which directors are to be elected the name Disclosure

and Statement as defined herein of any person nominated for election to the board by shareholder or group the Nominator
that meets the criteria established below and allow shareholders to vote on such nominee on Staples proxy card

The amended bylaws should provide that both the number of candidates Nominator may nominate and the number of

shareholder-nominated candidates elected pursuant to this procedure each year shall not exceed one quarter of the number of

directors then serving and Nominator must

have beneficially owned 1% or more of Staples outstanding common stock continuously for at least year befOre

the nomination is submitted

give Staples written notice not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately

preceding annual meeting of stockholders ofa all information required under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder to be disclosed by or relating to an individual nominated for

election as director and proof that the Nominator owns the required shares the Disclosure and

certify that it will assume liability stemming from any legal or regulatory violation arising out of the Nominators

communications with Staples shareholders including the Disclosure and Statement and comply with all applicable

laws and regulations if it uses soliciting material other than Staples proxy materials

The amended bylaws should also provide that the Nominator may submit with the Disclosure statement not exceeding 500

words in support of the nominee the Statement

The Board should adopt procedures for promptly resolving disputes over whether notice of nomination was timely and whether

the Disclosure and Statement satisfy the bylaws and any applicable federal regulations

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Shareholders right to nominate candidates for election to the board of directors is fundamental principle of good corporate

governance and board accountability NBIM recognizes the importance of shareholder nominations and board continuity and

believes the requested requirements would help ensure appropriate use of proxy access

NBIM seeks to improve Staples corporate governance practices and enhance shareholder rights Shareholders must collectively

own more than 25% of Staples outstanding stock in order to call for an extraordinary shareholders meeting and Staples combines
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the CEO and Chairman of the Board roles Additional information regarding specific instances and issus where Staples

corporate governance practices and performance are inconsistent with NBIMs expectations is available at

http//www.nbim.no/StaplesProxvAccessPrOnosal20
13

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the relevant disclosure rules and regulations thereunder are available at

http//www.sec.gov/about/laws/sea34.pdf

http//www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text

idxcecfrSIDbc8264802fc43c 12b 105 ldfel Oa3fljeargndiv8viewtextnodel 73.0.1.1.1 .2.88.229idno17 and

http//www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx

cecfrS1D53296ee9cc7 1ca5526059efc2604bc39rgndiv8viewteXtnodel73.O 1.1.1 .2.88.238idno17

Please vote FOR this proposal

BOARDS STATEMENT IN OPPOSITION

The Board unanimously recommends that you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons

The 1%/i-year threshold is unreasonably low

May be misused by someone who is seeking to effect change in control

Could be used for special interests

Stockholders may not get sufficient information

Not needed based on our corporate governance practices and

Can lead to distraction and added expenses

The 1%/i-year threshold is unreasonably low The proposal would allow any stockholder or group of stockholders

who collectively owned 1% ofthe Companys common stock for one year to have their director nominees included in the Companys

proxy materials As of December 31 2012 Staples had 20 stockholders who held more than 1% by themselves including the

Proponent As there is no limitation in the proposal as to how many stockholders could combine to surpass the 1% threshold on

an aggregate basis numerous other shareholders could potentially use proxy access under this proposal We know of no other

company in the SP 500 that provides proxy access with 1%/i-year threshold The proxy access rule adopted by the SEC in

2010 required stocknolders or groups to own at least 3% of companys stock and to hold those shares for at least three years

The SEC adopted 3%/3-year standard after considering all relevant interests including the goals of facilitating stockholder

nominations the possibility of special interest nominations the negative impact on stockholders and companies from the

disruption associated with contested elections and the need to ensure that nominating stockholder had long-term interest in

the company so that proxy access would not be used to secure short-term gains at the expense of long-term stockholders

May be misused by someone who is seeking to effect change in control The criteria set forth in the proposal for

stockholder nominations does not contain the minimum safeguards necessary to protect against stockholder nominations in

connection with an attempt to take over the Company in transaction in which stockholders would be denied fair value for their

Staples shares When the SEC adopted its 3%/3-year proxy access rule it was concerned that stockholder might use proxy

access in connection with tender offer or other effort to obtain control of company In order to protect against that possibility

the SECs proxy access rule contained four critical safeguards and stockholder could not use the SECs proxy access rule unless

all four of these conditions were satisfied

The nominating stockholder must certify that it is not holding any of the companys securities with the purpose or with

the effect of changing control of the company or to gain more seats on the board than permitted by the proxy access rule

The nominating stockholder must not be member of any group engaged in soliciting or other nominating activities in

connection with the election of directors other than group of stockholders that submitted nomination under the proxy

access rule

The nominating stockholder must not seek directly or indirectly either on its own or anothers behalf the power to act

as proxy for stockholders in connection with the election and
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The nominating stockholder must not be participant in another persons solicitation in connection with the election

The Proponents proposal omits all four of these critical safeguards As result person conducting tender offer or proxy
contest to acquire the Company for less than fair value could use the Proponents process to further its own interest

Could be used for special interests Since each 1% holder or group may make proxy access nominations for up to 25%
of the board seats and all of those nominees would be required to appear in the proxy statement this proposal could result in

situation where numerous nominees are named For example based on board size of 12 if five 1% holders submitted three

nominees each the proxy statement would include the Companys 12 nominees plus 15 proxy access nominees Because this

proposal does not limit the number of stockholder nominees and because this proposal would allow nominating stockholder to

include in the proxy statement 500 words per nominee this proposal makes it much more likely that the Companys proxy statement

will be misused as forum for stockholders seeking to advance their special interests and that nominations will be made for

candidates who are not truly viable or qualified simply to take advantage of the opportunity to include special interest information

in the proxy statement

Stockholders may not get sufficient information The proposal contemplates fairly limited informational disclosure

requirements about the stockholder or group of stockholders making the nomination and about the nominee This shortcoming

in the proposal may result in stockholders not being provided with all relevant information about the nominator and its interests

and about each stockholder nominee and his or her interests and qualifications The Board believes such information is important

for stockholders to make informed voting decisions This shortcoming also demonstrates the significant risk of unintended

consequences resulting from the adoption of this proposal given the current lack of any well-developed consensus as to what

would constitute appropriate processes and procedures in proxy access provision

Not needed based on ourcorporategovernancepractices As summarized in more detail at the beginning ofthe Corporate
Governance section of this proxy statement we have strong set of corporate governance practices all of our directors are elected

annually our by-laws contain majority vote standard for uncontested elections of directors we allow stockholders to act by

majority written consent and to call special meetings we do not have supermajority voting provisions we do not have stockholders

rights plan and we have policy requiring stockholder approval of any stockholder rights plan

We have repeatedly demonstrated that we are thoughtful in listening and responding to our stockholders For example
as discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement

In the fall of 2012 we conducted our annual corporate governance outreach program during which we approached
stockholders representing approximately 50% of our shares and engaged in constructive dialogue with stockholders

representing more than 30% ofour shares to learn about their concerns and hear their perspectives on corporate governance
executive compensation and sustainability matters

We made significant changes to our executive compensation program in response to prior advisory votes on executive

compensation the feedback from our corporate governance outreach program and in accordance with our commitment

to sound executive compensation governance practices and

We have been proactive in adopting many important governance initiatives such as majority voting an enhanced political

contributions policy compensation recoupment policy and Staples Soul which reflects our commitment to number

of important policies relating to ethics community the environment and diversity

Our Board has been highly responsive over the years and we believe Staples has been on the leading edge in its efforts

to reach out to stockholders to discuss their views In light of our existing governance provisions our track record of listening and

being thoughtfully responsive to our stockholders and our proactive implementation of various governance policies we do not

believe it is in the best interests of stockholders to support proxy access provision at this time

Can lead to distraction and added expenses This proxy access proposal seeks to create procedure that could be

disruptive and expensive for the Company Contested elections require substantial attention from the Board and management
attention may be taken away from running the Company Multiple candidates and nominations from competing stockholders could

further increase such disruption and expense The U.S Court ofAppeals for the District of Columbia overturned the SECs 3%13-

year proxy access rule because the court determined that the SEC had not adequately assessed the expense and distraction proxy
contests would entail

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE AGAINST THIS PROPOSAL
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL REQUIRING COMPANY TO HAVE AN INDEPENDENT BOARD CHAIRMAN

Item on the Proxy Card

The following stockholder proposal was submitted by John Chevedden 2215 Nelson Avenue No 205 Redondo Beach

California 90278 beneficial owner of at least 200 shares of our common stock as of December 19 2012

Proposal Independent Board Chairman

RESOLVED Shareholders request that our board of directors adopt policy that whenever possible the chairman of our board

of directors shall be an independent director An independent director is director who has not previously served as an executive

officer of our Company This policy should be implemented so as not to violate any contractual obligations in effect when this

resolution is adopted The policy should also specify how to select new independent chairman if current chairman ceases to

be independent between annual shareholder meetings To foster flexibility this proposal gives the option of being phased in and

implemented when our next CEO is chosen

When our CEO is our board chairman this arrangement can hinder our boards ability to monitor our CEOs performance Many

companies already have an independent Chairman An independent Chairman is the prevailing practice in the United Kingdom

and many international markets This proposal topic won 50%-plus support at three major U.S companies in 2012 including 55%-

support at Sempra Energy

This proposal
should also be evaluated in the context of our Companys overall corporate governance as reported in 2012

GMI/The Corporate Library an independent investment research firm had rated our company continuously since 2009 with

High Governance Risk Also High Concern for director qualifications and Concern in Executive Pay $9 million for our

CEO Ronald Sargent Plus our high level of executive pay received only 46% support from our shares outstanding

The only equity pay given to our highest paid executives consisted of stock options and restricted stock both of which simply

vest over time with no job performance requirements Our CEO received mega-grant of 860000 options after receiving 645000

options the
year before valued at $3.4 million Equity pay given as long-term incentive should include job performance

requirements and market-priced stock options could pay off due to rising market alone regardless of an executivs performance

Also our highest paid executives participated in long-term cash incentive plan which did nothing to link executive job

performance with long-term shareholder value Moreover the cash plan incorporated the same annual goals used to determine

annual awards which meant that executives were being paid twice for the same goal

Six of our directors had 11 to 26 years long-tenure including our Lead Director Arthur Blank These long-tenured directors also

controlled 67% of our executive pay committee no surprise and 67% of our nomination committee Director independence erodes

after 10-years GMI said long-tenure could hinder director ability to provide effective oversight more independent perspective

would be priceless asset for our board of directors Basil Anderson and Rowland Moriarty topped off their undesirable long-

tenure with their work on the boards of total of large companies each overextension concern Long-tenured Paul Walsh was

our leader in obtaining negative votes

Please vote to protect shareholder value

Independent Board Chairman Proposal

BOARDS STATEMENT IN OPPOSITION

The Board unanimously recommends that you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons

An arbitrary policy that mandates an Independent Chairman is not in the best interest of the Company

Our independent Board and Lead Director provide proper and effective oversight of management

combined CEO/Chairman does not hinder our Boards ability to monitor CEO performance

An arbitrary policy that mandates an Independent Chairman is not in the best interest of the Company Stockholders

are best served if the Board retains flexibility to decide what leadership structure works best for the Board and the Company based

on the facts and circumstances existing from time to time Under our by-laws and our Corporate Governance Guidelines the

Guidelines every year the Board carefully considers based on number of factors how it should structure its Board leadership

Currently the Board believes our Chief Executive Officer CEO should serve as Chairman of the Board because he is the

director most familiar with the Companys day-to-day operations The combined role of Chairman and CEO allows for single
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clear focus for command to execute Staples strategic initiatives and business plans This proposal would remove this flexibility

and narrow the governance arrangements that the Board may consider which could be contrary to the best interests of our

stockholders The Board believes that it should be permitted to continue to use its business judgment to decide who is the best

person to function as Chairman of the Board considering among other things the composition of the Board and the unique issues

facing the Company

Our independent Board and Lead Director provide proper and effective oversight of management 92% of our Board

is independent based on NASDAQ listing standards and our Guidelines Our directors are engaged knowledgeable prepared and

assertive The independent directors generally meet in connection with each regularly scheduled Board meeting and in separate

executive sessions without the CEO present These sessions are led by the Lead Director and include among other matters

succession planning the CEOs performance and business strategy The role of the Lead Director is clearly delineated in our

Guidelines which is available on the Staples website www.staples.com The duties and responsibilities are reviewed annually by
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee which consists of independent Directors Some of the duties and authority

of the Lead Director include

Call meetings of the independent directors

Preside at executive sessions of the independent directors

Assure that at least two meetings per year of only the independent directors are held

Facilitate communications between the independent directors and the CEO
Approve Board agenda and schedules

Chair the annual reviews of the CEO
Represent the independent directors in meetings with major stockholders

Our current Lead Director Arthur Blank is an independent director Mr Blank possesses extensive public company

experience and has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of The Home Depot Inc

One of the Companys longstanding governance practices is that all of the members including the chairs of the Audit

Committee Finance Committee Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Compensation Committee are

independent directors nominated to the committees by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Our directors

have complete access to Staples senior management and are encouraged to make regular contact The Board and each of the

Boards committees also have the authority to retain independent advisors and consultants

combined CEO/Chairman does not hinder our Boards ability to monitor CEO Performance The Boards process
for evaluating our CEOs performance involves the participation of all our independent Board members The evaluation is done

in executive sessions without the CEO being present The evaluation is led by the Chair of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee and our independent Lead Director The evaluation is used by the Compensation Committee in determining
the compensation of the CEO As discussed in further detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis our

long-term incentives in our executive compensation program consist of variable at-risk components that are dependent upon the

achievement of goals which are directly related to the financial performance of our business The evaluation of the CEOs
performance is not hindered because we do not have an Independent Chairman

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE AGAINST THIS PROPOSAL
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PART

Item Business

Staples Inc and its subsidiaries we Staples or the Company is the worlds leading office products company We
are committed to providing superior value to our customers through broad selection ofproducts easy to use websites an integrated

retail and online shopping experience and wide range of copy and print and technology services We pioneered the office products

superstore concept by opening the first office products superstore in Brighton Massachusetts in 1986 to serve the needs of small

businesses and consumers and we currently serve businesses of all sizes and consumers in North America Europe Australia

South America and Asia Our delivery businesses account fora majority.of our sales and many of our delivery customers place

their orders onlihe making Staples one of the largest Internet resellers in the world We operate three business segments North

American Stores Online North American Commercial and International Operations Additional information regarding our

operating segments is presented in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and financial information regarding these segments is provided in Note Segment

Reporting in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Strategy

We view the markets for the products and services we offer as large and diversified We reach our customers through

contract on-line catalog and retail sales channels that are designed to be convenient Our businesses attract different customer

groups with distinct purchasing behaviors Our retail stores and Staples.com website target small businesses and home offices

Our catalog customers are genôrally small businesses and organizations with up to 20 office workers Our contract businesses

target mid-size businesses and organizations with 20 to 500 office workers as well as Fortune 1000 companies Our ability to

address customer groups with different needs expands our available market opportunities and increases awareness of the Staples

brand Customers around the world often shop on our websites and in our retail stores which differentiates our multichannel

offering from many of our competitors This allows us to benefit from number of important economies of scale such as enhanced

efficiencies in purchasing distribution advertising and general and administrative expenses

During 2012 we realigned our organization by combining our North American retail stores and our public websites in

the United States and Canada Staples.com to provide more integrated and consistent shopping experience for our small business

and home office customers We are also currently engaged in multi-year effort to reduce our retail square footage in North

America and Europe and restructure our European Operations In addition we initiated multi-year cost savings plan to improve

efficiency and provide funding to accelerate our growth Successful execution of our strategy will help us to accelerate our growth

and achieve our vision every product your business needs to succeed

North American Stores Online

Our North American Stores Online segment includes the companys retail stores and Staples.com businesses in the

U.S and Canada

Our strategy for North American Stores Online focuses on offering easy-to-shop stores and websites with quality

products that are in-stock and easy to find and courteous helpful and knowledgeable sales associates to support customers across

all channels Our goals are to continue to be destination for core office supply categories like ink toner and paper and to become

an authority for products and services beyond office supplies such as facilities and breakroom supplies copy and print and

technology services Our associates are trained to deliver excellent service by engaging with customers and selling solutions

Our North American Stores Online segment consisted of 1547 stores in the United States and 339 stores in Canada

at the end of fiscal 2012 We operate portfolio of retail store formats tailored to the unique characteristics of each location The

Dover superstore represents the majority of our U.S store base The customer friendly Dover design appeals to the customer

with an open store interior that provides better view of our wide selection and makes it easier to find products In an effort to

improve store productivity and effectively manage our cost structure we have reduced the size of our Dover store format over

time We have developed 12000 square foot prototype that will improve store productivity and incorporate omni-channel features

to better address changing customer needs We also operate smaller format stores designed for rural markets and dense urban

markets

Staples.com includes the activities of our U.S and Canadian Internet sites as well as our direct mail catalog business

Staples.com is designed to reach small businesses home offices and consumers offering next business day delivery for most

orders in the majority of our markets One of our top priorities in Staples.com is to rapidly expand our assortment beyond office



supplies We continue to make investments in information technology to enhance Staples.com to improve the usability efficiency

and overall customer experience

We believe that our network of stores and online businesses enhances our profitability by allowing us to leverage marketing

distribution and supervision costs We have increased our focus on leveraging the synergies between Staples.com and our retail

stores with the introduction of new concepts including ship to store online retail store inventory lookup reserve online pickup in

store as well as mobile and tablet optimized websites We believe these new concepts will more seamlessly offer options to shop

our products and services regardless of whether customers physically visit our retail stores or our website

North American Commercial

Our North American Commercial segment consists of the U.S and Canadian business units that sell and deliver office

products and services directly to businesses including Staples Advantage and Quill.com

Our strategies for North American Commercial focus on expanding in categories beyond core office supplies providing

customers with broad assortment of core office products increasing our share of wallet with existing customers and acquiring

new customers We are also focused on serving our customers by continuing to improve our perfect order metric which measures

the number of orders that we fulfill on time and withouterror and has led to establishing industry leading customer service

standards

Our Staples Advantage business focuses on serving the needs ofmid-sized businesses and organizations as well as Fortune

1000 companies These customers often require more service than is provided by traditional retail online or mail order business

Through our contract sales force we offer full service account management customized pricing and payment terms usage reporting

the stocking of certain proprietary items and wide assortment of environmentally friendly products and services

Quill.com is an Internet and catalog business with targeted approach to servicing the needs of small and mid-sized

businesses in the United States To attract and retain its customers Quill.com seeks to offer outstanding customer service Quill

brand products and special services Quill.com also operates Medical Arts Press Inc an Internet and catalog business offering

specialized office supplies and products for health care professionals Quill.com is viewed separately from our Staples.com

business in that its customer base is different and it relies on its direct sales force

International Operations

Our International Operations segment consists of businesses in 23 countries in Europe Australia South America and

Asia The markets for office products and services in these countries are highly fragmented

Our European Office Products businesses represent balanced multi-channel portfolio serving contract retail Internet

and catalog customers in 16 countries Our contract business includes sizable operations in Scandinavia Germany the United

Kingdom and the Netherlands We operate 283 retail stores with the largest concentration of stores in the United Kingdom

Germany the Netherlands and Portugal We operate Internet and direct mail catalog businesses with significant concentration

of sales in France Italy and the United Kingdom

Our strategies for our European Office Products businesses focus on optimizing our assortment strengthening our value

proposition with customers streamlining our information technology systems further developing our ecommerce platform

expanding our mix of business services with focus on copy and print and leveraging best practices from our North American

businesses including our mid-market contract selling model We are also focused on improving profitability by closing certain

stores that are not achieving the desired financial returns consolidating sub-scale businesses streamlining operations to improve

efficiencies increasing sales of higher margin Staples brand products and improving the performance of our supply chain

Staples Australia serves primarily contract and governmental customers in Australia and New Zealand In addition we

operate public website which targets small business and home office customers Our strategies focus on improving sales force

productivity by increasing customer acquisition and retention and by providing customers with broad assortment of products

and services including office products IT solutions business furniture and print management

We continue to build foundation for growth in Asia and South America We operate retail and delivery businesses in

China delivery business in Taiwan delivery business and stores in Argentina and delivery business in Brazil We also

have franchise arrangement in India with our former joint venture partner



Merchandising and Marketing

We sell wide variety of office supplies and services office machines and related products computers and related products
and office furniture Our merchandising team constantly reviews and updates our product assortment to respond to changing
customer needs and to maximize the performance of our key categories Ink and toner remain important product categories and

we offer our customers wide assortment an in-stock guarantee and strong pricing message which is supported by our loyalty

programs One of our top priorities is to significantly expand our product offering beyond core office supplies Over the past few

years we have had success driving growth in adjacent product categories such as facilities and breakroom supplies These positive

results have reinforced our strategy and we continue to broaden our offering focusing on categories including technology products
medical supplies safety supplies packaging and shipping supplies and office decor

Our merchandising staff uses integrated systems to perform the vast majority of our merchandise planning and product

purchasing centrally Some of our business units particularly Quill.com our Canadian operations and our multiple international

businesses leverage our global buying and merchandising staff along with local staff to meet their specific buying and

merchandising needs We purchase products from thousands of vendors worldwide and we believe that competitive sources of

supply are available to us for substantially all of the products we carry

Our product offering includes Staples Quill and other proprietary branded products which represented approximately
28% of our sales in 2012 We offer more than 10000 own brand products and services including an assortment of products with

various environmental attributes which includes our Sustainable Earth brand products Own brand products deliver value to

our customers with prices that are on average 10% to 20% lower than the national brand while generating higher gross margin
rates on average than national brands Our own brand strategy focuses on offering national brand quality at lower prices We have

brought to market hundreds of new own brand products in the last year many of which are innovative and exclusive to Staples
Our sourcing office in Shenzhen China supports our own brand strategy by driving high quality and lower costs and by bringing

new products to market more quickly In addition to our proprietary branded products we also differentiate our core product

offering through exclusive third-party relationships For instance we now sell an exclusive and innovative line of Martha Stewart

home office products in our retail stores and on our websites

In addition to products we also offer broad array of services which represented 6.7% of our sales in 2012 This includes

copy and print services that we provide to our retail and delivery customers as well as technology services that we provide through
our EasyTech business in North American Stores and Online The market for these services is highly fragmented and we believe

we have significant opportunity to offer these services to existing customers and acquire new customers Over the past several

years we have upgraded the technology signage labor training and quality of these services to increase sales by driving greater

customer awareness and differentiate our offering

The following table shows our sales by each major category as percentage of total sales for the periods indicated

Fiscal Year Ended

January 28 2012February 2013 Januar 29 2011

Office supplies 43.9% 44.6% 44.0%

Services 6.7% 5.70/0 5.3%

Office machines and related products 29.7% 29.4% 29.9%

Computers and related products 14.1% 15.2% 15.6%

Office furniture 5.6% 5.1% 5.2%

100.0% l00.0% 100.0%

We utilize variety of marketing vehicles to drive brand awareness and sales of products and services to both new and

existing customers These vehicles include broad-based media such as television radio newspaper circulars and Internet

advertising including mobile applications and social media Increasing our presence in social media is important as this is new
and growing way for Staples to interact with and serve our customers We also utilize catalogs e-mail marketing loyalty programs
and sophisticated direct marketing capabilities In addition we market to larger customers through combination of direct mail

catalogs customized catalogs and field sales force We change our level of marketing spend as well as the mix of media

employed depending upon market customer value seasonal focus competition and cost factors This flexible approach allows

us to optimize the effectiveness and efficiency of our marketing expenditures We continue to improve our systems and capabilities

to track our customers multi-channel purchasing behaviors and to execute more effective direct marketing and customer loyalty

programs to drive higher sales across all our channels



Supply Chain

We operate two networks to fulfill the majority of our replenishment and delivery needs in North America Our network

of 66 delivery fulfillment centers supports our North American Commercial and Staples.com operations We operate separate

network of four large distribution centers to support our U.S retail store operations Our retail distribution centers provide us

with significant labor and merchandise cost savings by centralizing receiving and handling functions and by enabling us to purchase

in full truckloads and other economically efficient quantities from suppliers Our centralized purchasing and distribution systems

enable our store associates to spend more time on customer service and store presentation Since our distribution centers maintain

backup inventory our in-store inventory requirements are reduced allowing us to more efficiently operate our retail stores

In Europe we are in the process of reducing the complexity and redundancy of our distribution network We are

standardizing all of our supply chain processes and systems architecture and continuing to consolidate facilities These efforts

are expected to improve customer service and quality drive cost savings and increase overall operating efficiency

Associates

We have strong corporate culture During 2012 we implemented set of revised corporate values which guide our

interactions with customers and each other These values represent what matters most at Staples are critical to bringing our vision

to life and include own it say it like it is be caring keep it simple and work together We place great importance on recruiting

training retention and providing the proper incentives for high quality associates Offering attractive growth and development

opportunities and commitment to diverse and safe work environment we pride ourselves on being great place to work

We consider customer relations and our associates knowledge of our product and service offerings to be key to our

marketing approach and our ability to deliver customer satisfaction Associates are trained in number of areas including where

appropriate sales techniques management skills and product knowledge

As of February 2013 Staples employed 50020 full-time and 35067 part-time associates

Staples Soul

Staples is committed to responsible corporate citizenship or what we refer to as Staples Soul Staples Soul is holistic

approach to business that recognizes the close connection between our financial success and our desire to make positive impact

on our associates communities and the planet We believe Staples Soul helps to make us an employer and neighbor of choice

differentiates our brand and allows us to grow profitably and responsibly To support this commitment Staples created the role

of chief cultural officer responsible for driving improved associate engagement and coordinating Staples approach to corporate

responsibility For more information visit www.staples.com/soul

Ethics Ethics at Staples is part of our culture Staples maintains ethical business practices by encouraging open and

honest communication and fostering an environment where it is safe to speak up without fear of retaliation Through our Code

of Ethics and ongoing communications and training programs we make it easy
for associates around the world to understand what

they need to know and do to make sound decisions in the best interests of our company and shareholders These efforts help

ensure that our associates build trusting relationships with customers and other stakeholders thus strengthening and protecting

Staples brand reputation

Environment At Staples our vision is to generate business and environmental benefits for ourselves our customers

and our communities by leading the way in sustainable business practices We are working to achieve this vision through

continued focus on sourcing and selling more sustainable products improving our offering of recycling and other green services

maximizing our energy efficiency and renewable energy use and eliminating waste

Diversity Staples commitment to diversity and inclusion stems from our recognition that being successful company

requires people with diverse backgrounds and perspectives We know that differences in age race gender nationality sexual

orientation physical ability background and thinking style allow us to be more innovative as company We believe that attracting

developing and retaining an associate base that reflects the diversity of our customers is essential to our success Our diverse

workforce and network of suppliers strengthens relationships with our customers and gives us the flexibility to adapt to the ever

changing global marketplace

Community Staples is dedicated to providing education andjob skills opportunities in communities where our customers

and associates live and work with primary focus on supporting disadvantaged youth from literacy and mentoring to career skills

development initiatives We support these causes through corporate contributions in-kind donations and grants from Staples

Foundation our private charitable arm We also encourage our associates and customers to contribute their time and resources as



well Through our global community and giving efforts we have helped more than 6500 organizations in local communities

across 26 countries

Competition

We compete with variety of online and traditional retailers dealers and distributors in the highly competitive office

products market We compete in most of our geographic markets with other high-volume office supply providers including Office

Depot OfficeMax and Lyreco as well as mass merchants such as Wal-Mart Target and Tesco warehouse clubs such as Costco

computer and electronics retail stores such as Best Buy specialty technology stores such as Apple copy and print businesses such

as FedEx Office online retailers such as Amazon.com and other discount retailers In addition our retail stores and delivery

operationsboth compete with numerous mail order firms contract stationers electronic commerce distributors regional and local

dealers and direct manufacturers Many of our competitors have increased their presence in our markets in recent years

We believe we are able to compete favorably against our competitors because of the following factors our focus on

business customers our tenured management teams ability to respond to the dynamic markets in which we operate and the changing

needs of our customers courteous helpful and knowledgeable associates focused on making it easy for customers to buy office

products and services wide assortment of products and services that are in-stock and easy to find either in stores or on our

websites fast checkout easy to use web sites reliability and speed of order shipment convenient store locations hassle-free

returns and competitive prices

Trademarks Patents Copyrights and Domain Names

We own or have applied to register numerous trademarks and service marks in the United States and throughout the world

in connection with our businesses Some of our principal global and regional marks include Staples the Staples red brick logo

Staples the Office Superstore the Easy Button logo that was easy Quill.com Corporate Express and many other marks

incorporating Staples or another primary mark which in the aggregate we consider to be of material importance to our business

While the duration of trademark registrations varies from country to country trademarks are generally valid and may be renewed

indefinitely so long as they are in use and their registrations are properly maintained

We own and maintain number of patents on certain products systems and designs We also own copyrights for works

such as packaging training materials promotional materials computer software in-store graphics website content and multi

media In addition we have registered and maintain numerous Internet domain names including many that incorporate Staples

Available Information

We maintain web site with the address www.staples.com We are not including the information contained on our web

site as part of or incorporating it by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We make available free of charge through

our web site ourAnnual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments

to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish such material to the

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
We were organized in 1985 and are incorporated in Delaware

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Our executive officers their respective ages and positions as of March 42013 and description of their business experience

are set forth below There are no family relationships among any of the executive officers named below

Stephen Bacica age 41

Mr Bacica has served as Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller since August 2012 Prior to joining Staples

Mr Bacica served as the Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of MCGCapital Corporation business development

company from May 2008 until November 2008 and served as its Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

from November2008 until May2012 Prior to joining MCG Capital Corporation Mr Bacica served as Vice President Accounting

Policy of Marriott International Inc worldwide operator and franchisor of hotels and timeshare properties from April 2006 to

May 2008 Mr Bacica also served as Senior Director Accounting Policy of Marriott from July 2004 to April2006 and as Director

Accounting Policy of Marriott from May 2002 to July 2004 Prior to his employment with Marriott Mr Bacica worked at

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP where he held positions of Audit Manager Senior Associate and Associate and Mr Bacica also

worked at the SEC where he served as Senior Staff Accountant and Staff Accountant



Joseph Doody age 60

Mr Doody has served as PresidentNorth American Commercial since January 2013 Previously Mr Doody served as

PresidentStaples North Anierican Delivery since March 2002 Prior to that he served as PresidentStaples Contract

Commercial from November 1998 when he first joined Staples until March 2002

Christine Komola age 45

Ms Komola has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since February 2012 Prior to that she served

as the Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller from July2004 to January2012 She also served as the SeniorVice President

General Merchandise Manager for furniture from January 2002 to July 2004 She has also held other roles within Staples since

joining in April 1997 including Assistant Controller Vice President of Planning Margin and Control and Chief Financial Officer

of Staples.com

Demos Parneros age 50

Mr Pameros has served as PresidentNorth American Stores Online since January 2013 Previously Mr Parneros

served as President U.S Stores since April2002 Prior to that he served in various capacities since joining Staples in October

1987 including Senior Vice President of Operations from March 1999 to March 2002 and Vice President of Operations from

October 1996 to February 1999

Ronald Sargent age 57

Mr Sargent has served as Chairman since March 2005 as Chief Executive Officer since February 2002 and as Director

since 1999 Prior to that he served in various capacities since joining Staples in March 1989 including President from November

1998 to January 2006 Chief Operating Officer from November 1998 to February 2002 PresidentNorth American Operations

from October 1997 to November 1998 and PresidentStaples Contract Commercial from June 1994 to October 1997

Michael Williams age 59

Mr Williams has served as Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since November 2012 Prior to joining

Staples Mr Williams served as Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of Sony Electronics Inc consumer

electronics company from March 2004 to October 2012 with responsibility for legal operations of several professional and

consumer electronics companies in the U.S Central America and South America Before joining Sony Mr Williams was

partner at the law firms of Heller Ehmuann LLP from April 1998 to March 2004 and Andrews Kurth LLP from February 1991 to

April 1998 Mt Williams also served as an infantry officer in the U.S Marine Corps

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and in particular the description of our Business set forth in Item and our Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations set forth in Appendix MDA contain or incorporate

number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 2lE of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act

Any statements contained in or incorporated by reference into this report that are not statements of historical fact should be

considered forward-looking statements You can identify these forward-looking statements by use of the words like believes

expects anticipates plans may will would intends estimates and other similar expressions whether in the

negative or affirmative These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations estimates forecasts and projections

about the industry and markets in which we operate and managements beliefs and assumptions and should be read in conjunction

with our MDA our consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements included in Appendix

We cannot guarantee
that we actually will achieve the plans intentions or expectations disclosed in the forward-looking statements

made There are number of important risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those

indicated by such forward-looking statements These risks and uncertainties include without limitation those set forth below

under the heading Risk Factors as well as risks that emerge from time to time that are not possible for us to predict Forward

looking statements like all statements in this report speak only as of the date of this report unless another date is indicated We

disclaim any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events

or otherwise



Item 1A Risk Factors

Global economic conditions could adversely affect our business and financial performance

As the worlds leading office products company operating in 26 countries our operating results and performance depend

significantly on worldwide economic conditions and their impact on business and consumer spending Increases in the levels of

unemployment particularly white collarunemployment energy and commodity costs health care costs higher interest rates and

taxes return to tighter credit markets reduced consumer credit availability turmoil in the financial markets including recent

events in the European Union lower consumer confidence lack of small business formation and other factors could result in

decline in business and consumer spending Although there has been modest improvement in some of these measures the political

and economic environment in Europe has not improved and the level of business and consumer spending across the globe is not

where it was prior to the global recession Our business and financial performance may continue to be adversely affected and

our ability to generate cash flow may be negatively impacted by current and future economic conditions if there is renewed

decline in business and consumer spending or if such spending remains stagnant

We face uncertainties in connection with the implementation of our strategies to transform our business and our

inability to successfully implement our strategies could adversely affect our business and financial performance

In September 2012 we announced plans to transform our business including accelerating growth in online businesses

by expanding our product assortment integrating our retail and online offering improving store productivity in North America

restructuring operations in order to reduce complexity and improve profitability of our European operations and initiating multi-

year cost savings plan in order to help fund these investments The success of our transformation is subject to both the risks

affecting our business generally and the inherent difficulty associated with implementing our new strategies and is dependent on

the skills experience and efforts of our management and other associates and our success with third parties If we are unable to

successfully implement our plans we risk taking additional charges in the future including potential impairment of assets and

charges for additional restructuring activities that may be required To the extent we pursue acquisitions or other operational and

strategic opportunities our success will depend on selecting the appropriate targets or partners completing integration efforts

quickly and effectively and realizing any expected synergies and cost savings There is no assurance that we will be able to

successfully implement these strategic initiatives or that the implementation of changes will result in the benefits or costs savings

at the levels that we anticipate or at all which may result in an adverse impact on our business and financial results

We have recognizedsubstantial goodwill impairment charges in the currentfiscalyear andmay be requfredto recognize

additional goodwill impairment charges in the future

During the third quarter of 2012 we recorded pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $771.5 million related to our

Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units as result of industry trends and the ongoing economic weakness in Europe

and the related strategic decision to reallocate resources to other Staples business units with greater growth potential At February

2013 we had $3.22 billion of remaining goodwill on our balance sheet and we could experience material goodwill impairment

charges in the future Certain factors including consumer spending levels industry and macroeconomic conditions the price of

our stock and the future profitability of our businesses might have negative impact on the carrying value of our goodwill The

process of testing goodwill for impairment involves numerous judgments assumptions and estimates made by management which

inherently reflect high degree ofuncertainty In addition our goodwill impairment analysis includes comparison of the aggregate

estimated fair value of all reporting units to our total market capitalization If the business climate deteriorates ifour plans change

or if we fail to manage our restructuring activities successfully then actual results may not be consistent with these judgments

assumptions and estimates and our goodwill may become impaired in future periods This would in turn have an adverse impact

on our financial position and results of operations

Our market is highly competitive and we may not be able to continue to compete successfully

The office supply and services market is highly competitive We compete with variety of local regional national and

international retailers and online and traditional retailers dealers and distributors for customers associates locations products

services and other important aspects of our business In most of our geographic markets we compete with other high-volume

office supply providers such as Office Depot OfficeMax and Lyreco as well as mass merchants such as Wal-Mart Target and

Tesco warehouse clubs such as Costco computer and electronics retail stores such as Best Buy specialty technology stores such

as Apple copy and print businesses such as FedEx Office online retailers such as Amazon.com and other discount retailers We
also compete with numerous mail order firms contract stationer businesses electronic commerce distributors regional and local

dealers and direct manufacturers Some of our current and potential competitors are larger than we are may have more experience

in selling certain products or delivering services or may have substantially greater financial resources Also many of our competitors



have increased their presence
in our markets in recent years by expanding their assortment of office products and services pening

new stores near our existing stores and offering direct delivery of office products Intense competitive pressures from one or

more of our competitors could affect prices or demand for our products and services If we are unable appropriately respond to

these competitive pressures or offer the appropriate mix of products and services at competitive prices our financial performance

and market share could be adversely affected

If the products and services that we offer fail to meet our customer needs our performance could be adversely affected

We believe that the strategic plan we announced in September 2012 will help us to accelerate our growth and achieve

our vision every product your business needs to succeed One of our top priorities is to significantly expand our product offering

beyond core office supplies Over the past few years we have bad success driving growth in adjacent product categories such as

facilities and breakroom supplies These positive results have reinforced our strategy and we are now continuing to broaden our

offering focusing on categories including technology products medical supplies safety supplies packaging and shipping supplies

and office decor Our success is contingent on providing our customers the selection of products as well as services at competitive

prices that meet customers changing needs and purchasing habits If we misjudge either the demand for products and services

we sell or our customers purchasing habits and tastes we may be faced with excess inventories of some products or missed

opportunities for products and services we do not offer Failure to provide the products and services preferred by our customers

could have material adverse affect on our revenue results of operations and ability to attract and retain customers

We may be unable to continue to enter new markets successfully

An important part of our business plan is to increase our presence in new markets which includes accelerating growth

in our online businesses and providing new products and service offerings We may have limited experience in newer markets

and any such offerings may present new and difficult challenges For example when entering new geographic or product market

customers may not be familiar with our brand or our competitors may have larger more established market presence Our sales

or profit levels in newer activities thus may not be successful enough to recoup our investments in them and may reduce our overall

profitability In addition for our strategy to be successful we must hire and train qualified associates and adapt management and

operational systems to meet the needs of our expanded operations If we are unable to enter new markets as efficiently as we

planned our future sales and profits may be adversely affected

Our international operations expose us to risks inherent in foreign operations

We currently operate in 25 countries outside the United States In certain international market segments we may not

benefit from any first-to-market advantages or otherwise succeed Cultural differences abroad and local practices of conducting

business may conflict with our own business practices and ethics standards Ensuring compliance with foreign and U.S laws and

our own policies may require that we implement new operational systems and financial controls conduct audits or internal

investigations train our associates and third parties on our existing compliance methods and take other actions all of which may

be expensive divert managements time and impact our operations There are also different employee/employer relationships and

in some cases the existenceof workers councils that may delay or impact the implementation of some of these operational systems

In addition differences in business practices in our international markets may cause customers to be less receptive to our business

model than we expect

Risks inherent in international operations also include among others the costs and difficulties of managing international

operations adverse tax consequences and greater difficulty in enforcing intellectual property rights Other factors that may also

have an adverse impact on our international operations include limitations on the repatriation and investment of funds foreign

currency exchange restrictions complex import and export schemes increased local competition our lack of familiarity with local

customer preferences unfavorable foreign trade policies unstable political or economic conditions and geopolitical events

including war and terrorism

Our effective tax rate may fluctuate

We are multi-national multi-channel provider of office products and services As result our effective tax rate is derived

from combination of applicable tax rates in the various countries states and other jurisdictions in which we operate Our effective

tax rate may be lower or higher than our tax rates have been in the past due to numerous factors including the sources of our

income any agreements we may have with taxing authorities in various jurisdictions changes in the laws and the tax filing positions

we take in various jurisdictions In addition our effective tax rate may fluctuate quarterly and the resulting tax rate may be negative

or unusually high as result of significant charges in quarter that are not tax deductible such as those charges associated with

goodwill and long-lived asset impairment and our restructuring activities that we recorded in 2012 We base our estimate of an

effective tax rate at any given point in time upon calculated mix of the tax rates applicable to our company and to estimates of



the amount of business likely to be done in any given jurisdiction The loss of one or more agreements with taxing jurisdictions

change in the mix of our business from year to year and from country to country changes in rules related to accounting for

income taxes adverse outcomes from tax audits that we may be subject to in any of the jurisdictions in which we operate or

changes in tax laws in any of the multiple jurisdictions in which we operate could result in an unfavorable change in our effective

tax rate which could have an adverse effect on our business and results of our operations

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could lead to lower earnings

As we have expanded our international operations our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations has increased Sales from

our delivery operations and stores outside the U.S are denominated in the currency of the country in which these operations or

stores are located and changes in foreign exchange rates affect the translation of the sales and earnings of these businesses into

U.S dollars for financial reporting purposes Additionally merchandising agreements may also be denominated in the currency
of the country where the vendor resides Although we attempt to mitigate such risks by sometimes entering into foreign exchange

hedges or utilizing risk management strategies such hedges and strategies themselves present some risk and thus may not be

entirely successful in mitigating the risk

We may be unable to attract train engage and retain qualified associates

Our customers value courteous and knowledgeable associates and an important part of our Easy brand strategy is

positive customer service experience Accordingly our performance depends on attracting training engaging and retaining large

number of qualified associates We face intense competition for qualified associates particularly in tight labor markets in emerging

markets Many of our associates particularly in retail stores are in entry-level or part-time positions with historically high rates

of turnover Our ability to meet our labor needs while controlling our labor costs is subject to numerous external factors including

the availability of sufficient number of qualified persons in the workforce unemployment levels prevailing wage rates changing

demographics health and other insurance costs and the cost of compliance with labor and wage laws and regulations If we are

unable to attract train engage and retain sufficient number of qualified associates our business and financial performance may
be adversely affected

Our quarterly operating results are subject to significant fluctuation

Our operating results have fluctuated from quarter to quarter in the past and we expect that they will continue to do so

in the future Historically sales and profitability are generally stronger in the second half of our fiscal year than the first half of

our fiscal year due in part to back-to-school holiday and back-to-business seasons Factors that could also cause these quarterly

fluctuations include the mix of products sold pricing actions of competitors the level of advertising and promotional expenses
the expense and outcome of legal proceedings severe weather consumer confidence and the other risk factors described in this

section Most of our operating expenses such as occupancy costs and associate salaries do not vary directly with the amount of

sales and are difficult to adjust in the short term As result if sales in particular quarter are below expectations we may not

proportionately reduce operating expenses for that quarter and therefore such sales shortfall would have disproportionate effect

on our net income for the quarter

Our indebtedness could adversely affect us by reducing our flexibility to respond to changing business and economic

conditions

On October 2012 we repaid all of our $325 million 7.3 75% senior notes In February 2013 we concluded tender

offer of our 9.75% notes due in January 2014 which resulted in the repurchase of $632.8 million of these notes and left $867.2

million notes outstanding Also in January 2013 we issued $500 million 2.75% senior notes due January 2018 and $500 million

4.375% senior notes due January 2023 As of February 2013 our consolidated outstanding debt was $1.99 billion As of

February 2013 we also had $1.21 billion of additional borrowing capacity under our commercial paper program revolving

credit facility and other lines of credit We are not restricted from incurring substantial additional indebtedness in the future

Incurring substantial indebtedness in the future could reduce our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital capital

expenditures acquisitions and other general corporate purposes and could make us more vulnerable to economic downturns and

economic pressures Our level of indebtedness may also place us at competitive disadvantage against less leveraged competitors
Ifwe default or breach our obligations we could be required to pay higher rate of interest or lenders could require us to accelerate

our repayment obligations



Our expanded offering ofproprietary branded products may not improve our financial performance and may expose

us to intellectual property liability product liability import/export liability government investigations and claims and other

risks associated with global sourcing

Our product offering includes Staples Quill and other proprietary branded products and services which represented

approximately 28% of our sales in fiscal 2012 and which typically provide for higher margins Our proprietary branded products

compete with other manufacturers branded items that we offet An increase in our proprietary branded products and services also

exposes us to added risks that could increase the cost of doing business such as third party intellectual property infringement

false advertising and product liability
claims against us with respect to such products and services and import and export

compliance issues Furthermore although we have implemented policies and procedures designed to facilitate compliance with

laws and regulations relating to importing merchandise from abroad there can be no assurance that contractors agents vendors

manufacturers or other third parties with whom we do business will not violate such laws and regulations or our policies which

could subject us to liability
and could adversely affect our operations or operating results We also have greater exposure and

responsibility to the consumer for replacements as result of product defects If any of our customers are harmed by our proprietary

branded products or services they may bring product liability
and other claims against us or we may have to issue voluntary or

mandatory recalls

The more proprietary branded products and services we offer the more these risks increase loss of consumer acceptance

of these products could also adversely affect our sales and gross margin rates Any of these circumstances could damage our

reputation and have an adverse effect on our business and financial performance

Problems in our information systems and technologies may disrupt our operations

We rely heavily on various information systems and technology to sell and deliver our products and services and operate

our business including systems to track inventory to process and record transactions to generate financial reports and to

communicate with our associates vendors and customers Our ability to attract and retain customers compete and operate

effectively depends in part on consistent secure and easy to use technology infrastructure with reliable back-up systems Any

disruption to the Internet or our technology infrastructure including disruption affecting our web sites and information system

may cause decline in our customer satisfaction jeopardize accurate financial reporting impact our sales volumes or result in

increased costs We may also outsource our information technology to third parties Although we continue to invest in our

technology if we are unable to continually add software and hardware effectively manage or upgrade our systems and network

infrastructure and develop effective system availability disaster recovery plans and protection solutions our business could be

disrupted thus subjecting us to liability and potentially harming our reputation

In addition we will periodically make modifications and upgrades to our information systems and technology Some of

these modifications and upgrades will be outsourced to third parties Modifications involve replacing legacy systems with successor

systems making changes to legacy systems or acquiring new systems with new functionality Although we make diligent effort

to ensure that all providers of outsourced services observe proper internal control practices and procedures we cannot assure that

failures will not occur We are aware of inherent risks associated with replacing our systems including accurately capturing data

system disruptions and outsourcing to third parties Information technology system disruptions if not anticipated and appropriately

mitigated could have material adverse effect on our operations

Compromises of our information systems or unauthorized access to confidential information or our customers or

associatespersonal information may materially harm our business or damage our reputation

Through our sales and marketing activities and our business operations we collect and store confidential information

and certain personal information from our customers and associates For example we handle collect and store personal information

in connection with our customers purchasing products or services enrolling in our promotional or rewards programs registering

on our web site or otherwise communicating or interacting with us We also process payment card information and check

information In addition in the normal course of business we gather and retain personal information about our associates and

generate and have access to confidential business information We may share confidential and personal information with vendors

or other third parties in connection with processing of transactions operating certain aspects of our business or for marketing

purposes Although we have taken steps designed to safeguard such information there can be no assurance that such information

will be protected against unauthorized access use or disclosure Computer hackers may attempt to penetrate our or our vendors

network security and if successful misappropriate such information Staples associate contractor or other third-party with

whom we do business may also misuse confidential or personal information to which they have access attempt to circumvent our

security measures in order to obtain such information or inadvertently cause breach involving such information We could be

subject to liability for failure to comply with privacy and information security laws for failing to protect personal information or

for misusing personal information such as use of such information for an unauthorized marketing purpose Loss unauthorized
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access to or misuse of confidential or personal information could disrupt our operations damage our reputation and expose us

to claims from customers financial institutions regulators payment card associations employees and other persons any of which

could have an adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Our business may be adversely affected by the actions of and risks associated with third-party vendors and service

providers

The products we sell are sourced from wide variety of third-party vendors In general we do not have long-term contracts

with these vendors committing them to provide products to us on acceptable terms For example we derive benefits from vendor

allowances and promotional incentives which may not be offered in the future We also cannot control the supply design function

or cost of many of the products that we offer for sale and are dependent on the availability and pricing of key products including

paper ink toner and technology Some of the products we offer are supplied to us on an exclusive basis and may be difficult to

replace in timely maimer Additionally we may not be able to source products that we want to offer for sale on acceptable terms

or at all Disruptions in the availability of raw materials used in the production of these products or quality issues that cause us

to initiate voluntary or mandatory recalls for proprietary products we sell may result in customer dissatisfaction damage our

reputation and adversely affect our sales

Global sourcing of many of the products we sell is an important factor in our financial performance Our ability to find

qualified vendors and access products in timely and efficient manner is significant challenge especially with respect to goods

sourced outside the United States Political instability the financial instability of suppliers trade restrictions tariffs foreign

currency exchange rates transport capacity and costs inflation and other factors relating to foreign trade are beyond our control

We also rely upon many independent service providers for services that are important to many aspects of our business If our

vendors or service providers fail or are unable to perform as expected and we are unable to replace them quickly our business

could be harmed at least temporarily until we are able to do so and potentially in some cases permanently These and other issues

affecting our vendors and service providers could adversely affect our reputation business and financial performance

Various legal proceedings may adversely afftct our business and financial performance

We are involved in various private legal proceedings which include consumer employment intellectual property

commercial tort and other litigation As our workforce expands we are subject to potentially increasing challenges by private

litigants regarding compliance with local state and national labor regulations whether meritorious or not In addition companies

have increasingly been subject to employment related class action litigation and we have experienced an increase in wage and

hour class action lawsuits We expect that these trends will continue to affect us As our operations grow we are also subject to

claims that the technology we use or the products we sell infringe intellectual property rights of third parties Such claims whether

meritorious or not involve significant managerial resources and can become costly Generally we have indemnification protections

in our agreements which our vendors or licensors often have honored however there are no assurances that such vendors or

licensors will continue to do so in the future We estimate exposure and establish reserves for our estimated significant liabilities

however litigation is inherently unpredictable and the outcome of legal proceedings and other contingencies could be unexpected

and require us to pay substantial amounts of money or take actions that adversely affect our operations In addition defending

against these claims may involve significant time and expense Given the large size of our operations and workforce the visibility

of our brand and our position as an industry leader we may regularly be involved in legal proceedings that could adversely affect

our business and financial performance

Failure to comply with laws rules and regulations could negatively affect our business operations and financial

performance

Our business is subject to federal state local and international laws rules and regulations such as state and local wage

and hour laws the U.S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act the False Claims Act the Employee Retirement Income Security Act

ERISA securities laws import and export laws including customs regulations unclaimed property laws and many others

The complexity of the regulatory environment in which we operate and the related cost of compliance are both increasing due to

legal and regulatory requirements increased enforcement and our ongoing expansion into new markets and new channels In

addition as result of operating in multiple countries we must comply with multiple foreign laws and regulations that may differ

substantially from country to country and may conflict with corresponding U.S laws and regulations We may also be subject to

investigations or audits by governmental authorities and regulatory agencies which can occur in the ordinary course of business

or which can result from increased scrutiny from particular agency towards an industry country or practice If we fail to comply

with laws rules and regulations or the manner in which they are interpreted or applied we may be subject to government enforcement

action class action litigation or other litigation damage to our reputation civil and criminal liability damages fines and penalties

and increased cost ofregulatory compliance any ofwhich could adversely affect our results ofoperations and financial performance

11



Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

As of February 2013 we operated total of 2215 retail stores in 48 states and the District of Columbia in the United

States 10 provinces and territories in Canada and in Finland Germany the Netherlands Norway Portugal Sweden the United

Kingdom China Argentina and Australia As of that same date we also operated 119 distribution and fulfillment centers in 30

states in the United States provinces in Canada and in Austria Belgium Denmark Finland France Germany Italy the

Netherlands Norway Poland Portugal Spain Sweden the United Kingdom China Argentina Brazil and Australia

The following table sets forth the locations of our facilities as of February 2013

RETAIL STORES

Number of Country/State/Province Number of Country/State/Province

Stores Region/Territory Stores Region/Territory

Nevada Canada

Country/State/Province

Region/Territory

United States

Number of

Stores

Alabama 12 New Hampshire 23 Alberta 39

Arizona 42 Ne Jersey 86 British Columbia 44

Arkansas New Mexico Manitoba 10

California 218 New York 134 New Brunswick 10

colorado 19 North Carolina 49 Newfoundland

Connecticut 39 North Dakota Nova Scotia 14

Delaware Ohio 62 Northwest Territories

District of Columbia Oklahoma 18 Ontario 131

Florida 95 Oregon 21 Prince Ech ard Island

Georgia 38 Pennsylvania 92 Qucbcc 72

Idaho Rhode Island 10 Saskatchewan 11

Illinois 51 South Carolina 21 Yukon

Indiana 30 South Dakota Total Canada 339

Iowa 15 Tcnncssee 23

Kansas Texas 58

Kentucky 17 Utah 14 Finland

Louisiana Vermont Germany 59

Maine 12 Virginia 44 The Netherlands 41

Maryland 43 Washington 31 Norway 20

Massachusetts 75 West Virginia Portugal 33

Michigan 42 Wisconsin 11 Sweden 11

Minnesota Wyoming United Kingdom 112

Mississippi Total United States 1547 China 30

Missouri 11 Argentina

Montana Australia 14

Nebraska 2215
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DISTRIBUTION AND FULFILLMENT CENTERS

Number of Number of

Country/StatefProvincelRegion/Territory Centers Country/StatelProvincelRegion/Terntory Centers

Vnitd StatØ aHat1a

Arizona Alberta

Maka ttsh c1umbia

California Manitoba

New FundMt

Connecticut Nova Scotia

Florida Quebec

Total Canada 14

Idaho

Ausfrma

Indiana Belgium

lenmakk

Kansas Finland

Ertn

Massachusetts Germany

Minnesota The Netherlands

New Jersey
Poland

4ewYrk Piwtugal

North Carolina Spain

Sweden

Oregon
United Kingdom

eunsylvatia çhln

South Carolina Argentina

eiiasee BPaiil

Texas Australia 20

Vtnia

Washington

WsQohs3n

Total United States 56

Most of the existing facilities are leased by us with initial lease terms expiring between 2013 and 2026 In most instances

we have renewal options at increased rents Leases for 150 of the existing stores provide for contingent rent based upon sales

We own our Framingham Massachusetts corporate office which consists of approximately 650000 square feet

Item Legal Proceedings

We are subject to ordinary routine litigation incidental to our business We do not believe the results of such litigation

will have material adverse effect on our business See Note Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to our Consolidated

Financial Statements

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

NASDAQ

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol SPLS The following table sets

forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

as reported by NASDAQ

High Low

Theal Year Ended Februarv2 2013

16.93 14.35First Quarter

15.73 12.10Second Quarter

13.62 10.57Third Quarter

13.77 10.94Fourth Quarter

Fiscal Year Ended January 28 2012

22.95 19.22First Quatter

21.50 14.75Second Quarter

16.11 11.94Third Quarter

16.34 13.68Fourth Quarter

Cash Dividend

Since 2004 we have returned cash to our stockholders through cash dividend We paid quarterly dividends of $0.11

per share on April 12 2012 July 12 2012 October 18 2012 and December 12 2012 resulting in total dividend payment of

$294.1 million or $0.44 per share We paid quarterly dividends of $0.10 per share on April 14 2011 July 14 2011 October 13

2011 and January 122012 resulting in total dividend payment for 2011 of $277.9 million or $0.40 per share We paid quarterly

dividends of $0.09 per share onApril 152010 July 152010 October 242010 andJanuary 132011 resulting in atotal dividend

payment for 2010 of $258.7 million or $0.36 per share

Our payment of dividends is permitted under our public notes and existing financing agreements although our revolving

credit agreement restricts the payment of dividends in the event we are in default under such agreement or such payout would

cause default under such agreement While it is our intention to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends for 2013 and beyond

any decision to pay future cash dividends will be made by our Board of Directors and will depend upon our earnings financial

condition and other factors On March 2013 our Board of Directors approved the payment of cash dividend of $0.12 per

share to be paid onApril 18 2013 for stockholders of record on March 29 2013
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Stock Performance Graph

The folfowing graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on Staples common stock the Standard Poors

500 Index and the Standard Poors Retail Index during our 2008 through 2012 fiscal years assuming the investment of $100.00

on February 2008 with dividends being reinvested

$250

$200
$150 -e

$0 --------------___________________________

212/08 109 30110 29ll 12812 212 13

2-Feb-08 31-Jan-09 30-Jan-10 29-Jan-Il 28-Jan-12 2-Feb-13

Staples Inc 100.00 67.57 101.01 97.72 71.94 62.81

SP 500 Index 100.00 61.37 81.71 99.84 104.05 121.51

SP Retail Index 100.00 65.03 103.04 133.58 154.73 1983

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about our purchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal

2012

Total Number of

Shares

Purchased1

Total Number of

Shares Purchased

as Part of

Average Price Publicly

Paid per Share Announced Plans

or Programs3

Approximate

Dollar Value of

Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased

Under the Plans or

Programs3

Includes total of 14695 shares of our common stock withheld during the fourth quarter of our 2012 fiscal year to satisi

minimum statutory tax withholding obligations in connection with the vesting of restricted stock awards granted pursuant

to our equity incentive plans

Average price paid per share includes commissions paid in connection with our publicly announced share repurchase

programs and is rounded to the nearest two decimal places

On September 13 2011 we announced that our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $1.5 billion of

common stock in both open market and privately negotiated transactions Our repurchase program has no expiration

date and may be suspended or discontinued at any time

Other Information

For information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans please see Note

Equity Based Employee Benefit Plans in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

At March 2013 we had 4957 holders of record of our common stock

u--Staples Inc --SP500 ----SPRetai1

TOTAL RETURN TO STOCKHOLDERS

Total for fourth quarter of 2012

Fiscal Period

October 28 2012 November 24 2012 2420331 1.58 2420300 927336000

November 25 2012- December 29 2012 3090982 11.61 3076.468 891623000

December 30 2012 February 2013 1891.550 12.33 1891400 868311000

7402863 11.78 7388168 868311000
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Item Selected Financial Data

The information required by this Item is attached as Appendix

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information required by this Item is attached as part of Appendix

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The information required by this Item is attached as part of Appendix under the caption Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures about Market Risks

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is attached as Appendix

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management with the participation of the Companys chief executive officer and chief financial officer

evaluated as of February 2013 the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures which were designed

to be effective at the reasonable assurance level The term disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and

5d- 15e under the Exchange Act means controls and other procedures of company that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms Disclosure controls and procedures

include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by company

in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the companys management

including its principal executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosure Management recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit

relationship of possible controls and procedures Based on the evaluation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as

of February 22013 management the chief executive officer and the chieffinancial officer concluded that the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level at that date

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for

the Company internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15f or lSd-15f promulgated under the Exchange

Act as process designed by or under the supervision of the companys principal executive and principal financial officers and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Staples internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and Board

regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements All internal control systems no matter how well

16



designed have inherent limitations which may not prevent or detect misstatements Therefore even those systems determined to

be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to fmancial statement preparation and presentation Projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Our management assessed the effectiveness of Staples internal controls over financial reporting as of February 22013

In making this assessment it used the criteria set forth in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on our assessment we conclude that as of February

2013 the Company has maintained effective internal control over financial reporting based on those criteria

The independent registered public accounting firm Ernst Young LLP has audited the Consolidated Financial

Statements and has issued an attestation report on Staples Inc.s internal controls over financial reporting as of February 2013

as stated in its reports which are included herein
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Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Staples Inc

We have audited Staples Inc.s internal control overfinancial reporting as ofFebruaiy 22013 basedon cnteriaestablished

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

the COSO criteria Staples Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements
Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal

control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys
assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Staples Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

February 2013 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of Staples Inc and subsidiaries as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 and the

related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years

in the period ended February 22013 of Staples Inc and our report dated March 62013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March62013
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 3a- 5f and 5d-1 5f under

the Exchange Act occurred during the fiscal quarter ended February 2013 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

PART III

Certain information required by Part III is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by

reference to the definitive proxy statement with respect to our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Proxy Statement

which we will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered

by this Report

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information required by this Item is contained under the heading Executive Officers of the Registrant in Part

ofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K Other information required by this Item will appear under the headings Proposal 1Election

of Directors and Corporate Governance in our Proxy Statement which sections are incorporated herein by reference

The information required by this Item pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K will appear under the heading Section 16

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in our Proxy Statement which section is incorporated herein by reference

We have adopted written code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions Our code of ethics which also applies to our

directors and all of our officers and associates can be found on our web site which is located at www.staples.com and is also an

exhibit to this report We intend to make all required disclosures concerning any amendments to or waivers from our code of ethics

by filing Form 8-K disclosing such waiver or to the extent permitted by applicable NASDAQ regulations by posting such

information in the Investor Information section of our web site

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will appear under the headings Corporate Governance Director Compensation

and Executive Compensation including Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Committee Interlocks and

Insider Participation and Compensation Committee Report in our Proxy Statement which sections are incorporated herein by

reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item will appear under the headings Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock and

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans in our Proxy Statement which sections are incorporated

herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item will appear under the headings Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

and Director Independence in our Proxy Statement which sections are incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will appear under the heading Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

Fees in our Proxy Statement which section is incorporated herein by reference
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Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements The following financial statements and schedules of Staples Inc are included

as Appendix of this Report

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets February 2013 and January 28 2012

Consolidated Statements of Income Fiscal years ended February 2013 January 28 2012 and January 29 2011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Fiscal years ended February 2013 January 28 2012 and

January 29 2011

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity Fiscal years ended February 22013 January 282012 and January 29

2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Fiscal years ended February 22013 January 28 2012 and January 29 2011

and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule TIValuation and Qualifying Accounts

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission other than the one listed above are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable and therefore

have been omitted

Exhibits The exhibits which are filed or furnished with this report or which are incorporated herein by reference are

set forth in the Exhibit Index on page D- which is incorporated herein by reference
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on March 2013

STAPLES iNC

By Is RONALD SARGENT

Ronald Sargent

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated
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Signature

Is RONALD SARGENT

Ronald Sargent

Is BASIL ANDERSON

Basil Anderson

Capacity

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Director

Date

March 2013

March 2013

Is ARTHUR BLANK

ArthurM Blank

Is DREW FAUST

Drew Faust

Is JUSTIN KING

Justin King

Is CAROL MEYROWITZ

Carol Meyrowitz

Is ROWLAND MORIARTY

Rowland Moriarty

Is ROBERT NAKASONE

Robert Nakasone

Is ELIZABETH SMITH

Elizabeth Smith

Is ROBERT SULENTIC

Robert Sulentic

Is VIJAY VISHWANATH

Vijay Vishwanath

Is PAUL WALSH

Paul Walsh

Is CHRISTINE KOMOLA

Christine Komola

Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

March 62013

March 62013

March 62013

March 62013

March 62013

March 2013

March 2013

March 2013

March 2013

March 62013

March 62013

March 2013Is STEPHEN BACICA

Stephen Bacica
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APPENDIX

STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Except Per Share Data

Sales

February January 28
2013 23 20124
53 Weeks 52 Weeks

24380510 24664752

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29 January 30 January 31
20115 20106 20097

52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

24135253 23806.934 22.722.725

4inounts attributable to Staplec Inc

Loss income from continuing operations 160728 988220 892.339 750.436 802554

Loss income from discontinued

operations net of income taxes 49978 3564 10.391 ll7651 2710

Loss income attributed to Staples Inc 210.706 984.656 881.948 738.671 805264

Bade earnings per common hare

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.24 1.42 1.24 1.06 1.15

Discontinued operations attributed to

Staples TIle 0.07 0.01 0.02

Net Ooss income attributed to Staples 0.31 1.42 1.23 1.04 1.15

Inc

Diluted earnings per common share

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.24 1.40 1.22 1.04 1.13

Discontinued operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.07 0.01 0.02

Net income loss attributed to Staples 0.31 1.40 1.21 .5 .02 1.13

Inc

Dividends 0.44 0.40 1.36 0.33 0.33

Statistical Data

Stores open at end of period 2.215 2295 2281 2.243 2.218

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital 1.740665 216.542 174.574 392 448 951704

Total assets 12.280005 13430622 13911.667 13717.334 13.073.055

Total long-term debt less current portion 1001.943 1599.037 2.014 407 2500.329 1.968928

Noncontrolling interest 7941 7062 7471 83.054 58224

Stockholders equity 6.136.094 7022213 951181 6854940 5.622.431

The Companys fiscal year
is the 52 or 53 seeks ending the Saturday closest to .ianuary Results of operations include the

results of acquired businesses since the relevant acquisition date
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Working capital in 2012 excludes the current assets and current liabilities of discontinued operations

Beginning in the third quarter of 2012 the results of operations for the Companys European Printing Systems Division

business PSD which was acquired in 2008 in conjunction with the Corporate Express N.Y Corporate Express

acquisition are being reported in Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes in the Companys consolidated

statement of income The Companys results of operations for prior periods have been revised to conform to this

presentation

Results of operations for this period reflect pre-tax charges of $811.0 million for impairment of goodwill and long-lived

assets $207.0 million for restructuring activities related to strategic plan announced in September 2012 aimed at

accelerating growth $57.0 million for loss on early extinguishment of debt $26.2 million related to the termination

of the Companys joint venture agreement in India and $20.0 million for accelerated tradename amortization related to

rebranding the Companys business in Australia

Results of operations for this period reflect the receipt of $20.8 million tax benefit related to refund due to Corporate

Express N.Y Corporate Express from the Italian government that was previously deemed uncollectible

Results of operations for this period reflect $57.8 million $36.8 million net of taxes of integration and restructuring

costs associated with the acquisition of Corporate Express

Results of operations for this period reflect $84.2 million $55.2 million net of taxes of integration and restructuring

costs associated with the acquisition of Corporate Express and $42.0 million $27.5 million net of taxes charge related

to the settlement of retail wage and hour class action lawsuits

Results of operations for this period reflect $173.5 million $113.7 million net of taxes of integration and restructuring

costs associated with the acquisition of Corporate Express The results of Corporate Express have been included since

its acquisition in July 2008
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations

General

Our fiscal year is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Saturday closest to January 31 Fiscal year 2012 2012 consisted

of the 53 weeks ended February 22013 fiscal year 2011 2011 consisted of the 52 weeks ended January 28 2012 and fiscal

year 2010 2010 consisted of the 52 weeks ended January 29 2011

Results of Operations

Major contributors to our 2012 results as compared to the results for 2011 are reviewed in detail in the Consolidated

Performance and Segment Performance discussions and are summarized below

We generated $24.38 billion in sales decrease of 1.2%

North American Stores Online sales increased 0.7% and the business unit income rate decreased to 8.3% from 8.7%

North American Commercial sales increased 1.7% and the business unit income rate increased to 8.4% from 8.3%

International Operations sales decreased 10.2% while business unit income loss as percentage of sales decreased to

0.5% from 2.1%

Loss income from continuing operations attributed to Staples in 2012 was $160.7 million or $0.24 per basic and

diluted share compared to $988.2 million or $1.40 per diluted share for 2011

On non-GAAP basis income from continuing operations attributed to Staples was $936.1 million in 2012 which

excludes pre-tax charges of $811.0 million related to the impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets $207.0 million

related to restructuring activities $57.0 million related to the early extinguishment of debt $26.2 million related to the

termination of our joint venture arrangement in India and $20.0 million for accelerated tradename amortization

Non-GAAP earnings per diluted share from continuing operations attributed to Staples in 2012 was $1.39 compared with

$1.37 in 2011

See the non-GAAP reconciliations in the Non-GAAP Measures section further below

Outlook

We expect full year 2013 sales to increase in the low single digits compared to 2012 sales on 52 week basis of $23.9

billion We expect full year 2013 diluted earnings per share from continuing operations to be in the range of $1.30 to $1.35 We

expect to generate more than $900 million of free cash flow and plan to continue repurchasing our common stock through open-

market purchases during 2013

Our projections for 2013 are based on number of factors First we expect an impact from the early stages of our strategic

reinvention our focus on growing our online sales and on reducing costs should have an impact on both the top and bottom line

throughout 2013 In addition we expect the reduction in square footage in North American Stores the consolidation of sub-scale

businesses in Europe the reduction in global headcount and the reduction in high interest bearing debt to help reduce operating

costs creating funds that we can invest in other areas of the business to create sharper pricing improve our customer facing

technology expand our brand marketing acquire new customers and hire and retain talented associates to better serve the needs

of our customers

Non-GAAP Measures

In our analysis of the results of operations and our outlook we have referred to non-GAAP financial measures for sales

income from continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc earnings per share and our effective tax rate We believe these non

GAAP financial measures better enable management and investors to understand and analyze our performance by providing

meaningful information relevant to events that impact the comparability of underlying business results from period to period In

the measures presented we have excluded impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets and accelerated tradename amortization

because such items are non-cash in nature We have excluded restructuring charges certain tax items and the loss on early

extinguishment of debt because the exclusion of such amounts facilitates the comparison of the Companys financial results to its

historical operating results We have excluded the charge related to the termination of our joint venture arrangement in India

because the event is non-recurring in nature However these supplemental measures should be considered in addition to and not

as substitute for or superior to the related measures that are determined in accordance with GAAP
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

Reconciliations of these non-GAAP measures to the most directly comparable GAAP measures for 2012 and 2011 are

shown below amounts in thousands except for per share data

53 Weeks Ended

February 22013

Termination

Loss on early of JV

extinguishment arrangement

of debt in India

Income taxes 426270 426270

Adjustments -.- 24.390

Adjusted income taxes 426270 450660

Loss attributed to

noncontrolling

interests 119 119

Loss income from

continuing operations

attributed to Staples

Inc 160728 936112

Fifective tax rate 160.6% 3.5%

Per share loss income

from continuing

operations attributed to

Staples mc

Basic earnings per common
share 0.24 1.40

Diluted earnings per

common share r0.4 1.39

Weighted average common
shares outstanding 669 479 669479

Effect of dilutie

securities 6526

Weighted average common
shares outstaiiding

assuming dilution 669479 676005

52 Weeks Ended

January 28 2012

Net income Per Diluted Share

Income from continuing operations attributed to Stapes Inc 988220 1.40

Tax refund 20800 0.03

Non-GAAP income from continuing operations attributed to Sples Inc 967420 1.37

GAAP

Impairment

of goodwill Accelerated

long lived Restructuring trade-name

assets charges amortization Non-GAAP

Operating income 10065 0.996 207016 20049 $1548126

Interest and other expense
net 244.642 56958 26.211 161.473
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

The table below shows the impact of the 53rd week on sales in 2012 For further discussion see below under Consolidated

Performance and Segment Performance in thousands

Sales

2012

Year-over-year sales growth

compared with the 52 weeks

2011 ended January 28 2012

52 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended ended

January 26 January 28 February January 26
2013 2012 2013 201353rd eek

North American Stores Online 11827906 221425 11606421 $1 1741998 0.7 .2%

North American Commercial 8108402 158943 7949459 7974860 1.7 0.3%

International Operations 4444.202 80816 4363386 4947894 0.2% 11 .8%

Staples Inc consolidated $24380510 461184 $23919326 $24664752 1.2% 3.0%

Consolidated Performance

2012 Compared with 2011

Sales Sales for 2012 were $24.38 billion decrease of 1.2% from 2011 Sales for 2012 include $461.2 million of

revenue related to the additional week in 2012 Excluding the additional week sales for 2012 decreased by 3.0% from 2011 Our

sales decline for 2012 reflects decreased sales in International Operations 2% decline in comparable store sales in North America

and $193.6 million unfavorable impact from foreign exchange rates partially offset by non-comparable sales from stores opened

in the last twelve months and growth in our online businesses Declines in computers technology accessories and software were

partly offset by growth in facilities and breakroom supplies tablets and other mobile technology and copy and print services

Gross Profit Gross profit as percentage of sales was 26.6% for 2012 compared to 27.1% for 2011 The decrease in

gross profit rate was primarily driven by lower product margins across all three segments and by deleverage of fixed costs on

lower sales in International Operations and North American Stores Online The lower product margins reflect inflationary

pressures on core office supplies investments to drive sales and customer loyalty and with respect to International Operations

adverse product and customer mix in Europe

Selling General andAdministrative Expenses Selling general and administrative expenses in 2012 decreased by $106.9

million or 2.1% from 2011 driven primarily by lower compensation expense due to reduced incentive compensation earned in

2012 and reduced headcount as well as reduction in marketing expense These reductions were partially offset by investments

in our online businesses and other initiatives to drive growth and profit improvement and increased costs from legal settlements

As percentage of sales selling general and administrative expenses were 20.0% in 2012 compared to 20.2% for 2011

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges incurred in 2012 were

$771.5 million and $39.5 million respectively The goodwill impairment charges of $303.3 million and $468.1 million relate to

our Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units respectively components of our International Operations segment The

charges stem from strategic decision to reallocate investment resources to areas of the Company with higher growth potential

and they reflect lower projections for sales growth and profitability for these businesses as result of industry trends and the

ongoing economic weakness in Europe

The $39.5 million of long-lived asset impairment charges primarily relate to the closure of 46 retail stores in Europe and

15 retail stores in the United States and the consolidation of several sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe As result of these

actions we recorded long-lived asset impairment charges of $29.6 million and $5.1 million related to the Companys International

Operations and North American Retail segments respectively primarily relating to leasehold improvements and company-owned

facilities As result of the reduced long-term sales and profit projections we also recorded $4.8 million of charges related to

long-lived assets held for use in ongoing operations by our Europe Retail reporting unit primarily relating to leasehold improvements

at store locations

Restructuring charges Restructuring charges incurred in 2012 were $207.0 million These charges relate to the strategic

plan announced by the Company in the third quarter of 2012 to accelerate growth through the integration of our retail and online

offerings the restructuring of our International Operations segment and the reduction of our footprint to improve the productivity

in our stores in North America The charges recorded in 2012 consist of $106.4 million for ongoing lease obligations related to

facility closures $75.6 million for severance and benefit costs and $24.9 million for other associated costs The charges primarily

pertain to the closure of the 46 retail stores in Europe and the 15 retail stores in the United States the consolidation of the sub

scale delivery businesses in Europe and the reorganization of certain general and administrative functions in Europe For more

53 weeks

ended

February

2013
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

information regarding the restructuring charges recorded in 2012 see Note Restructuring Charges in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Amortization ofintangibles Amortization of intangibles was $78.9 million for 2012 compared to $64.9 million for 2011

primarily reflecting the amortization of Corporate Express related tradenames and customer relationships Amortization for 2012

includes $20.0 million of accelerated amortization related to strategic decision to rebrand our Australian business from the

Corporate Express tradename to the Staples tradename as we continue to move towards one global brand Prior to the decision to

rebrand this business the carrying value of the tradename was scheduled to be amortized through the end of our fiscal year 2014

Amortization of intangibles resulting from our acquisition of Corporate Express excluding the accelerated amortization was $48.7

million for 2012 compared to $53.1 million for 2011

Interest Income Interest income decreased to $5.3 million for 2012 from $7.4 million for 2011 This decrease was

primarily due to lower global weighted average interest rates partially offset by higher cash balances internationally

Interest Expense Interest expense decreased to $162.5 million for 2012 from $173.4 million for 2011 This decrease

was primarily due to reduction in debt balances resulting from the repayment of the $500 million 7.75% Notes the April 2011

Notes on April 2011 the repayment of the $325 million 7.375% Notes the October 2012 Notes on October 2012 and

the repayment or refinancing of certain debt and liquidity facilities in 2011 Our interest rate swap agreements reduced interest

expense by $21.0 million in 2012 and by $26.3 million for 2011

Loss on Early Extinguishment ofDebt In January 2013 the Company repurchased approximately $632.8 million of the

January 2014 Notes see Note Debt and Credit Agreements in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements pursuant to

cash tender offer As result of this tender offer the Company incurred pre-tax loss on early extinguishment of debt of $57.0

million in 2012 related to debt tender premiums and fees

Other Income Expense Net Other expense was $30.5 million for 2012 compared to $3.1 million for 2011 The expense

in 2012 was primarily driven by $26.2 million charge related to the termination of our joint venture arrangement in India

Income Taxes Our tax rate related to continuing operations was 160.6% in 2012 compared to 32.6% for 2011 The high

effective tax rate for 2012 reflects the fact that we incurred charges of $811.0 million for goodwill and long-lived asset impairment

$207.0 million related to restructuring activities and $26.2 million related to the termination of our joint venture arrangement in

India the majority bf which do not result in related income tax benefit Our tax rate in 2012 also reflects additional tax expense

related to establishing valuation allowances for previously recorded deferred tax assets as result of the closure of certain operations

in our Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units Excluding the impact of these items our effective tax rate was 32.5%

in 2012 Our tax rate in 2011 reflected tax benefit of $20.8 million related to refund due to Corporate Express from the Italian

government that was previously deemed uncollectible which was recorded as discrete item Excluding the impact of this benefit

our effective tax rate in 2011 was 34.0% See the non-GAAP reconciliations under the Non-GAAP Measures section above

reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate to our effective tax rate on historical net income is as follows

2012 2011

Federal statutory rate 35.0 35.0

State effective rate net of federal benefit 12.1 2.6

Effect of foreign taxes 3.3% 5.1

Tax credits 0.8% 0.5%

Italian tax refund previously deemed uncollectible 4%
Goodwill impairment 82.5

Change in valuation allowance 37.1 0.5

Other 2.0% 1.5

Effective tax rate 160.6 32.6

The effective tax rate in any year is impacted by the geographic mix of earnings The earnings generated primarily by

Staples in Australia Canada Hong Kong and the Netherlands contribute to the foreign tax rate differential noted above Income

taxes have not been provided on certain undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries of approximately $902.0 million net of the

noncontrolling interest because such earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested in the business The determination of

the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability
related to the undistributed earnings is not practicable because of the

complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

Discontinued Operations In conjunction with the strategic plan we announced in the third quarter of 2012 we are

pursuing the sale of our European Printing Systems Division business PSD former component of our International Operations

segment which operates in five countries in Europe and focuses on the sale rental and servicing of printing machinery Loss from

discontinued operations net of tax was $50.0 million in 2012 compared with $3.6 million in 2011 The loss in 2012 includes

$20.1 million of restructuring charges related to severance and benefit costs associated with plan to restructure PSDs operations

in connection with our ongoing effort to sell this business as well as $4.5 million of incremental tax expense related to the planned

sale

2011 Compared with 2010

Sales Sales for 2011 were $24.66 billion an increase of 2.2% from 2010 Our sales growth for 2011 reflects the positive

impact of foreign exchange rates of $401.9 million and to lesser extent growth in our contract and online businesses in North

America partially offset by decrease in comparable store sales in our European retail businesses

Gross Profit Gross profit as percentage of sales was unchanged at 27.1% for 2011 and 2010 The favorable impact

of improved product margins in our North America Stores Online segment was offset by the impact of higher fuel costs in our

delivery businesses around the world

Selling General and Administrative Expenses Selling general and administrative expenses were 20.2% of sales for

2011 compared to 20.0% for 2010 This increase reflects investments in labor to support growth initiatives and deleverage in

international fixed costs partially offset by reduced incentive compensation and lower depreciation

Integration and Restructuring Costs There were no integration and restructuring costs for 2011 compared to $57.8

million for 2010 Integration and restructuring costs for 2010 included $37.6 million of consulting and other costs $10.0 million

for severance and retention and $10.2 million for facility closures and other asset write-downs

Amortization of Intangibles Amortization of intangibles was $64.9 million for 2011 compared to $61.7 million for 2010

primarily reflecting the amortization of Corporate Express related tradenames customer relationships and noncompetition

agreements Amortization of intangibles resulting from our acquisition of Corporate Express was $53.1 million for 2011 compared

to $50.1 million for 2010

Interest Income Interest income remained unchanged at $7.4 million for 2011 and 2010 The unfavorable impact from

decrease in our worldwide weighted-average cash balances and slight decrease in U.S interest rates was offset by the impact

of an increase in foreign interest rates

Interest Expense Interest expense decreased to $173.4 million for 2011 compared to $214.4 million for 2010 This

decrease was primarily due to reduction in debt balances resulting from the repayment of the $500 million 7.75% Notes the

April 2011 Notes on April 2011 the repayment or refinancing of certain debt and liquidity facilities and the positive impact

of our interest rate swap agreements slightly offset by an increase in foreign borrowings We used interest rate swap agreements

to convert portion of our fixed rate debt obligations into variable rate obligations In September 2011 we terminated all of our

existing interest rate swap agreements The interest rate swap agreements that were terminated reduced interest expense by $26.3

million for 2011 compared to $25.2 million for 2010

Other Income Expense Net Other expense was $3.1 million for 2011 compared to $9.8 million for 2010 The expense

in 2011 primarily reflects equity method losses related to ourjoint venture arrangement in India partially offset by foreign exchange

gains while the amount in 2010 primarily related to foreign exchange losses
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Income Taxes Our effective tax rate was 32.6% for 2011 and 34.2% for 2010 reconciliation of the federal statutory tax

rate to our effective tax rate on historical net income was as follows

2011 2010

Federal statutory rate 35.0 35.0

State effective rate net of federal benefit 2.6 3.3

Effect of foreign taxes 5.1

Tax credits 0.5% 0.4%

italian tax refund previously deemed uncollectible .4%

Change in valuation allowance 0.5 2.2

Other 1.5% 2.1

Effective tax rate 32.6 34.2

The effective tax rate in any year is impacted by the geographic mix of earnings The earnings generated primarily by

Staples entities in Australia Canada Hong Kong and the Netherlands contribute to the foreign tax rate differential noted above

Income taxes have not been provided on certain undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries of approximately $896.6 million

net of the noncontrolling interest because such earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested in the business determination

of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related to the undistributed earnings is not practicable because of the

complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation

Segment Performance

Staples has three reportable segments North American Stores Online North American Commercial and International

Operations During 2012 we realigned our organization by combining our North American retail stores with Staples.com our

North American online store to provide more integrated and consistent shopping experience for our small business and home

office customers who often shop across both channels The new North American Stores and Online segment sells office-related

products and services to customers in the United States and Canada Staples.com had previously been component of the former

North American Delivery segment which is now referred to as North American Commercial The new North American Commercial

segment consists of the U.S and Canadian businesses that sell and deliver office products and services directly to businesses and

includes Staples Advantage and Quill.com Our segment information for 2011 and 2010 has been revised to reflect this change

in the Companys reportable segments The International Operations segment consists of businesses that operate stores and that

sell and deliver office products and services directly to consumers and businesses in 23 countries in Europe Australia South

America and Asia During the third quarter of 2012 we began classifying PSD which was formerly part of the International

Operations segment as discontinued operation Accordingly the results of operations for International Operations have been

revised to exclude PSD for all periods presented Additional geographic information about our sales is provided in Note

Segment Reporting in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following tables provide summary of our sales and business unit income by reportable segment and store activity

for the last three fiscal years Business unit income excludes goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges integration and

restructuring charges stock-based compensation interest and other expense other non-recurring items and the impact of changes

in accounting principles see reconciliation of total business unit income to consolidated income before income taxes in Note

Amounts in thousands 2012 2011

Increase Increase

From Prior Year From Prior YearSales 2012 2011 2010

NorthAmericanStores Online 11 827.906 11741998 11541500 0.7% 1.7%

North American Commercial 8108402 7974860 7.837475 1.7 1.8%

International Operations 4444202 4947.894 4756278 lO.2% 4.0%

Total segment sales 24380510 24664752 24135253 1.2% 2.2%
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Amounts in thousands
2012 2011 2010

2011 2010 of Sales of Sales 5/ of Sales

680011 660822 646462 8.4 8.3% 8.2%

21j46 IO3329 176442 03% 11% 3.7%

1645890 1785593 1787993 6.8 7.2% 7.4%

Stores Stores

Open at Open at

Beginning Stores Stores End
of Period Opened Closed of Period

1900 31 14 19I7

381 378

Z2SI 37 23

1917 17 48 1886

378 56 32

2295 24 104 2215

Sales increased 0.7% for 2012 compared to 2011 Sales for 2012 include $221.4 million of revenue related to the additional

week in 2012 Excluding the additional week sales for 2012 decreased by 1.2% from 2011 This decrease was driven by 2%
decline in comparable store sales and to much lesser extent the negative impact of foreign exchange rates of $9.6 million partly

offset by growth in Staples.com and non-comparable sales for new stores opened in the past twelve months The decrease in sales

reflects declines in technology accessories software and computers These declines were partially offset by growth in tablets and

other mobile technology facilities and brealcoom supplies and copy and print services The decline in comparable store sales

reflects decrease in customer traffic and flat average order size

Business unit income as percentage of sales decreased to 8.3% for2Ol2 from 8.7% for 2011 The decrease was primarily

driven by unfavorable product margins increased labor expenses and investments to optimize our pricing profit improvement

and sourcing strategies These expenses were partially offset by reduction in incentive compensation and marketing expense

In 2012 North American Stores Online recorded the following charges which are excluded from the definition of

business unit income

Restructuring charges of $30.0 million for contractual lease obligations severance and other associated costs primarily

related to the accelerated closure of 15 retail stores in the United States

Long-lived asset impairment charges of $5.1 million reiatea to the write-down of fixed assets in connection with the

closure of the 15 retail stores

2011 Compared with 2010

Sales increased 1.7% for 2011 compared to 2010 This increase was the result of the positive impact of foreign exchange

rates of $81.1 million and non-comparable sales for new stores opened in the past twelve months The sales increase reflects

positive performance in laptops tablets and e-readers partially offset by softness in digital cameras and computer media

Comparable store sales were flat reflecting deºrease in customer traffic offset by an increase in average order size

Business unit income as percentage of sales increased to 8.7% for 2011 compared to 8.4% for 2010 primarily reflecting

improved product margins and reduced rent and occupancy costs partially offset by investments in marketing and labor to drive

new initiatives

STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

Business Unit income 2012

North American Commercial

e$tiOP4QPt1Sk
Business unit income

Store

Activity

itf North Mnerican Stores Online

2011 International Operations

2012 North American Stores Online

lntematiol Operations

2012 Total

North American Stores Online

2012 Compared with 2011
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North American Commercial

2012 Compared with 2011

Sales increased 1.7% for 2012 compared to 2011 Sales for 2012 include $158.9 million of revenue related to the additional

week in 2012 Excluding the additional week sales for 2012 decreased by 0.3% from 2011 This decrease was primarily driven

by the decision late in 2011 to not renew two large customer contracts that did not deliver adequate returns and to lesser extent

decline in sales of core supplies partially offset by increased sales of facilities and breakroom supplies furniture and copy and

print services

Business unit income as percentage of sales increased to 8.4% for 2012 from 8.3% for 2011 primarily reflecting reduced

incentive compensation as well as lower marketing costs and increased supply chain efficiencies This increase was partially offset

by inflationary pressures on core office supplies and increased costs associated with legal settlements

2011 Compared with 2010

Sales increased 1.8% for 2011 compared to 2010 This increase was driven by organic sales growth our fourth quarter

2010 Print South acquisition and to lesser extent the positive impact of foreign exchange rates of$ 17.9 million Our sales growth

was favorably impacted by an increase in facilities and breakroom supplies promotional products and technology products This

growth was partially offset by softness in
paper

and copier and fax cartridges

Business unit income as percentage of sales increased to 8.3% for 2011 from 8.2% for 2010 primarily driven by improved

profitability in our facilities and breakroom and promotional products businesses in the U.S and in our contract business in Canada

as well as overall reduced incentive compensation This was partially offset by investments in labor to support growth initiatives

unfavorable product margins and higher fuel costs

International Operations

2012 Compared with 2011

Sales decreased 10.2% for2Ol2 compared to 2011 Sales for 2012 include $80.8 million of revenue related to the additional

week in 2012 Excluding the 53rd week sales decreased 11.8% for 2012 compared to 2011 This decrease was driven by declines

in our Australian and European businesses and the negative impact of foreign exchange rates of $180.6 million Broad-based

weakness in the sales environment drove an 8% decrease in comparable store sales in Europe

Business unit loss income as percentage of sales decreased to 0.5% for 2012 from 2.1% for 2011 The decrease was

primarily driven by deleverage of fixed costs on lower sales $20.0 million of accelerated tradename amortization declines in

European product margins resulting from adverse product and customer mix an increase in investments to drive sales and an

increase in severance-related costs across our International businesses These factors were partially offset by savings related to

headcount reductions in our European and Australian businesses

In 2012 International Operations recorded the following charges which are excluded from the definition of business

unit income

Goodwill impairment charges of $303.3 million and $468.1 million related to our Europe Retail and Europe Catalog

reporting units respectively primarily due to strategic decision to reallocate resources to other Staples business units

with greater growth potential which reflects the effects of industry trends and ongoing economic weakness in Europe

Long-lived asset impairment charges of $29.6 million related to the write-down of fixed assets in connection with the

closure of 46 retail stores and the consolidation of certain sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe and $4.8 million of

charges related to leasehold improvement assets held for use in ongoing operations by our Europe Retail reporting unit

that we determined were not fully recOverable from future cash flows projected to be generated by the related stores

Restructuring charges of $177.1 million for contractual lease obligations severance and other associated costs

primarily related to the closure of the retail stores and the consolidation of the sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe

2011 Compared with 2010

Sales increased 4.0% for 2011 compared to 2010 This increase was driven by the positive impact of foreign exchange

rates of $303.0 million and to lesser extent full year of sales from our second quarter 2010 acquisition of Oy Lindell AB an

office products distributor based in Finland These increases were partially offset by 9% decrease in comparable store sales in

Europe and decreased sales in our Australian business
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Business unit income as percentage of sales decreased to 2.1% for 2011 from 3.7% for 2010 primarily reflecting

deleverage of fixed costs and expenses associated with our system investments in Australia and deleverage of fixed costs in our

European retail businesses

CriticalAccounting Policies and Sign jficant Estimates

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and are based on the application of significant

accounting policies see Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements Preparation of these statements requires management to make significant judgments and estimates We believe that

the following are some of the more critical judgment areas in the application of our accounting policies that currently affect our

financial condition and results of operations

Inventory We record inventory at the lower of weighted-average cost or market value We reserve for obsolete

overstocked and inactive inventory based on the difference between the weighted-average cost of the inventory and the estimated

market value using assumptions of future demand and market conditions If actual market conditions are less favorable than those

projected by management additional reserves may be required

Based on historical experience we do not believe these estimates and assumptions will have material impact upon the

financial statements Past experience has shown little variability in reserve estimates Over the past three years our inventory

write-offs have been within range that has averaged approximately 6% difference from our additions to inventory reserves

Purchase and Advertising Rebates We earn rebates from our vendors which are based on various quantitative contract

terms that can be complex and subject to interpretation Amounts expected to be received from vendors relating to the purchase

of merchandise inventories and reimbursement of incremental costs such as advertising are recognized as reduction of inventory

cost and realized as part of cost of goods sold as the merchandise is sold Several controls are in place including direct confirmation

with vendors which we believe allows us to ensure that these amounts are recorded in accordance with the terms of the contracts

Past experience has shown little variability in purchase and advertising rebate estimates no collectability issues and no

significant write-off history Given the historical accuracy of our estimates we believe that significant change in our estimates

is not likely

Impairment of Goodwill We review goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quarter and when events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill might exceed its current fair value We determine fair value using

discounted cash flow DCF analysis which requires significant management assumptions and estimates regarding industry

economic factors and the future profitability of our businesses It is our policy to allocate goodwill and conduct impairment testing

at reporting unit level based on our most current business plans which reflect changes we anticipate in the economy and the

industry We established and continue to evaluate our reporting units based on our internal reporting structure and define such

reporting units at the operating segment level or one level below The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow approach

include

The reporting units projections of financial results which range from five to thirteen years depending on the maturity of

the underlying business For established businesses such as our North American retail and contract operations we use

five year model while in our emerging market businesses we use thirteen year model which reflects managements

expectations of the development time for these growth-oriented businesses In general our reporting units fair values

are most sensitive to our sales growth and operating profit rate assumptions which represent estimates based on our

current and projected sales mix profit improvement opportunities and market conditions If the business climate

deteriorates or if we fail to manage our businesses successfully then actual results may not be consistent with these

assumptions and estimates and our goodwill may become impaired

The projected terminal value for each reporting unit represents the present value of projected cash flows beyond the last

period in the discounted cash flow analysis The terminal values are most sensitive to our assumptions regarding long-

term growth rates which are based on several factors including local and macroeconomic variables the market opportunity

and future growth plans While we believe our long-term growth assumptions are reasonable in relation to these factors

and our historical results actual growth rates may be lower than our assumptions due to variety of potential causes

such as secular decline in demand for our products and services unforeseen competition long-term GDP growth rates

in established economies being lower than historical growth rates or long-term deceleration in the growth rates of

emerging markets

The discount rate which is used to measure the present value of the projected future cash flows and which is set using

weighted-average cost of capital method that considers market and industry data as well as our specific risk factors that
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are likely to be considered by market participant The weighted-average cost of capital is our estimate of the overall

after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of business enterprise The reporting units weighted-average

costs of capital in future periods may be impacted by adverse changes in market and economic conditions including risk-

free interest rates and are subject to change based on the facts and circumstances that exist at the time of the valuation

which may increase the possibility of potential future impairment charge

The fair values of all of our reporting units are based on underlying assumptions that represent our best estimates Many

of the factors used in assessing fair value are outside of the control of management and if actual results are not consistent with our

assumptions and judgments we could be exposed to further impairment charges To validate the reasonableness of our reporting

units estimated fair values we reconcile the aggregate fair values of our reporting units to our total market capitalization

During 2012 we continued to monitor our European businesses which we had disclosed were at risk for impairment

With the continued political and economic instability in Europe recent history of declining sales and profits for our businesses in

that region sustained decline of our stock price and revised short-term and long-term outlooks for our European businesses we

determined in our third fiscal quarter that sufficient indicators of impairment existed to require an interim goodwill impairment

analysis for our Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units both of which are included in our International Operations

segment

In September 2012 management presented and the Board of Directors approved strategic plan to accelerate growth

across the Company and to reposition our operations and stem losses in Europe In connection with the development of this plan

we analyzed each of our European businesses in light of ongoing industry trends economic conditions and long-term sales and

profit projections The Companys management and board of directors concluded strategic shift in the business was crucial to

Staples long-term business prospects in Europe As result we made strategic decisions and announced plan to restructure our

operations in Europe divest our printing systems division and more fully integrate our retail and online offerings

The outcome of this strategic review in the third quarter included significant changes in the long-range financial projections

for Europe Retail and Europe Catalog compared with previous projections We now project long-term sales declines in our Europe

Retail business stemming from decision in light of industry trends to allocate more resources and capital to the expansion of

online capabilities We also project declines in our legacy Europe Catalog business which is projected to be replaced with the

growing but less profitable online business Based on the results of the impairment testing we recorded impairment charges of

$303.3 million and $468.1 million related to Europe Retail and Europe Catalog respectively in the third quarter of 2012

During the fourth quarter of 2012 we performed our annual goodwill impairment testing and determined that no further

impairment charges were required in 2012 As of the end of 2012 taking into account the charges recorded during 2012 there is

$331 million of remaining goodwill associated with Europe Catalog and none associated with Europe Retail If macroeconomic

or industry conditions in Europe continue to deteriorate or if management is unable to successfully execute our strategic plan then

we could incur additional goodwill impairment charges in the future related to Europe Catalog Additionally if our stock price

experiences further sustained and significant decline we could incur additional impairment charges related to Europe Catalog

or our other reporting units

As of the end of 2012 we had two reporting units with material goodwill balances for which the reporting units fair value

was less than 10% greater than its carrying value Europe Contract with $441 million of goodwill and China with $195 million

of goodwill Europe Contract is at increased risk of an impairment charge given the ongoing economic weakness in Europe and

China is at increased risk given its early stage of development and the volatile nature of the emerging market in which it operates

Despite the increased risk associated with these reporting units we do not believe there will be significant change in the key

estimates or assumptions driving the fair value of these reporting units that would lead to material impairment charge

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets We evaluate long-lived assets held for use for impairment whenever events and

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability is measured based upon the

estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the use of an asset plus any net proceeds expected to be realized

upon its eventual disposition An impairment loss is recognized if an assets carrying value is not recoverable and if it exceeds its

fair value Our policy is to evaluate long-lived assets for impairment at the lowest level for which there are clearly identifiable

cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities Our cash flow projections are based on

historical cash flows and our latest forecasts These projections and our estimates regarding proceeds to be received upon an

assets disposition reflect numerous assumptions and significant degree ofjudgment on the part of management If actual results

are less favorable than managements projections future write-offs may be necessary

Prior to performing the interim goodwill impairment tests for Europe Retail and Europe Catalog in the third quarter of

2012 we tested long-lived assets to be held and used by these reporting units for impairment on an undiscounted cash flow basis
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Based on the results of this testing we recorded $4.8 million impairment charge in the third quarter of2O 12 related to the ongoing

operations of Europe Retail and determined that the long-lived assets associated with the ongoing operations of Europe Catalog

were not impaired The impairment charge primarily related to leasehold improvements at retail stores and was based on estimates

of the fair values of the related assets which were derived using DCF valuation analysis incorporating similar assumptions and

estimates as discussed under Impairment of Goodwill above

We believe the operating results for our ongoing operations would need to be significantly less favorable than projected

to result in material impairment charge Our projected future cash flows are sufficient to recover the canying values of the

underlying assets with the exception of limited number of retail stores in new markets or challenging markets where short and

long-term initiatives are underway to improve current cash flows However based upon our historical experience with operations

in such markets we believe that significant change in our projections is not likely In addition if there was an impairment of

these store assets it would not have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial results

During 2012 we closed 46 retail stores in Europe and accelerated the closure of 15 retail stores in the United States and

consolidated several sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe in connection with the strategic plan we announced in September

2012 As result of these actions we recorded long-lived asset impairment charges of $29.6 million and $5.1 million related to

our International Operations and North American Stores and Online segments respectively primarily relating to leasehold

improvements and company-owned facilities

Pension Benefits Our pension costs and obligations are dependent on various assumptions Our major assumptions

relate primarily to expected long-term rates of return on plan assets discount rates and inflation In estimating the expected return

on plan assets we take into account the historical performance for the major asset classes held or anticipated to be held by the

applicable pension funds and current forecasts of future rates of return for those asset classes We base the discount rate on the

interest rate on high quality AA rated corporate bonds that have maturity approximating the term of the related obligations

We also make assumptions regarding employee demographic factors such as retirement patterns mortality turnover and the rate

of compensation increases

Based on our analysis of the financial impact of pension obligation assumptions and estimates we do not believe these

assumptions and estimates will have material impact on our financial statements The effect on pension obligations at February

2013 of change in discount rate and other assumptions is included in Note Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Taxes The amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits by federal state and foreign tax authorities

which may result in proposed assessments Our estimate for the potential outcome for any uncertain tax issue is highly judgmental

We assess our income tax positions and record tax benefits for all years subject to examination based upon our evaluation of the

facts circumstances and information available at the reporting date For those tax positions for which it is more likely than not

that tax benefit will be sustained we record the largest amount of tax benefit likely of being realized upon settlement with

taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information Interest is accrued where applicable We recognize net tax-

related interest and penalties in income tax expense If we do not believe that it is more likely than not that tax benefit will be

sustained no tax benefit is recognized However our future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our

estimated tax liabilities due to closure of income tax examinations new regulatory or judicial pronouncements or other relevant

events As result our effective tax rate may fluctuate significantly on quarterly and annual basis

We record deferred income tax assets for timing differences related to tax payments We record valuation allowance to

reduce our deferred income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized We have considered estimated

future taxable income and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the amount needed for the valuation allowance If actual

results differ unfavorably from those estimates used we may not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred tax assets and

additional valuation allowances may be required

Historically settlements related to our unrecognized tax benefits as described in Note Income Taxes in the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements have been minimal

Recently AdoptedAccounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 pronouncement was issued providing consistent definitions and disclosure requirements of fair value with

respect to U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards The pronouncement changed certain fair value measurement

principles and enhanced the disclosure requirements particularly for Level measurements The changes were effective

prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company adopted this pronouncement on

January 29 2012 The adoption of this guidance did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements
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In June 2011 pronouncement was issued that amended the guidance relating to the presentation of comprehensive

income and its components The pronouncement eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income

as part of the statement of equity and requires an entity to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income

and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two

separate but consecutive statements The Company adopted this pronouncement on January 292012 The adoption of this guidance

required changes in presentation only and therefore did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In September 2011 pronouncement was issued that amended the guidance for goodwill impairment testing The

pronouncement allows the entity to perform an initial qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that

the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount This assessment is used as basis for determining whether it

is necessary to perform the two step goodwill impairment test that is otherwise required to be performed annually The methodology

for how goodwill is calculated assigned to reporting units and the application of the two step goodwill impairment test have not

been revised The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 and only applies to the required

annual test for impairment not to interim testing or reviews for potential impairment indicators The Company adopted this

pronouncement on January 292012 The adoption of this guidance did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

2012 Compared to 2011

Cash provided by operations was $1.22 billion for 2012 compared to $1.58 billion for 2011 The decrease in operating

cash flow from 2011 to 2012 was primarily due to decrease in net income adjusted for non-cash expenses in 2012 and to lesser

extent from changes in working capital

Cash used in investing activities was $342.0 million for 2012 compared to $383.7 million for 2011 The $41.7 million

decrease in cash used in investing activities from 2011 to 2012 was primarily due to lower capital spending driven by reductions

in system-related investments and fewer new store openings

Cash used in financing activities was $812.3 million for 2012 compared to $1.36 billion for 2011 The decrease in cash

used for financing activities in 2012 compared with 2011 was primarily attributable to the receipt in 2012 of net proceeds of $991.4

million from the issuance of the January 2018 Notes and the January 2023 Notes each as defined below which more than offset

an increased use of cash in 2012 to retire debt obligations In 2012 we completed tender offer in which we repurchased $632.8

million of the January 2014 Notes and we repaid in frill the $325 million October 2012 Notes whereas in 2011 we used $500

million to repay the April 2011 Notes During 2012 we repurchased 34.8 million shares for $449.2 million compared to 37.3

million shares for $604.5 million in 2011 In 2012 we paid shareholders cash dividends of $0.44 per share for total of $294.1

million an increase from the $0.40 per share for total of $277.9 million paid in 2011

2011 Comparedto 2010

Cash provided by operations was $1.58 billion for 2011 compared to $1.45 billion for 2010 The increase in operating

cash flow from 2010 to 2011 was primarily due to an increase in net income adjusted for non-cash expenses in 2011 and to

lesser extent from changes in working capital including the impact of deferred taxes

Cash used in investing activities was $383.7 million for 2011 compared to $472.0 million for 2010 The decrease in cash

used in investing activities from 2010 to 2011 was primarily due to the 2010 acquisition of Oy Lindell Finnish office products

distributor combined with small decrease in capital expenditures during 2011 driven by reduction in spending on new stores

and store remodels activities and lower spending related to facility and system integration

Cash used in financing activities was $1.36 billion for 2011 compared to $938.4 million for 2010 The increase in cash

used in financing activities from 2010 to 2011 is primarily related to the $500 million repayment of the April 2011 Notes and

increased purchases under our share repurchase program offset by the prior year purchase of additional shares of Corporate Express

Australia Limited Corporate Express Australia During 2011 we repurchased 37.3 million shares for $604.5 million compared

to 18.0 million shares for $367.4 million during 2010 under our share repurchase program

Sources of Liquidity

To cover seasonal fluctuations in cash flows and to support our various growth initiatives we utilize cash generated from

operations and borrowings available under various credit facilities and commercial paper program We have revolving credit
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agreement with Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent and other lending institutions named therein the November

2014 Revolving Credit Facility which provides for maximum borrowing of $1.0 billion and which pursuant to an accordion

feature may be increased to $1.5 billion upon the Companys request and the agreement of the lenders participating in the increase

At the end of 2012 no borrowings were outstanding under the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility We also have various

other lines of credit under which we may borrow maximum of $309.9 million and under which we had outstanding borrowings

of$ 103.7 million and outstanding letters of credit of $0.2 million as of February 22013 leaving $206.0 million of available credit

at that date

We have commercial paper program Commercial Paper Programthat allows us to issue up to $1.0 billion ofunsecured

commercial paper notes Notes from time to time The November2014 Revolving Credit Facility serves as backstop to the

Commercial Paper Program Maturities of the Notes vary but may not exceed 397 days from the date of issue In 2012 we borrowed

under our Commercial Paper Program to support our seasonal working capital requirements In 2012 the weighted-average amount

outstanding under the Commercial Paper Program was $7.3 million with weighted-average interest rate of 0.4% At the end of

2012 there were no outstanding borrowings under the Commercial Paper Program The maximum amount outstanding under the

Commercial Paper Program during 2012 was $100.0 million

At February 2013 we had approximately $2.54 billion in total cash and funds available through credit agreements

which consisted of $1.21 billion of available credit and $1.33 billion of cash and cash equivalents Of the $1.33 billion in cash

and cash equivalents approximately $585 million is held in jurisdictions outside the United States While there could be tax

consequences if such amounts were moved out of these jurisdictions or repatriated to the United States we currently intend to use

most of the cash and cash equivalents held outside of the United States to finance the obligations and current operations of our

foreign businesses The determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related to the undistributed earnings

is not practicable because of the complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements as of February 22013 nor did we utilize any during 2012

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

summary as of February 2013 of balances available under our credit agreements and contractual obligations is

presented below amounts in thousands

Payments Due By Period

Total

Contractual Obligations and Available Outstanding Less than More than

Commercial Commitments 127 Credit Obligations Year Years1-3 Years 3-5 Years

January 2014 Notes 68 867218 867218

January 2018 Notes 500000 500000

January 2023 Notes 500.000 500000

November 2014 Revolving

Credit Facility 1000000

Lines of credit 205965 103734 103734

Other notes and capital leases 8241 3.973 3159 564 545

Total 1205965 1.979193 974925 3159 500.564 500545

Interestexpense 372.054 120179 71250 71250 109375

Operating leases 34 4128870 838677 1347870 910016 1032307

Purchase obligations 45 631495 475540 68625 29784 57546

As of February 22013 we had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $254.7 million of which $242.9 million if recognized

would affect the Companys tax rate and an additional 37.7 million for gross accrued interest and penalties see Note

Income Taxes in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements At this time we are unable to make reasonable

estimate of the timing of payments in connection with these tax liabilities therefore such amounts are not included in

the contractual obligation table above

The above table excludes expected future contributions to our pension and post-retirement benefit plans See Note

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for future details

about these future contributions

B- 13



STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

The operating lease payments reported above do not include common area maintenance or real estate taxes which are

expected to approximate 25% to 28% of the related operating lease payments Utility costs related to leased facilities

have also been excluded from this table because the payments do not represent contractual obligations until the services

have been provided Future annual minimum payments include restructuring related obligationsas of February 22013

Amounts include the contractual obligations of our discontinued operations

Many of our purchase commitments may be cancelled by us without advance notice or payment and we have excluded

such commitments along with intercompany commitments Contracts that may be terminated by us without cause or

penalty but require advance notice for termination are valued on the basis of an estimate of what we would owe under

the contract upon providing notice of termination

The amounts represent the par value of our debt obligations See Note Debt and Credit Agreements in the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to the carrying value of these obligations as of February

2013

As of February 2013 Staples had open standby letters of credit totaling $111.1 million

We plan to repay the remaining balance of the January 2014 Notes upon their maturity

January 2018 Notes and January 2023 Notes In January 2013 the Company issued $500 million aggregate principal

amount of 2.75% senior notes due January 2018 the January 2018 Notes and $500 million aggregate principal amount of

4.375% senior notes due January 2023 the January 2023 Notes or collectively the Notes for total net proceeds after the

original issue discount and the underwriters fees of approximately $991 million The Notes were issued with original discounts

at 99.727% and 99.808% respectively The Notes rank equally with all our other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness

The indenture governing the notes contains covenants that will limit the Companys ability to create certain liens and engage in

certain sale and leaseback transactions The indenture does not limit the amount of debt that we or any of our subsidiaries may

incur Interest on these Notes is payable in cash on semi-annual basis on January 12 and July 12 of each year The interest rate

payable on the Notes will be subject to adjustments from time to time if Moodys Investors Service Inc or Standard Poors

Ratings Services downgrades or downgrades and subsequently upgrades the rating assigned to the Notes We may redeem the

Notes at any time at certain redemption prices specified in the indenture governing the Notes Upon the occurrence of both

change of control of Staples Inc as defined in the indenture and downgrade of the Notes below an investment grade rating

by both of Moodys Investors Service Inc and Standard Poors Ratings Services within specified period we will be required

to make an offer to purchase the Notes at price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the

date of repurchase The Notes are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries

January 2014 Notes On January 15 2009 we issued $1.5 billion aggregate principal amount of notes due January 15

2014 the January 2014 Notes with fixed interest rate of 9.75% payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each

year commencing on July 15 2009 From the sale of the January 2014 Notes we received net proceeds after the underwriting

discount and estimated fees and expenses of $1.49 billion In March 2010 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement to turn

half of the January 2014 Notes into variable rate obligations and the swap agreement was subsequently terminated in September

2011 see Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements In

January2013 the Company repurchased approximately $632.8 million of the unhedged portion of the January 2014 Notes pursuant

to cash tender offer leaving $867.2 million aggregate principal balance still outstanding The January 2014 Notes are not

guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries see Note Debt and Credit Agreements of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

October 2012 Notes We repaid the $325 million 7.375% notes due October 2012 the October 2012 Notes on their

maturity date of October 12012 Upon repayment we took the actions required under the applicable guarantee fall-away provisions

to cause Staples the Office Superstore LLC Staples the Office Superstore East Inc Staples Contract Commercial Inc and

Staples the Office Superstore Limited Partnership collectively the Guarantor Subsidiaries to be legally released from their

guarantees of debt related to the January 2014 Notes the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility as defined below and the

Commercial Paper Program as defined below The Guarantor Subsidiaries no longer guarantee repayment of our debt

Revolving Credit Facility We have revolving credit agreement with Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent

and other lending institutions named therein the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility which provides for maximum

borrowing of $1.0 billion and which pursuant to an accordion feature may be increased to $1.5 billion upon our request and the

agreement of the lenders participating in the increase At the end of 2012 no borrowings were outstanding under the November

2014 Revolving Credit Facility

Borrowings made pursuant to the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility may be syndicated loans swing line loans

multicurrency loans or letters of credit the combined sum of which may not exceed the maximum borrowing amount Borrowings

made pursuant to the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest at various interest rates depending on the type

of borrowing plus percentage spread based on our credit rating and fixed charge coverage ratio Under the November 2014
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

Revolving Credit Facility we agree to pay facility fee at rates that range from 0.15% to 0.35% per annum depending on our

credit rating and fixed charge coverage ratio Amounts borrowed under the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility may be

borrowed repaid and reborrowed from time to time until November 2014

The November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility is unsecured and ranks pan passu with our public notes and other

indebtedness and contains customary affirmative and negative covenants for credit facilities of this type The November 2014

Revolving Credit Facility also contains financial covenants that require us to maintain minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and

maximum adjusted funded debt to total capitalization ratio

Commercial Paper Program Our commercial paper program Commercial Paper Program allows us to issue up to

$1.0 billion of unsecured commercial paper notes Notes from time to time The November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility

serves as backstop to the Commercial Paper Program Maturities of the Notes vary but may not exceed 397 days from the date

of issue During 2012 we borrowed under our Commercial Paper Program to support our seasonal working capital requirements
In 2012 the weighted-average amount outstanding under the Commercial Paper Program was $7.3 million with weighted-

average interest rate of 0.4% At the end of 2012 there were no outstanding borrowings under the Commercial Paper Program
The maximum amount outstanding under the Commercial Paper Program during 2012 was $100.0 million

Other Lines of Credit We had $309.9 million in borrowing capacity under various other lines of credit as of February
2013 with outstanding borrowings of $103.7 million and outstanding letters of credit of $0.2 million leaving $206.0 million of

available credit at that date

There were no instances of default during 2012 under any of our debt agreements

We expect that our cash generated from operations together with our current cash funds available under our existing

credit agreements and other alternative sources of financing will be sufficient to fund our capital expenditures for at least the next

twelve months

Uses of Capital

As result of our financial position in addition to investing in our existing businesses and pursuing strategic acquisitions

and partnerships we also expect to continue to return capital to our shareholders through cash dividend program and our share

repurchase program Depending on our credit metrics and our liquidity position we may repurchase our public notes in the open
market or through privately negotiated transactions

We expect modest increase in capital spending in 2013 resulting from investments in our online businesses and our

other strategic growth initiatives We are not planning to open significant number of new stores in 2013 but will instead continue

to focus on improving the productivity of existing stores We expect the source of funds for our capital expenditures to come from

operating cash flows

While we have primarily grown organically we may use capital to engage in strategic acquisitions or joint ventures in

markets where we currently have presence and in new geographic markets that could become significant to our business in future

years We do not expect to rely on acquisitions to achieve our targeted growth plans We consider many types of acquisitions for

their strategic and other benefits

We paid quarterly dividends of $0.11 per share on April 12 2012 July 12 2012 October 18 2012 and December 12

2012 resulting in total dividend payment of $294.1 million or $0.44 per share in 2012 We paid quarterly dividends of $0.10

per share on April 14 2011 July 14 2011 October 13 2011 and January 12 2012 resulting in total dividend payment for 2011

of $277.9 million or $0.40 per share We paid quarterly dividends of $0.09 per share on April 152010 July 152010 October 24
2010 and January 13 2011 resulting in total dividend payment for 2010 of $258.7 million or $0.36 per share While it is our

intention to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends for 2013 and beyond any decision to pay future cash dividends will be made

by our Board of Directors and will depend upon our earnings financial condition and other factors

From time to time we repurchase our common stock pursuant to programs approved by our Board of Directors On
September 13 2011 we announced new repurchase program that had been approved by the Board of Directors the 2011

Repurchase Plan Under this plan we are authorized to repurchase up to $1.5 billion of common stock in both open market and

privately negotiated transactions The 2011 Repurchase Plan has no expiration date and maybe suspended or discontinued at any
time In 2012 we spent $449.2 million to repurchase 34.8 million shares under the 2011 Repurchase Plan As of February

2013 we have spent total of $631.7 million to repurchase 47.4 million shares under the 2011 Repurchase Plan and therefore

the remaining repurchase authorization was $868.3 million as of that date We consider several factors in determining whether

and when to execute share repurchases including our current and projected operating results capital expenditure requirements

acquisitions or other strategic initiatives our capacity for leverage cost of borrowings and the market price of our common stock
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STAPLES iNC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations continued

Inflation and SeasonaThy

While neither inflation nor deflation has had nor do we expect them to have material impact upon our consolidated

operating results we may see price increases in certain categories from time to time Our business is somewhat seasonal with

sales and profitability historically higher during the second half of our fiscal year due to the back-to-school holiday and January

back-to-business seasons

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates We have risk management

control process to monitor our interest rate and foreign exchange risks The risk management process uses analytical techniques

including market value sensitivity analysis and value at risk estimates

Interest Rate Risk

At February 2013 we had variable rate debt obligations of approximately $112.0 million While variable rate debt

obligations expose us to the risk of rising interest rates management does not believe that the potential exposure is material to our

overall financial position or results of operations Based on February 2013 borrowing levels 1.0% increase or decrease in

current market interest rates would have the effect of causing $1.1 million additional pre-tax charge or credit to our statement

of operations In certain instances we may use interest rate swap agreements to modify fixed rate obligations to variable rate

obligations thereby adjusting the interest rates to current market rates and ensuring that the debt instruments are always reflected

at fair value We had no interest rate swap agreements outstanding as of February 2013

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign exchange risks through our business operations and investments in subsidiaries in Canada

Europe Australia South America and Asia The currencies for which we have the most significant exposure to exchange rate

fluctuations include the Canadian Dollar the Euro the British Pound Sterling and the Australian Dollar

Revenue and expense transactions in our foreign subsidiaries are primarily denominated in the respective local currencies

The income statements of our international operations are translated into U.S dollars at the average exchange rates in each applicable

period To the extent the U.S dollar weakens against foreign currencies the translation of these foreign currency-denominated

transactions results in increased revenues and operating expenses for our international operations Conversely our revenues and

operating expenses will decrease for our international operations when the U.S dollar strengthens against foreign currencies

While the matching of local currency revenues and local currency expenses provides in effect natural hedge such matching does

not completely reduce the foreign currency exchange rate exposure Revenues from our foreign operations accounted for

approximately 31% of consolidated revenues in 2012

The conversion of our foreign subsidiaries financial statements into U.S dollars will lead to translation gain or loss

which is recorded as component of other comprehensive income loss in stockholders equity 1112012 we recorded consolidated

foreign currency translation losses of approximately $36.6 million In addition certain of our foreign subsidiaries have assets

and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the relevant entitys functional currency Changes in the functional

currency value of these assets and liabilities will result in transaction gain or loss In 2012 we recorded foreign currency

transaction losses of approximately $3.1 million which are recorded in Other income expense net in our consolidated statement

of income

Our international business is subject to risks including but not limited to differing economic conditions changes in

political climate differing tax structures and other regulations and restrictions all of which may influence foreign currency

exchange rate volatility Accordingly our future results could be materially adversely impacted by changes in these or other factors

As exchange rates vary our international financial results may vary from expectations and adversely impact our overall operating

results

In accordance with our risk management policies we use derivative instruments on limited basis to hedge our foreign

currency exposures see Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements As of February 2013 we have entered into Canadian dollar to fixed U.S dollar currency forwards in order to

hedge certain intercompany loans Any increase or decrease in the fair value of our currency exchange rate sensitive derivative

instruments would be offset by corresponding decrease or increase in the fair value of the hedged underlying loans
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Staples Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Staples Inc and subsidiaries as of February 2013

and January 28 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2013 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule

listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of Staples Inc and subsidiaries at February 22013 and January 282012 and the consolidated results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2013 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Staples Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2013 based on criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our

report dated March 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March 2013
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Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Debt maturing within one year

Current liabilities of discontinued operations

1015225

1300258

2.625.949

1088669

6030101

4066926

1963175

384.609

3.221162

510622

1034983

1330373

2462351

1084358

5.912065

3831704

2080361

449781

3982130

627530

1405752 1414721

129672

Long-term debt net of current maturities 1001943 1599.037

Other long-term obligations 723343 735094

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock S.Ql par value 5000000 shares authorized no shares issued

Common stock 5.0006 par value 2100000.000 shares authorized issued and

outstanding 932246614 and 669.182785 shares at February 2013 and

922.126579 shares and 695.743547 shares at January 28 2012 respectiveJy 559 553

Additional paid-in capital 4711 13 4551299

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 388.773 319743
Retained earnings 6694207 7.199060

Less Treasury stock at cost 263063829 shares at February 2013 and

226.383032 shares at January 28 2012 4888.953 4.416018

Total Staples Inc stockholders equity 6128153 7015151

Noncontrolling interests 7941 7.062

Total stockholders equity 6136094 7Q22 13

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 12280.005 13430622

See notes to consolidated financial statements

STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Except Share Data

February 2013 January 28 2012

ASSETS

Current assets

Cashand cash equivalents 1334.302 1264149

Receivables net 1.815.586 2033.680

Merchandise inventories net 2314058 2431845
Deferred income tax assets 218899 30561

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 346.773 255535

Current assets of discontinued operations 70819

Total current assets 6.200437 6290820

Property and equipment

ld improvements

Land and buildings

Leaseh

Equipment

urnitw

Total property and equipment

Less Accumulated depreciation

Net property and equipment

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization

Goodwill

Other assets
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Except Share Data

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2013 January 28 2012 January 29 2011

Sales 24380510 24664752 24135253

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs 17889249 17974.884 17600006

Gross profit 6491261 6689868 6535247

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative 488484 4991195 4832444

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 810996

Amortization of intangibles 78900 64902 61689

Integration and restructuring costs 207016 57765

Total operating expenses
5.981196 5056097 4951898

Operating income 510065 1633771 1583349

Other expense income

Interest income 5340 7370 7397

interest expense 162.477 173394 214410

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 56958

Other income expense net 30547 3.103 9799

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 265.423 1.464644 1366537

Income tax expense
426270 477247 467577

Loss income from continuing operations including the

portion attributable to the noncontrolling interests 160847 987397 898960

Discontinued Operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 49978 3.564 10391

Consolidated net loss income 210825 983833 888569

Loss income attributed to the noncontrolling interests 119 823 6621

Loss income attributed to Staples Inc 210706 984656 881948

Arnount attributable to Slap/es Inc

Loss income from continuing operations 160728 988220 892339

Loss from discontinued operations 49978 3564 10391

Loss income attributed to Staples Inc 210706 984.656 881948

Basic Earningv Per Coinnion Shore

Continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.24 1.42 1.24

Discontinued operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.07 0.01

Net loss income attributed to Staples Inc 0.31 1.42 1.23

Diluted Earnings per Common Share

Continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.24 1.40 1.22

Discontinued operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.07 0.01

Net loss income attributed to Staples Inc 0.31 1.40 1.21

Dividends declared per common share 0.44 0.40 0.36

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Fiscal Year Ended

January 28 2012Februar% 2013 Januar 29 2011

consolidated net loss income t2l0825 983833 888369

Other comprehensive loss income net of

tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments 36602 19 1.972 2383

Changes in the fair value of derivatives net 2022 I5051 9469

Deferred pension and other post-retirement

benefit costs net 106656 27.520 2.114

Other comprehensive loss net of tax 68032 220997 t4 972

Comprehensive income attributed to

noncontrolling interests
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Dollar and Share Amounts in Thousands

Equity Attributed to Staples Inc

Accumulated

Oulstanding Additional Other Non- Total

Conimon omnion Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Treasury controlling Stockholders

Stock Stock Capital Loss Income Earnings Stock Interests Equity

Balances at January 30 2010 728.665 538 4379942 893371 5869138 3388.395 83054 6854940

Issuance of common stock or

stock options exercised 2.948 40.563 40.565

Shares issued upon grant of

Restricted Stock aids

and vesting of Restricted

Stock Units net of

forfeitures
6104 13

--

Stock-based compensation -- 46879 -- 46879

Sale of common stock under

Employee Stock Purchase

Plan and International

Savings Plan .743 44862 --- 44864

Net income for the year --
-- 881948 6.621 888569

common stock dividend 258.746 258746

Foreign currenc\ translation

adjustments
333 -- 2050 2383

changes in the fair value of

derivatives net of taxes of

$7.5 million 111043 574 9.469

Defert ed pension and other

postretiretent heridil

costs of taxes of

million
2.114 2.114

Repurchase of common stock 19.547 398.582 398582

Purchase of noncontrolling

interest 275767 -- 84828 360595

Other L74l -- 1741

Balances at Januai- 29 2011 120.913 545 433473 96.933 6.492.340 3.786.977 7471 6.951 181
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Equity Attributed to Staples Inc

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Paid-In Comprehensive

Stock Capital Loss Income

Non- Total

controlling Stockholders

Interests Equity

Shares issued upon grant
of

Restricted Stock Awards

and
vesting

of Restricted

Stock Units net of

forfeitures 595

Tax benefit on exercise of

options 805 .- 1805

Stock-based eontpensatton 151822 151822

Sale of common stock under

Employee Stock Purchase

Plan and International

Savings Plan 3830 47.975 47 977

Net Income loss for the ear 984.656 823 983 833

Common stock dividend 277936 277936

Foreign currency
translation

adjustments 193 785 1.813 191972

Changes in the fair value of

derivatives net of taxes of

$1.4 million 1505 1505

Deferred pension and other

post-retirement benefit

costs net of taxes of 80.9

million 27.520 27.520

Repurchase of common stock 38.846 629.041 629G41

Purchase of noncontrolling

interest 8.602 1398 10000

Other 2319 2320

Balances at January 28 2012 695744 553 4551299 319743 7199060 4416018

Stock-based compensation 117.813 117813

Sale of common stock under

Employee Stock Purchase

Plan and International

SavingsPlan 4.476 46119 46322

Netlossfortheyear 210706 119 210825

Common stock dividend ---- 294147 294147

Foreign currency
translation

adjustments 35.604 998 36602

changes in the fair value of

derivatives net of taxes of

$1.0 million 021 2.022

Deferred pension and other

post-retirement benefit

costs net of taes of $35.5

million 106.656 106656

Repurchase of common stock 36681 472.935 472935

Purchase of noncontrol lug

interest 7.910 7.910

Other 261 261

Outstanding

Common
Stock

Retained Treasury

Earnings Stock

Shares issued upon grant
of

Restricted Stock Awards

and vesting of Restricted

Stock Units net of

forfeitures

7062 7022213

BalancesatFebruary22013 669183 559 4711113 388773 6694207 4888953 7941 6136094

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Proceeds from borrowings

Payments on borrowings

Early settlement of debt

Purchase of noncontrolling interest

Cash diidends paid

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangemer

Repurchase of common stock

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Fiscal Year Ended

February 22013 January 28 2012 January 292011

STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Operating Activities

consolidated net loss income including loss from the

noncontrolling interests 210825 983833 888569

Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by

opemting activities

Depreciation
4084 13 417 154 437 174

Amortization of intangible assets 78900 64902 61689

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 810996

Stock-based compensation
117813 151822 146879

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 185 1805

Deferred income tax expense
112148 6706 172630

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 56 958

Loss related to equity method investment 2621

Other 7208 4452 5418

changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in receivables 122.628 73670 95.656

Decrease increase in merchandise inventories 87246 82343 46450

increase decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets 48.145 123.660 70.600

Decrease increase in accounts payable 260263 23677 63305

Decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities 111 246 117389 191 917

Increase in other long-term obligations 21331 75476 75450

Net cash provided by operating acti%ities 1219188 1576475 1.446.491

Investing Activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 3495741 383654 408889

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 9500

Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 1941 --- 63066

Net cash used in investing activities 342.015 383.654 47 1.955

Financing Activities

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the sale of stock under

employee stock purchase plans 49993 73866 85429

301843 201.5661.087.843

485554

689.740

7910

294.147

185

472.935

812265

5245

70153

1264.149

1334302

See notes to consolidated financial statements

10000

277936

1805

629041

1360094

29835

197108l

1461.257

360595

258.746

398582

938406

9308

45438

1.415.819
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations Staples Inc and subsidiaries Staples or the Company pioneered the office products superstore

concept and is the worlds leading office products company Staples has three reportable segments North American Stores

Online North American Commercial and International Operations The North American Stores Online segment consists of the

U.S and Canadian businesses that sell office products and services through retail stores and Staples.com The North American

Commercial segment consists of the U.S and Canadian businesses that sell and deliver office products and services directly to

businesses and includes Staples Advantage and Quill.com The International Operations segment consists of business units that

operate stores and that sell and deliver office products and services directly to customers in 23 countries in Europe Australia

South America and Asia

Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Staples Inc and its wholly and

majority owned subsidiaries All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation The Company

accounts for investments in businesses in which it owns between 20% and 50% of the voting interest using the equity method if

the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over the investee company Certain previously reported amounts

have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation

The operations of the Companys European Printing Systems Division business PSD which was acquired in 2008 in

conjunction with the Corporate Express N.y Corporate Express acquisition are being presented as discontinued operation

in the consolidated statement of income for all periods presented The assets and liabilities comprising the PSD disposal group

meet the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale and are being aggregated and presented as current assets and liabilities from

discontinued operations in the consolidated balance sheet for the current period See Note Discontinued Operations for

additional information regarding these discontinued operations Unless otherwise stated any reference to the consolidated

statement of income items in the notes to the consolidated financial statements refers to results from continuing operations

Fiscal Year Staples fiscal year is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Saturday closest to January 31 Fiscal year 2012

2012 consisted of the 53 weeks ended February 22013 fiscal year 2011 2011 consisted of the 52 weeks ended January 28
2012 and fiscal year 2010 2010 consisted of the 52 weeks ended January 29 2011

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America U.S GAAP requires management of Staples to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash Equivalents Staples considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to

be cash equivalents

Receivables Receivables include trade receivables financed under regular commercial credit terms and other non-trade

receivables Gross trade receivables were $1.36 billion at February 2013 and $1.49 billion at January 282012 Concentrations

of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to Staples large number of customers and their dispersion across

many industries and geographic regions

An allowance for doubtfil accounts has been recorded to reduce trade receivables to an amount expected to be collectible

from customers based on specific evidence as well as historic trends The allowance recorded at February 2013 and January 28
2012 was $33.5 million and $46.0 million respectively

Other non-trade receivables were $485.6 million at February 22013 and $591.5 million at January 282012 and consisted

primarily of purchase and advertising rebates due from vendors under various incentive and promotional programs Amounts

expected to be received from vendors relating to the purchase of merchandise inventories and reimbursement of incremental costs

such as advertising are recognized as reduction of inventory cost and realized as part of cost of goods sold as the merchandise

is sold

Merchandise Inventories Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of weighted-average cost or market value

The Company reserves for obsolete overstocked and inactive inventory based on the difference between the weighted-average

cost of the inventory and the estimated market value using assumptions of future demand and market conditions

Accounts Payable The Company has agreements with third parties to provide accounts payable tracking and payment

services which facilitate participating suppliers ability to finance payment obligations from the Company with designated third

party financial institutions Participating suppliers may at their sole discretion make offers to finance one or more payment

obligations of the Company prior to their scheduled due dates at discounted price to participating financial institutions The

Company has no economic interest in the sale of these receivables The Companys obligations to its suppliers including amounts
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due and scheduled payment dates are not impacted by suppliers decisions to finance amounts under these arrangements The

Company presents these obligations as trade accounts payable

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost Expenditures for normal maintenance and repairs

are charged to expense as incurred Depreciation and amortization which includes the amortization of assets recorded under capital

lease obligations are provided using the straight-line method over the following useful lives 40 years for buildings 3-10 years

for furniture and fixtures and 3-10 years for equipment which includes computer equipment and software with estimated useful

lives of 3-7 years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the underlying leases or the estimated

economic lives of the improvements Asset retirement obligations are recognized when incurred and the related cost is amortized

over the remaining useful life of the related asset

Lease Acquisition Costs Lease acquisition costs which are included in other assets are recorded at cost and amortized

using the straight-line method over the respective lease terms including option renewal periods ifrenewal ofthe lease is reasonably

assured which range from to 40 years Lease acquisition costs net of accumulated amortization at February 2013 and

January 28 2012 were $16.2 million and $20.0 million respectively

Impairment of Goodwill The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quarter and when events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill might exceed its current fair value The Company determines

fair value using discounted cash flow analysis which requires significant management assumptions and estimates regarding

industry economic factors and the future profitability of the Companys businesses It is the Companys policy to allocate goodwill

and conduct impairment testing at reporting unit level based on its most current business plans which reflect changes the Company

anticipates in the economy and the industry The Company established and continues to evaluate its reporting units based on its

internal reporting structure and generally defines such reporting units at the operating segment level or one level below

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement

ASC 820 establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest

priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurement then priority to quoted prices

for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and

model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market Level measurement then

the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level measurement

Impairment ofLong-LivedAssets The Company evaluates long-lived assets held for use for impairment whenever events

and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability is measured based upon

the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the use of an asset plus any net proceeds expected to be

realized upon its eventual disposition An impairment loss is recognized if an assets carrying value is not recoverable and if it

exceeds its fair value Staples policy is to evaluate long-lived assets for impairment at store level for retail operations and at an

operating unit level for Staples other operations

Exit and Disposal Activities The Companys policy is to recognize costs associated with exit and disposal activities

including restructurings when liability has been incurred Employee termination costs associated with ongoing benefit

arrangements are accrued when the obligations are considered probable and can be reasonably estimated while costs associated

with one-time benefit arrangements generally are accrued when the key terms of the arrangement have been communicated to the

affected employees Costs related to ongoing lease obligations for vacant facilities are recognized once the Company has ceased

using the facility and the related liability is recorded net of estimated future sublease income Payments made to terminate lease

agreement prior to the end of its term are typically accrued when notification is given to the landlord For property and equipment

that the Company expects to retire at the time of facility closing the Company evaluates whether the assets are impaired on

held for use basis and reassesses the assets estimated remaining useful lives

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized at the point of sale for the Companys retail operations and at the time of

shipment for its delivery sales The Company offers its customers various coupons discounts and rebates which are treated as

reduction of revenue

Sales of extended service plans are administered by either an unrelated third-party or by the Company The unrelated

third-party is the legal obligor in most of the areas they administer and accordingly bears all performance obligations and risk of

loss related to the service plans sold in such areas In these areas Staples recognizes net commission revenue at the time of sale

for the service plans In certain areas where Staples is the legal obligor the revenues associated with the sale are deferred and

recognized over the life of the service contract which is typically one to five years

Revenue is recorded net of taxes collected from customers that are remitted to governmental authorities with the collected

taxes recorded as current liabilities until remitted to the relevant government authority
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Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs includes the costs of merchandise

sold inbound and outbound freight receiving and distribution and store and distribution center occupancy including real estate

taxes and common area maintenance

Shipping and Handling Costs All shipping and handling costs are included as component of cost of goods sold and

occupancy costs

Selling General andAdininistrative Expenses Selling general and administrative expenses include payroll advertising

and other operating expenses for the Companys stores and delivery operations not included in cost of goods sold and occupancy
costs

Advertising Staples expenses the costs of producing an advertisement the first time the advertising takes place except
for the cost of direct response advertising primarily catalog production costs which are capitalized and amortized over their

expected period of future benefits i.e the life of the catalog Direct catalog production costs included in prepaid and other assets

totaled $19.5 million at February 2013 and January 28 2012 The cost of communicating an advertisement is expensed when

the communication occurs Total advertising and marketing expense was $533.6 million $582.6 million and $560.5 million for

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC Topics 505

Equity and 718 Stock Compensation Stock-based compensation for stock options is measured based on the estimated fair value

of each award on the date of grant using binomial valuation model Stock-based compensation for restricted shares is measured

based on the closing market price of the Companys common stock price on the date of grant less the present value of dividends

expected to be paid on the underlying shares but foregone during the vesting period The Company recognizes stock-based

compensation costs as expense on straight-line basis over the requisite service period

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits The Company maintains pension and post-retirement life insurance plans

for certain employees globally These plans include significant obligations which are calculated based on actuarial valuations

Key assumptions used in determining these obligations and related expenses include expected long-term rates of return on plan

assets discount rates and inflation The Company also makes assumptions regarding employee demographic factors such as

retirement patterns mortality turnover and the rate of compensation increases These assumptions are evaluated annually

Foreign Currency The assets and liabilities of Staples foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars at current

exchange rates as of the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates The

resulting translation adjustments are recorded as separate component of stockholders equity Foreign currency transaction gains

and losses relate to the settlement of assets or liabilities in another currency Foreign currency transaction gains losses were

$3 million $0.5 million and $7.6 million for 20122011 and 2010 respectively These amounts are included in Other income

expense net

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities The Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments in the

consolidated financial statements at fair value Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge

accounting are recorded in stockholders equity as component of accumulated other comprehensive income or as an adjustment

to the carrying value of the hedged item Changes in fair values of derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting are reported

in earnings

Accountingfor Income Taxes Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between

financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted income tax rates and laws that are

expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to reverse Additionally deferred income tax assets and

liabilities are separated into current and non-current amounts based on the classification of the related assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes

The Company accounts for uncertain tax provisions in accordance with ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes These provisions

require companies to determine whether it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained upon examination by the

appropriate taxing authorities before any benefit can be recorded in the financial statements An uncertain income tax position

will not be recognized if it has less than 50% likelihood of being sustained

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 pronouncement was issued providing consistent definitions and disclosure requirements of fair value

with respect to U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards The pronouncement changed certain fair value

measurement principles and enhanced the disclosure requirements particularly for Level measurements The changes were

effective prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company adopted this
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pronouncement on January 292012 The adoption of this guidance did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In June 2011 pronouncement was issued that amended the guidance relating to the presentation of comprehensive

income and its components The pronouncement eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income

as part of the statement of equity and requires an entity to present
the total of comprehensive income the components of net

income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or

in two separate but consecutive statements The Company adopted this pronouncement on January 29 2012 The adoption of this

guidance required changes in presentation only and therefore did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In September 2011 pronouncement was issued that amended the guidance for goodwill impairment testing The

pronouncement allows the entity to perform an initial qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that

the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount This assessment is used as basis for determining whether it

is necessary to perform the two step goodwill impairment test that is otherwise required to be performed annually The methodology

for how goodwill is calculated assigned to reporting units and the application of the two step goodwill impairment test have not

been revised The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 and only applies to the required

annual test for impairment not to interim testing or reviews for potential impairment indicators The Company adopted this

pronouncement on January 292012 The adoption of this guidance did not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

Note Restructuring Charges

In September 2012 the Company announced strategic plan the Plan aimed at accelerating growth particularly in

the Companys online businesses Elements of the Plan include more fully integrating the Companys retail and online offerings

restructuring its International Operations segment and improving the productivity of its stores in North America Pursuant to the

Plan during 2012 the Company took the following actions

closed 46 retail stores in Europe and accelerated the closure of 15 retail stores in the United States

closed and consolidated certain sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe

announced its intent to pursue the sale of PSD

reorganized certain general and administrative functions in Europe and

rebranded its business in Australia from the Corporate Express tradename to the Staples tradename see Note

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

As result of the actions taken under the Plan during 2012 the Company recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of $207.0

million related to continuing operations including $106.4 million for ongoing lease obligations related to facility closures $75.6

million for severance and benefit costs and $24.9 million for other associated costs Ofthese amounts approximately $177 million

relates to the Companys International Operations segment and approximately $30 million relates to the North American Stores

Online segment The Company does not expect to incur material costs in the future in connection with the Plan The Company

expects to substantially complete the actions required under the Plan by the end of fiscal 2013

Also during 2012 the Company recorded pre-tax charge of $20.1 million primarily for severance and benefit costs in

connection with the Companys decision to pursue the sale of PSD which is included in Loss from discontinued operations net

of income taxes see Note Discontinued Operations The Company does not expect to incur additional restructuring charges

in the future for PSD in connection with the Plan
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The table below shows the restructuring charges recorded during 2012 and the related liability balances as of February

2013 for each major type of cost associated with the Plan in thousands

Discontinued

Continuing Operations Operations

Contractual Employee Employee

Obligation Related Other Total Related

Accrued restructuring balance as of

January 28 2012

Charges 106438 75630 24.948 207.016 20064

A4justinents

CashPayments 5813 8892 8346 23051 8893

Non-cashreliefofaccrual 10323 10323

Foreign currency translations 1936 1521 166 3623 582

The Company expects that payments related to employee related liabilities will be substantially completed by the end of

fiscal 20.13 The Company anticipates payments related to facility lease obligations will be substantially complete by fiscal year

For the accrued restructuring liabilities related to continuing operations $30.5 million of the contractual obligations and

all of the employee-related and other obligations are included within Accrued expenses and other current liabilities and $72.0

million of the contractual obligations are included in Other long-term obligations in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as

of February 2013 For discontinued operations all liabilities are classified within Current liabilities of discontinued operations

The restructuring charges related to continuing operations are presented within Integration and restructuring costs in the

Companys consolidated statements of income The table below summarizes how the $207.0 million of restructuring charges

related to continuing operations would have been allocated if the Company had recorded the expenses within the functional

department of the restructured activities in thousands

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2013

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs 8693

Selling general and administrative 88323

Total 207016

As result of the closure of the 46 retail stores in Europe and the 15 retail stores in the United States and the consolidation

of certain sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe the Company incurred long-lived asset impairment charges of $34.7 million

in 2012 see Note Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Note Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill

As described in Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies the Company reviews goodwill for impairment

annually during its fourth fiscal quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of

goodwill may not be recoverable

During 2012 the Company continued to monitor its European businesses which the Company had disclosed were at risk

for impairment With the continued political and economic instability in Europe recent history of declining sales and profits for

its businesses in that region sustained decline of its stock price and revised short-term and long-term outlooks for its European

businesses the Company determined in its third fiscal quarter that sufficient indicators of impairment existed to require an interim

goodwill impairment analysis for its Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units both of which are included in the Companys

International Operations segment

In September 2012 management presented and the Board of Directors approved strategic plan to accelerate growth

2026
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across the Company and to reposition its operations and stem losses in Europe In connection with the development of this plan

the Company analyzed each of its European businesses in light of ongoing industry trends economic conditions and long-term

sales and profit projections The Companys management and board of directors concluded strategic shift in the business was

crucial to Staples long-term business prospects in Europe As result the Company made strategic decisions and announced

plan to restructure the Companys operations in Europe see Note Restructuring Charges divest its printing systems division

and more hilly integrate its retail and online offerings

The outcome of this strategic review in the third quarter was significant changes in the long-range financial projections

for Europe Retail and Europe Catalog compared with previous projections The Company now projects long-term sales declines

in its Europe Retail business stemming from decision in light of industry trends to allocate more resources and capital to the

expansion of online capabilities The Company also projects declines in its legacy Europe Catalog business which is projected

to be replaced with the growing but slightly less profitable online business Based on the results of the impairment testing the

Company recorded impairment charges of $303.3 million and $468.1 million related to Europe Retail and Europe Catalog in the

third quarter 2012 respectively

To derive the fair value of these reporting units the Company used the income approach specifically the discounted cash

flow DCF method which incorporates significant estimates and assumptions made by management which by their nature are

characterized by uncertainty The key assumptions impacting the valuation included

The Companys financial projections for these reporting units which are based on managements assessment of regional

and macroeconomic variables industry trends and market opportunities and the Companys strategic objectives and future

growth plans

The projected terminal value for each reporting unit which represents the present value of projected cash flows beyond

the last period in the discounted cash flow analysis The terminal value reflects the Companys assumptions related to

long-term growth rates and profitability which are based on several factors including local and macroeconomic variables

market opportunities and future growth plans

The discount rate used to measure the present value of the projected future cash flows is set using weighted-average

cost of capital method that considers market and industry data as well as the Companys specific risk factors that are likely

to be considered by market participant The weighted-average cost of capital is the Companys estimate of the overall

after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of business enterprise

Based on the results of the first step in the impairment test the Company determined that the carrying values of Europe Retail and

Europe Catalog exceeded their respective fair values and accordingly the Company proceeded to step two of the impairment test

In the second step the Company assigned the reporting units fair value to all of its assets and liabilities including any

unrecognized intangible assets in hypothetical analysis that calculates the implied fair value of goodwill in the same manner as

if the reporting unit was being acquired in business combination If the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill is less

than the carrying value the difference is recorded as an impairment charge The fair value estimates incorporated in step two were

primarily based on third-party appraisals and the income approach specifically the relief from royalty and the multi-period excess

earnings methods The property appraisals incorporate significant amount ofjudgment on the part of the third-party valuation

specialists regarding appropriate comparable properties and assessments of current market conditions and the income approach

valuations incorporate significant estimates and assumptions made by management including those relating to projected long-term

rates of growth customer attrition and profitability appropriate market-based royalty rates and the discount rates Based on the

results of this second step the Company recorded impairment charges of $303.3 million related to Europe Retail and $468.1 million

related to Europe Catalog during the third quarter of 2012

During the fourth quarter of 2012 the Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing and determined that

no further impairment charges were required in 2012 The Company determined the fair value of its reporting units during this

testing using the DCF method as described above
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The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill during fiscal 2011 and 2012 are as follows in thousands

3982130 771493 3517 14042 3221162

There were no accumulated goodwill impairment charges as of the beginning of 2012

Long-Lived Assets

Prior to performing the interim goodwill impairment tests for Europe Retail and Europe Catalog the Company tested

long-lived assets to be held and used by these reporting units for impairment on an undiscounted cash flow basis Based on the

results of this testing the Company recorded $4.8 million impairment charge related to the ongoing operations of Europe Retail

and determined that the long-lived assets associated with the ongoing operations of Europe Catalog were not impaired The

impairment charge primarily related to leasehold improvements at retail stores and was based on estimates of the fair values of

the related assets which were derived using DCF valuation analysis incorporating similar assumptions and estimates as discussed

above

During 2012 the Company closed 46 retail stores in Europe and 15 retail stores in the United States and consolidated

several sub-scale delivery businesses in Europe see Note Restructuring Charges As result of these planned actions the

Company recorded long-lived asset impairment charges of $29.6 million and $5.1 million related to the Companys International

Operations and North American Stores and Online segments respectively primarily relating to leasehold improvements and

company-owned facilities

See Note Fair Value Measurements for disclosures related to fair value measurements incorporated in the calculations

of the goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges

Also during 2012 the Company rebranded its Australian business component ofthe Companys International Operations

segment pursuant to which the Company accelerated the transition from the legacy Corporate Express tradename to the exclusive

use of the Staples brand name As result the Company accelerated the remaining amortization totaling $20.0 million in 2012

This amount was recorded in Amortization of intangibles in the consolidated statement of income Prior to the decision to rebrand

this business the carrying value of the tradename was scheduled to be amortized through the end of the Companys fiscal year

2014

Foreign

Goodwill Exchange Goodwill

at January 29 2011 2011 Net Additions 2011 Adjustments Fluctuations at January 28 2012

North American

ommercia1 1245362 1776 2104 1245O34

North American Stores

Online 630435 560 321 629554

International Operations 2197365 3515 86308 2107.542

Consolidated 4073162 1776 6.179 86.629 3982130

Foreign

Goodwill Impairment Exchange Goodwill

at January 28 2012 Charges 2012 Adjustments Fluctuations at February 2013

North American

Commercial 1245034 1245034

North American Stores

Online 629554 3103 222 626673

TataIeang 414
Consolidated
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The Companys intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are summarized below in thousands

Weighted

Average

Amortization

Period

February 2013

Gross

Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization

January 28 2012

Accumulated

Amortization

Estimated future amortization expense associated with the intangible assets at February 22013 is as follows in thousands

Fiscal Year Total

2013 55120

2014 54888

2015 53324

2016 48.290

2017 47126

Thereafter 125861

384609

Note Discontinued Operations

In September 2012 the Company announced its commitment to pursue the sale of PSD component of the Companys

International Operations segment which operates in five countries in Europe and focuses on the sale rental and servicing of

printing machinery The Company is actively marketing the business and currently expects to complete the sale within one year

of this announcement The Company does not plan to have continued involvement in the operations of PSD after the completion

of the sale and subsequent to the sale all cash flows related to PSD are expected to be eliminated from the Companys consolidated

financial statements Accordingly the Company has presented PSDs results of operations as discontinued operations in its

consolidated statement of income for all periods presented

The Company has classified certain assets and liabilities of PSD as disposal group and accounted for the group as held-

for-sale in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of February 2013 Given that the Company expects to complete the

sale within one year the Company has presented the disposal group within current assets and current liabilities on the consolidated

balance sheet

Net

Gross

Carrying

Amount

Customer relationships 12.3 years 680846 305245 375.601 678608 60870 417738

Tradenames 15.9 years 208449 199441 9.008 248.714 216.671 32.043

Total 12.4 years 889295 504686 384.609 927.322 477541 449781

Net
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The following table shows the carrying amounts of the major classes of the assets and liabilities included in the disposal

group as of February 2013 in thousands

ASSETS

Recejvabl itet

Merchandise inventories net

fenenmte tax assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assetsnt sets

Total assets of discontinued operations

LIABILITIES

Awtnyab1e
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Debt matuiing within one year

Other long-term obligations

Total liabilities of tliscontinued operations

The consolidated statements of income for 2012 2011 and 2010 include certain indirect corporate overhead costs in

Selling general and administrative which had previously been allocated to PSD These indirect corporate overhead costs do not

qua1ifi for classification within discontinued operations and therefore continue to be included in Selling general and

administrative in continuing operations on the consolidated statement of income

The following table details PSDs results of operations for 20122011 and 2010 which have been reported in discontinued

operations in thousands

Ratructusing Chatge

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2013 January 28 2012 January 29 2011

29142S 357440 4096L

2004

Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes 51O74 5503 9942
Income tax benefit expense 1096 1939 449

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 4978 64 10 391

Note Business Combinations and Acquisition of Noncontrolling Interest

ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations requires that companies record acquisitions using the acquisition method of

accounting Accordingly the purchase price is assigned to the tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets

acquired based on their estimated fair values The excess purchase price over the fair value is recorded as goodwill Purchased

intangibles with finite lives are amortized over their respective useful lives

With the acquisition of Corporate Express in July 2008 the Company acquired more than 99% of the capital stock of

Corporate Express and became approximately 59% shareholder of Corporate Express Australia Limited Corporate Express

Australia public company traded on the Australian Securities Exchange In September2010 through compulsory acquisition

February 2013

10O11

41218

3946

8851

793
170819

14920

35847

2$2

16377

129672

In connection with the Companys ongoing efforts to sell PSD the Company incurred restructuring charges of

approximately $20.1 million in 2012 for employee severance and benefit costs associated with plan to restructure PSDs operations
The Company also incurred $4.5 million of incremental tax expense in 2012 related to the planned sale These charges are included

in Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes in the consolidated statement of income
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process the Company acquired the final outstanding shares of Corporate Express Australia for cash consideration of AUD $5.60

per share bringing the Companys ownership of this business to 100% for an aggregate purchase price of approximately AUD

$407 million approximately $361 million

The Company also worked diligently to acquire the remaining capital stock of Corporate Express by means of compulsory

judicial squeeze out procedure in accordance with the Dutch Civil Code However in October2011 after long and cumbersome

process Staples withdrew the squeeze out proceedings Subsequent to the withdrawal of these proceedings the Company has

paid an aggregate of1 3.1 million approximately $17.2 million to acquire additional shares in Corporate Express through private

transactions bringing its current ownership to approximately 99.98%

The purchases of the additional shares were accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 810 Noncontrolling Interest in

Consolidated Financial Statements as an equity transaction by adjusting the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest to

reflect the change in the Companys ownership interest in Corporate Express and Corporate Express Australia The purchase of

the noncontrolling interest is reflected as financing cash outflow in the consolidated statement of cash flows

In July 2010 the Company entered the Finnish market acquiring Oy Lindell AB Lindell Finnish office products

distributor The aggregate cash purchase price was 31 million approximately $39 million based on foreign exchange rates on

the acquisition date net of cash acquired As result of this acquisition the Company recorded goodwill of $16.4 million and

$4.3 million of intangible assets which are being amortized on straight line basis over their weighted-average estimated lives

of years The goodwill and intangible assets were allocated to the International Operations segment None of the goodwill is

deductible for tax purposes

Note Acquisition Reserves

In connection with the Companys acquisition of Corporate Express acquisition reserves of $181.0 million were established

The activity related to this reserve in thousands for fiscal 2011 and 2012 is as follows

Foreign Exchange Balance as of

Fluctuations January 28 2012
Balance as of

January 29 2011 Utilization Adjustments

Transaction costs 543 119 424

Severance 11.793 3911 5231 960 1.691

Facility closures 20287 3898 600 28 15761

Other 9344 699 2180 125 6340

Total 4L967 8627 8435 11 l3 23792

Balance as of Foreign Exchange Balance as of

January 28 2012 tilization Adjustments Fluctuations ehruary 2013

Severance 1.691 3O6 52 1.437

Faciiityclosures 15761 10.768 5000

Other 6.340 320 414 402 3.204

Total 23792 13.394 5414 343 4641

The acquisition reserve balances shown above are included within Accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the

Companys consolidated balance sheets

Note Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The major components of Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are as follows in thousands

February 22013 January 28 2012

Taxes 288264 320.861

Employee related 351910 402.058

Acquisition and restructuring reserves 127758 49549

Advertising and marketing
97.992 101.023

Other 539828 541230

Total 1405.752 1.414721
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Note Debt and Credit Agreements

The major components of the Companys outstanding debt are as follows in thousands

February 2013 January 28 2012

October2Ol2Notes 332617

January 2014 Notes 879454 1.525.003

January 2018 Notes 498 635

January 2023 Notes 499040

Other lines of credit 103734 170745

Capital lease obligations and other notes payable 8.241 9815

1989104 2038.180

Less current portion 987.16 439.143

Net long-tenn debt 1001943 1599037

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations are as follows in thousands

Fiscal ear Total

2013 974925

2014 2809

2015 350

2016 316

2017 500248

Thereafter 500.545

1979193

Unamortized gain related to hedge of January 2014 Notes 12.236

Original issue discounts on January 2018 Notes and January

2023 Notes 2325

1.989.104

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases of $2.7 million are included in aggregate annual maturities shown

above Staples entered into no new capital lease obligations in 2012 or 2011

Interest paid by Staples totaled $171.6 million $184.5 million and $210.9 million for 20122011 and 2010 respectively

There was no interest capitalized in 2012 2011 and 2010

January 2018 Notes and January 2023 Notes In January 2013 the Company issued $500 million aggregate principal

amount of 2.75% senior notes due January 2018 the January 2018 Notes and $500 million aggregate principal amount of

4.375% senior notes due January 2023 the January 2023 Notes or collectively the Notes for total net proceeds after the

original issue discount and the underwriters fees of $991.4 million The Notes were issued with original discounts at 99.727%

and 99.808% respectively The Notes rank equally with all of the Companys other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness

The indenture governing the notes contains covenants that will limit the Companys ability to create certain liens and engage in

certain sale and leaseback transactions The indenture does not limit the amount of debt that the Company or any of the Companys

subsidiaries may incur Interest on these Notes is payable in cash on semi-annual basis on January 12 and July 12 of each year

The interest rate payable on the Notes will be subject to adjustments from time to time if Moodys Investors Service Inc or

Standard Poors Ratings Services downgrades or downgrades and subsequently upgrades the rating assigned to the Notes

The Company may redeem the Notes at any time at certain redemption prices specified in the indenture governing the Notes

Upon the occurrence of both change of control of Staples Inc as defined in the indenture and downgrade of the Notes

below an investment grade rating by both of Moodys Investors Service Inc and Standard Poors Ratings Services within

specified period the Company will be required to make an offer to purchase the Notes at price equal to 101% of their principal

amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of repurchase The Notes are not guaranteed by any of the Companys

subsidiaries

During 2012 the Company entered into series of interest rate swap agreements for an aggregate notional amount of

$325.0 million These swaps were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk and were used to hedge the Companys

C- 19



STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

exposure to the variability in future cash flows associated with the forecasted issuances of the January 2018 Notes and January

2023 Notes Upon issuance of the Notes in January 2013 the Company terminated these swaps realizing gain of $1.3 million

Of this amount $0.7 million will be amortized to interest expense over the terms of the Notes and $0.6 million was recognized

as gain in Other expense income in the consolidated statement of income in 2012 due to ineffectiveness associated with these

cash flow hedges

January 2Ol4Notes On January 152009 Staples issued $1.5 billion aggregate principal amount ofnotes due January 15

2014 the January 2014 Notes with fixed interest rate of 9.75% payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each

year commencing on July 15 2009 From the sale of the January 2014 Notes the Company received net proceeds after the

underwriters fees of $1.49 billion The January 2014 Notes are not guaranteed by any of the Companys subsidiaries

In March 2010 Staples entered into interest rate swap agreements to turn half of the January 2014 Notes into variable

rate obligations The swap agreements were subsequently terminated in September 2011 see Note Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities with the Company realizing gain of $30.3 million which is being amortized to interest expense over the

remaining term of the hedged portion of the January 2014 Notes

In January 2013 the Company repurchased approximately $632.8 million of the unhedged portion of the January 2014

Notes pursuant to cash tender offer leaving $867.2 million aggregate principal balance still outstanding As result of this tender

offer the Company incurred pre-tax loss on early extinguishment of debt of $57.0 million in 2012 which primarily includes

debt tender premiums This loss is included within Loss on early extinguishment of debt on the consolidated statement of income

The Company also wrote off related unamortized debt issuance costs of $1.0 million to interest expense in 2012 The tender offer

period remained open until February 2013 and on February 2013 after the end of the Companys fiscal year the Company

paid an additional $0.3 million to repurchase January2014 Notes and incurred related loss on early settlement of $33.7 thousand

These additional amounts will be recorded as an extinguishment of debt and loss respectively in the first quarter of the Companys

fiscal year 2013

October2012 Notes The Company repaid the $325 million 7.375% notes due October2012 the October 2012 Notes

on their maturity date of October 2012 Upon repayment the Company took the actions required under the applicable guarantee

fall-away provisions to cause its subsidiaries Staples the Office Superstore LLC Staples the Office Superstore East Inc Staples

Contract Commercial Inc and Staples the Office Superstore Limited Partnership collectively the Guarantor Subsidiaries

to be legally released from their guarantees of debt related to the January 2014 Notes the November 2014 Revolving Credit

Facility as defined below and the Commercial Paper Program as defined below The Guarantor Subsidiaries are no longer

legally guaranteeing the repayment of the debt therefore the Guarantor Subsidiaries note included in the Companys previous

financial statement filings is no longer required

Revolving Credit Facility To cover seasonal fluctuations in cash flows and to support the Companys various growth

initiatives the Company utilizes cash generated from operations and borrowings available under various credit facilities and

commercial paper program The Company has revolving credit agreement with Bank ofAmerica N.A as Administrative Agent

and other lending institutions named therein the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility which provides for maximum

borrowing of$ 1.0 billion and which pursuant to an accordion feature may be increased to $1.5 billion upon the Companys request

and the agreement of the lenders participating in the increase At the end of 2012 no borrowings were outstanding under the

November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility

Borrowings made pursuant to the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility may be syndicated loans swing line loans

multicorrency loans or letters of credit the combined sum of which may not exceed the maximum borrowing amount Borrowings

made pursuant to the November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest at various interest rates depending on the type

of borrowing plus percentage spread based on the Companys credit rating and fixed charge coverage ratio Under the November

2014 Revolving Credit Facility the Company agrees to paya facility fee at rates that range from 0.15% to 0.35% per annum

depending on the Companys credit rating and fixed charge coverage ratio Amounts borrowed under the November2014 Revolving

Credit Facility may be repaid and reborrowed from time to time until November 2014

The November 2014 Revolving Credit Facility is unsecured and ranks pan passu with the Companys public notes and

other indebtedness and contains customary affirmative and negative covenants for credit facilities of this type The November

2014 Revolving Credit Facility also contains financial covenants that require us to maintain minimum fixed charge coverage

ratio and maximum adjusted funded debt to total capitalization ratio

Commercial Paper Program The Company has commercial paper program Commercial PapQr Programthat allows

the Company to issue up to $1.0 billion of unsecured commercial paper notes Notes from time to time The November 2014

Revolving Credit Facility serves as backstop to the Commercial Paper Program The Company typically uses the proceeds from

the Notes for general purposes including working capital capital expenditures acquisitions and share repurchases During 2012

the Company borrowed under the Commercial Paper Program to support its seasonal working capital requirements Maturities
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of the Notes vary but may not exceed 397 days from the date of issue The Notes bear such interest rates if interest bearing or

will be sold at such discount from their face amounts as agreed upon from time to time by the dealers under the Commercial Paper

Program and the Company The Commercial Paper Program contains customary events of default with corresponding grace

periods In 2012 the weighted-average amount outstanding under the Commercial Paper Program was $7.3 million with

weighted-average interest rate of 0.4% At the end of 2012 there were no outstanding borrowings under the Commercial Paper

Program The maximum amount outstanding under the Commercial Paper Program during 2012 was $100.0 million

Other Lines of Credit The Company had $309.9 million in borrowing capacity under various other lines of credit as of

February 2013 with outstanding borrowings of$103.7 million and outstanding letters of credit of $0.2 million leaving $206.0

million of available credit at that date

There were no instances of default during 2012 under any
of the Companys debt agreements

Deferred Financing Fees

In connection with the issuance of certain debt instruments the Company incurred financing fees which are being

amortized over the terms of the related debt instruments Amortization of the financing fees is classified as interest expense

Deferred financing fees amortized to interest expense were $4.8 million $4.2 million and $6.3 million for 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The amount for 2012 includes $1.0 million of accelerated amortization related to the early extinguishment of $632.8

million of the January 2014 Notes At February 2013 unamortized financing fees of $1.3 million were included in Prepaid

expenses and other current assets and unamortized fees of $10.0 million were included in Other assets At January 28 2012

unamortized financing fees of $0.4 million were included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets and unamortized fees of

$7.5 million were included in Other assets

Note Fair Value Measurements

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs

used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities Level measurement then priority to quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical

or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions

are observable in the market Level measurement then the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level measurement

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents receivables accounts payable accrued expenses other current liabilities

and short-term debt approximate their carrying values because of their short-term nature

The following table shows the difference between the financial statement carrying value and fair value of the Companys

debt obligations see Note Debt and Credit Agreements as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 in thousands The

fair values of these notes were determined based on quoted market prices and are classified as Level measurements

January2014 Notes 879454 940009 1525003 1721490

January 2018 Notes 498.635 502202

January 2023 Notes 499040 496369

____________
February 2013

Carrying Value Fair Value

____________
January 28 2012

Carrying Value Fair Value
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The following table shows the Companys assets and liabilities as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 that are

measured and recorded in the financial statements at fair value on recurring basis in thousands

February 2013

Quoted Prices in Active

Markets for Identical Significant Other

Assets or Liabilities Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Level LevelLevel

Assets

Money market funds 585479

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 20153

January 28 2012

Quoted Prices in Active

Markets for identical Significant Other

Assets or Liabilities Observable Inputs Linobservable Inputs

Level Leel Level

Assets

Money market funds 468.913

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 36.418

The fair values of the Companys money market funds are based on quotes received from third-party banks The fair

values of the Companys derivative liabilities are based on quotes received from third-party banks and represent the estimated

amount the Company would pay to terminate the agreements taking into consideration current interest and forward exchange rates

as well as the creditworthiness of the counterparty

The fair values of the assets in the Companys pension plans are described in detail in Note Pension and Qther Post-

Retirement Benefit Plans

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

During 2012 the Company recognized goodwill impairment charges of $771.5 million and long-lived asset impairment

charges of $39.5 million These charges were based on fair value measurements derived using the income approach specifically

the discounted cash flow relief from royalty and multi-period excess earnings methods The valuation methodologies incorporated

unobservable inputs reflecting significant estimates and assumptions made by management Accordingly the Company classified

these measurements as Level within the fair value hierarchy The charges were also based in part on property appraisals prepared

by third-party valuation specialists The appraisals incorporate significant amount of judgment on the part of the valuation

specialists regarding appropriate comparable properties and an assessment of current market conditions The Company has also

classified these measurements as Level within the fair value hierarchy Refer to Note Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets for

further detailed information related to the significant unobservable inputs

Note Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Staples uses interest rate swap agreements foreign currency swap and foreign currency forward agreements to offset

certain operational and balance sheet exposures related to changes in interest or foreign exchange rates These agreements are

entered into to support transactions made in the normal course of business and accordingly are not speculative in nature These

derivatives qualify for hedge accounting treatment as the derivatives have been highly effective in offsetting the underlying

exposures related to the hedge

All derivatives are recorded at fair value and the changes in fair value are immediately included in earnings if the derivatives

do not qualify as effective hedges If derivative is designated as fair value hedge then changes in the fair value of the derivative

are offset against the changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged item in earnings If derivative is designated as cash

flow hedge then the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized as component of accumulated

other comprehensive income loss until the underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings or the forecasted transaction is no

longer probable of occurring If derivative or nonderivative financial instrument is designated as hedge of the Companys

net investment in foreign subsidiary then changes in the fair value of the financial instrument are recognized as component of
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accumulated other comprehensive income loss to offset portion of the change in the translated value of the net investment

being hedged until the investment is sold or liquidated The Company formally documents all hedging relationships for all

derivative nonderivative hedges and the underlying hedged items as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for

undertaking the hedge transactions There are no amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness

The Company classifies the fair value of all derivative contracts and the fair value of its hedged firm commitments as

either current or long-term depending on whether the maturity date of the derivative contract is within or beyond one year from

the balance sheet date The cash flows from derivatives treated as hedges are classified in the Companys consolidated statement

of cash flows in the same category as the item being hedged

The table below presents the fair value of the Companys derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting

as well as their classification on the consolidated balance sheet as of February 2013 and January 28 2012 in thousands

Fair Value

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Location February 2013 Januar 28 2012

Liability derivatives

Foreign currency forward Other Jong-term liabilities 9967 21.974

Foreign currency swaps Other Jong-term liabilities 14.353

Total 9967 36327

The tables below present pre-tax gains and losses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income OCI during 20122011

and 2010 related to derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges as well as the amount

of gains and losses reclassified into earnings during those periods in thousands

Gain loss recognized in OCI Gain loss reclassified into earnings
__________________________________ Location of gain

Hedge loss recognized in

Derivative Type Designation 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 earnings

Interest rate swaps Cash flow 705 300 Interest expense

Interest Rate Swaps During 2012 Staples entered into series of interest rate swap agreements for an aggregate notional

amount of $325.0 million These swaps were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk and were used to hedge the

Companys exposure to the variability in future cash flows associated with the forecasted issuances of the January 2018 Notes and

the January 2023 Notes see Note Debt and Credit Agreements Upon issuance of these notes in January 2013 the Company

terminated these swaps realizing gain of$l.3 million Of this amount $0.7 million will be amortized to interest expense over

the terms of the January 2018 Notes and January 2023 Notes and $0.6 million was recognized as gain in Other expense income

in the consolidated statement of income in 2012 due to ineffectiveness associated with these cash flow hedges

In March 2010 Staples entered into interest rate swaps for an aggregate notional amount of $750 million These swaps

were designated as fair value hedge and designed to convert half of the aggregate principal amount of the January 2014 Notes

into variable rate obligation In September 2011 the Company terminated the $750 million interest rate swaps realizing gain

of $30.3 million which was recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the debt and is being amortized to interest expense

over the remaining term of the January 2014 Notes In January 2013 the Company repurchased approximately $632 million

of the unhedged portion of the January 2014 Notes pursuant to cash tender offer see Note Debt and Credit Agreements

The gain will continue to be amortized over the remaining term of the hedged portion of the January 2014 Notes

In connection with Staples acquisition of Corporate Express the Company assumed interest rate swaps designed to

convert Corporate Express variable rate credit facilities into fixed rate obligations On May 2011 the Company repaid the

outstanding balance on these variable rate credit facilities and terminated the related interest rate swap agreements As result of

the termination of these interest rate swap agreements the Company recognized loss of $0.3 million during the second quarter

of 2011

505 2904 17514
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Foreign Currency Swaps and Foreign Currency Forwards In August 2007 the Company entered into $300 million foreign

currency swap that had been designated as foreign currency hedge on Staples net investment in Canadian dollar denominated

subsidiaries At January 28 2012 the currency swap had an aggregate fair value loss of $14.4 million which was included in

Other long-term obligations In 2012 the Company terminated these swaps recognizing loss of approximately $14.9 million

which was recorded as foreign currency translation loss within other comprehensive income No amounts were included in the

consolidated statements of income related to ineffectiveness associated with this net investment hedge

In May 2011 the Company entered into foreign currency swap designed to convert $75 million intercompany loan

denominated in Australian dollars into fixed Euro amount The intercompany loan had fixed interest rate of 6.65% The

agreement was accounted for as cash flow hedge No amounts were included in the consolidated statement of income in 2011

related to ineffectiveness associated with this cash flow hedge Upon maturity of the agreement in August2011 Staples paid 76.4

million Australian dollars and recognized gain of $0.9 million

In August 2011 the Company entered into foreign currency swap designed to convert 75 million intercompany loan

denominated in Australian dollars into fixed Euro amount The intercompany loan had fixed interest rate of 6.65% The

agreement was accounted for as fair value hedge Upon maturity of the agreement in October 2011 Staples paid AUD 76.4

million and recognized loss of $4.1 million

In October 2011 the Company entered into foreign currency swap designed to convert 118.3 million intercompany

loan denominated in Canadian dollars into fixed U.S dollar amount The intercompany loan had fixed interest rate of 1.8%

The agreement was accounted for as fair value hedge Upon maturity of the agreement in December 2011 Staples paid $112.1

million and recognized gain of $2.2 million

Also in October2011 the Company entered into foreign currency swap designed to convert 79.5 million intercompany

loan denominated in Canadian dollars into fixed Euro amount The interºompany loan had fixed interest rate of 1.32% The

agreement was accounted for as fair value hedge Upon maturity of the agreement in December 2011 Staples paid 79.5 million

Canadian dollars and recognized loss of $2.1 million

In December 2011 the Company entered into foreign currency forward designed to convert series of intercompany

loans denominated in Canadian dollars into fixed U.S dollar amount The loans total 750 million Canadian dollars in the

aggregate and are scheduled to mature at various dates between October 2012 and October 2013 Staples upon full maturity of

the agreements will collect $720 million and will be obligated to pay 750 million Canadian dollars The forward agreements are

being accounted for as fair value hedge In 2012 the Company settled 500 million Canadian dollars of the notional amount

relating to this forward realizing loss of approximately $24.2 million which has been recorded within Other expense During

2012 and 2011 gains losses of $12.2 million and $22.0 million respectively were recognized in Other expense related to the

outstanding portion of this fair value hedge No amounts were included in the consolidated statements of income related to

ineffectiveness associated with this fair value hedge At February 2013 and January 28 2012 the outstanding portions of the

foreign currency forward had fair value losses of$ 10.0 million and $22.0 million respectively which were included in other long-

term obligations

In 2012 the Company entered into series of short-term foreign currency forwards with notional amounts of 150 million

Canadian dollars that were designated as foreign currency hedges on Staples net investment in Euro-denominated subsidiaries

Upon settlement of these forwards the Company recognized net gain of $2.8 million in 2012 which was recorded as foreign

currency translation gain within other comprehensive income No amounts were included in the consolidated statements of income

related to ineffectiveness associated with these net investment hedges These forwards were fully settled as of February 2013

Note Commitments and Contingencies

Staples leases certain retail and support facilities under long-term non-cancelable lease agreements Most lease agreements

contain renewal options and rent escalation clauses and in some cases allow termination within certain number of years with

notice and fixed payment Certain agreements provide for contingent rental payments based on sales

C-24



STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Other long-term obligations at February 22013 include $107.5 million relating to future rent escalation clauses and lease

incentives under certain existing store operating lease arrangements These rent obligations are recognized on straight-line basis

over the respective terms of the leases Future minimum lease commitments due for retail distribution fulfillment and support

facilities including restructured facilities commitments related to discontinued operations and lease commitments for three retail

stores not yet opened at February 22013 and equipmentleases undernon-cancelable operating leases are as follows in thousands

Fiscal Year Total

2013 838617

2014 730.008

2015 617862

2016 511859

2017 398157

Thereafter 1.032307

4128870

Future minimum lease commitments exclude the impact of $36.0 million of minimum rentals due under non-cancelable

subleases

Rent expense was $838.9 million $839.6 million and $829.4 million for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

As of February 22013 Staples had contractual purchase obligations that are not reflected in the Companys consolidated

balance sheets totaling $631.5 million which includes the obligations of discontinued operations Many of the Companys purchase

commitments may be cancelled by the Company without advance notice or payment and accordingly the Company has excluded

such commitments from the following schedule Contracts that may be terminated by the Company without cause or penalty but

that require advance notice for termination are valued on the basis of an estimate of what the Company would owe under the

contract upon providing notice oftermination Expected payments related to such purchase obligations are as follows in thousands

Fiscal Year Total

2013 475540

2014 through 2015 68625

2016 through 2017 29784

Thereafter 57546

631495

Letters of credit are issued by Staples during the ordinary course of business through major financial institutions as

required by certain vendor contracts As of February 2013 Staples had open standby letters of credit totaling $111.1 million

Legal Proceedings

The Company held 39.49% investment interest in joint venture in India In July 2012 the shareholders representing

the remaining interests in the joint venture purported to exercise put option rights they held under an option agreement pursuant

to which they had the right to require the Company to purchase their shares at fair market value The Company disputed the

valuations prepared to determine fair market value and pursued efforts in good faith to resolve its dispute with the shareholders

On February 2013 the Company concluded its negotiations with the shareholders terminated all agreements associated with

the existing joint venture and entered into new franchising arrangement for future operations in India The Company recorded

charge of $26.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2012 related to the satisfaction of all the Companys obligations related to the

joint venture and in settlement of the aforementioned dispute

Staples had contractual dispute with Corely S.C.ILyreco S.A.S as result of acquiring Corporate Express Prior to

Staples acquisition of Corporate Express Corporate Express and Corely/Lyreco entered into an agreement that required Corporate

Express to pay 30 million to Corely/Lyreco in the event that the merger between Corporate Express and Corely/Lyreco was not

completed as result of Staples acquisition of Corporate Express Upon Staples acquisition of Corporate Express Corporate

Express paid the 30 million to Corely/Lyreco Corely/Lyreco had been seeking through arbitration to have Staples gross up this

payment to cover the corporate income taxes it incurred as result of the payment On February 292012 after the Company had

filed its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 28 2012 with the Securities and Exchange Commission Staples

was notified that the arbitration tribunal had issued its final ruling ordering Staples to pay Corely/Lyreco portion of the 12.0

million claim that was previously disclosed in the Annual Report Staples paid the amount on March 2012
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At the time the Corporate Express tender offer was fully settled on July 23 2008 Staples had acquired more than 99%

of the outstanding capital stock of Corporate Express Staples worked diligently to acquire the remaining capital stock of Corporate

Express by means of compulsory judicial squeeze out procedure in accordance with the Dutch Civil Code This squeeze out

process turned out to be long and cumbersome process and in October 2011 Staples withdrew the squeeze out proceedings

Any additional payments Staples makes to purchase the remaining outstanding capital stock will be recorded in equity pursuant

to ASC Topic 810 Noncont rolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Instruments

In addition from time to time the Company is involved in litigation arising from the operation of its business that is

considered routine and incidental to its business The Company does not expect the results of any of these actions to have material

adverse effect on its business results of operations or financial condition

Note Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes The approximate tax effect of the

significant components of Staples deferred tax assets and liabilities including those related to discontinued operations are as

follows in thousands

February 2013 january 28 2012

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred rent 39.410 43.140

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 66.422 90730

Net operating loss carryforwards 335604 313732

Capital loss carryforwards 20.388 18598

Employee benefits 134.959 136.690

Merger related charges 6750 15072

Inentory 33.598 42556

Insurance 38588 39375

Deferred revenue 52025 82.724

Depreciation 29652 12205

Financing 31220 42954

Accrued expenses 21475 22145

Unrealized Loss on hedge instruments 6.028

Othernet 58997 26756

Total deferred income tax assets 869088 892705

Total valuation allowance 410 128 307616

Net deferred income lax assets 458960 585089

Deferred income tax liabilities

Intangibles 124951 148601

Othernet 2043 4616

Total deferred income tax liabilities 126994 153.217

Net deferred income tax assets 331966 431872

The deferredtax asset fromtax loss carryforwards of$335.6 millionrepresents approximately $1.29 billionofnet operating

loss carryforwards $611.5 million of which are subject to expiration beginning in 2013 The remainder has an indefinite

carryforward period The deferred tax asset from foreign tax credit carryforwards of $66.4 million is subject to expiration beginning

in 2018 The valuation allowance increased by $102.5 million during 2012 primarily due to the establishment of valuation

allowances in certain foreign jurisdictions as result of the restructuring of portion of the Companys business operations and

current year operating losses generated in foreign jurisdictions that the Company has determined are not more-likely-than-not

realizable
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For financial reporting purposes income from continuing operations before income taxes includes the following

components in thousands

noom
United States

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes

The provision benefit for income taxes related to continuing operations consists of the following in thousands

entttpnse

Federal

Foreign 30231

tax exp%fit
Federal 77824

5837

Foreign 28487
______

TtUh xen 42

141103

24677

Itor rate

State effective rate net of federal behefit

git
Tax credits

ntfn4
Goodwill impairment

82.5

tVa1uutibn 4thflvance 311

Other 2.0

2012 2011 2010

35%
12.1 2.6 3.3

33 5.1

0.8 0.5 0.4

L4

03
1.5 2.1

1O% 26 34%

The effective tax rate in any year is impacted by the geographic mix of earnings Additionally certain foreign operations

are subject to both U.S and foreign income tax regulations and as result income before tax by location and the components of

income tax expense by taxing jurisdiction are notdirectly related The 2012 effective tax rate was unfavorably impacted by the

goodwill impairment charges recorded in 2012 relating to the Companys Europe Retail and Europe Catalog reporting units see

Note Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets In addition the Company established valuation allowances in continuing operations

of approximately 541.8 million as result of the restructuring of portion of the Companys business operations

The tax impact of the unrealized gain or loss on instruments designated as hedges ofnet investments in foreign subsidiaries

is reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders equity

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions and could be subject to audit in these jurisdictions These audits can

involve complex issues that may require an extended period of time to resolve and may cover multiple years In the Companys

opinion an adequate provision for income taxes has been made for all years subject to audit

Income tax payments were $402.9 million $308.9 million and $404.9 million during 20122011 and 2010 respectively

2012 2011 2010

1027547

162l2

1009978

44666

265423 1464644 1366537

877936

4S6OI

2012

240230

43661

2011 2010

142282

4191
103389

253078

159872

75233

4666

______
66147

471247

See Note Discontinued Operations for the losses from discontinued operations before income taxes and related income

taxes reported in 2012 2011 and 2010 All pre-tax income presented in discontinued operations is related to foreign operations

reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate to Staples effective tax rate on income from continuing operations is

as follows
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Income taxes have not been provided on the undistributed earnings of the Companys foreign subsidiaries presented in

continuing operations of approximately $902 million because such earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested in the

business The detennination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability
related to the undistributed earnings is not

practicable because of the complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation

Uncertain Tax Positions

At February 2013 the Company had $254.7 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits of which $242.9 million if

recognized would affect the Companys tax rate At January 28 2012 the Company had $250.4 million of gross unrecognized

tax benefits of which $247.6 million if recognized would affect the Companys tax rate The Company does not reasonably

expect any material changes to the estimated amount of liability associated with its uncertain tax positions through fiscal 2013

The following summarizes the activity related to the Companys unrecognized tax benefits including those related to

discontinued operations in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of fiscal year 250397 254167 264277

Additions for tax positions related to current year 39989 48.032 25876

Additions reductions for tax positions of prior years 11058 15.361 9983
Reduction for Statute of Limitations Expiration 30.116 1344 19.840

Settlements 16604 53722 6163

Balance at end of fiscal year 254724 250397 254167

Staples is subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions The

Company has substantially concluded all U.S federal income tax matters for years through 2007 All material state local and

foreign income tax matters for years through 2002 have been substantially concluded

Staples continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

The Company recognized interest and penalties related to income tax matters of $7.2 million $2.6 million and $12.4 million in

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The Company had $37.7 million and $32.7 million accrued for gross interest and penalties as

of February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively

Note Equity Based Employee Benefit Plans

Staples offers its associates share ownership through certain equity-based employee compensation and benefit plans

including the Amended and Restated 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the Amended and Restated International Employee

Stock Purchase Plan collectively the Employee Stock Purchase Plans and the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive

Plan the 2004 Plan

In connection with these plans Staples recognized approximately $117.8 million $151.8 million and $146.9 million of

compensation expense for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The total income tax benefit related to stock-based compensation

was $36.0 million $46.3 million $45.4 million for 20122011 and 2010 respectively As of February 22013 Staples had $127.5

million of unamortized stock compensation expense associated with its equity-based plans which will be expensed over weighted-

average period of 1.5 years

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

In January 2012 the Company adopted the 2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan which authorizes total of up to 15.0

million shares of common stock to be sold to participating employees Under this plan participating employees may purchase

shares of common stock at 85% of its fair market value at the beginning or end of an offering period whichever is lower through

payroll deductions in an amount not to exceed 10% of an employees annual base compensation Prior to January 2012 the

Company offered its associates the opportunity to purchase shares under similar terms through the Amended and Restated 1998

Employee Stock Purchase Plan During 20122011 and 2010 the Company issued 4.5 million 3.8 million and 2.7 million shares

respectively pursuant to these plans

C-28



STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

StockAward Plans

The Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan the 2004 Plan was implemented in July 2004 and replaced

the amended and restated 1992 Equity Incentive Plan the 1992 Plan and the amended and restated 1990 Director Stock Option

Plan the 1990 Plan Unexercised options under both the 1992 Plan and the 1990 Plan remain outstanding Under the 2004

Plan Staples may issue up to 97.4 million shares of common stock to management and employees using various forms of awards

including restricted stock and restricted stock units collectively Restricted Shares nonqualified stock options and performance

shares Shares issued pursuant to restricted stock awards are restricted in that they are subject to forfeiture and are not transferable

until they vest Shares underlying awards of restricted stockunits are not issued until the units vest Nonqualified stock options

cannot be exercised until they vest Options outstanding are exercisable at various percentages of the total shares subject to the

option starting one year after the grant Options outstanding under the Companys plans have an exercise price equal to the fair

market value of the common stock on the date of grant All options expire ten years after the grant date subject to earlier termination

in the event of employment termination

Stock Options

Information with respect to stock options granted under the above plans is as follows

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Aggregate Intrinsic

Number of Exercise Price Contractual Term Value

Shares Per Share in Years in thousands

Outstanding at January 28 2012 45995348 19.89

Granted 2.990.051 12.79

Exercised 2007635 11.32

Cancelled 5.230065 19.63

Outstanding at February 2013 41747699 19.83 5.01 3600

32333756 20.90 4.06 1557

Vested or expected to vest at February 2013 40835224 19.89 4.94 3498

The intrinsic value of the nonqualified stock options is the amount by which the market value of the underlying stock

exceeds the exercise price of an option

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2012 2011 and 2010 were $5.2 million $14.6 million and $24.0

million respectively

The weighted-average fair values of options and employee stock purchase plan shares granted during 2012 2011 and

2010 were $2.97 $3.58 and $4.75 respectively

For stock options granted on or after May 2005 the fair value of each award is estimated on the date of grant using

binomial valuation model The binomial model considers characteristics of fair value option pricing that are not available under

the Black-Schole model Similar to the Black-Scholes model the binomial model takes into account variables such as volatility

dividend yield rate and risk free interest rate However in addition the binomial model considers the contractual term of the

option the probability that the option will be exercised prior to the end of its contractual life and the probability of termination

or retirement of the option holder in computing the value of the option For these reasons the Company believes that the binomial

model provides fair value that is more representative of actual experience and future expected experience than that value calculated

using the Black-Scholes model

The fair value of options granted in each year was estimated at the date of grant using the following weighted-average

assumptions

Exercisable at February 2013

2012 2011 2010

Risk free interest rate 1.0% 2.1% 2.3%

Expected dividend yield 1.7% 1.4% 1.3%

Expected stock volatility 30% 28% 31%

Expected life of options 5.6 years 5.5 years 5.4 years

The risk free interest rate was based on the implied yield curve for zero coupon U.S Treasury securities over the expected

term of the options The expected dividend yield was calculated as the average of the dividend yields for each period the Company
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paid dividend The expected stock volatility factor was calculated using an average of historical and implied volatility measures

to reflect the different periods in the Companys history that would impact the value of the stock options granted to employees

The expected life of options was calculated using the simplified assumption that all outstanding options will be exercised at the

midpoint of the vesting date ifunvested or the valuation date ifvested and the full contractual term which the Company believes

to yield reasonable approximation of the expected term of the options The fair value of stock options is expensed over the

applicable vesting period using the straight line method

Restricted Shares

Beginning in fiscal 2006 the Company began issuing Restricted Shares to employees and directors as part of its regular

equity compensation program The fair value of restricted shares is expensed over the applicable vesting period using the straight

line method The following table summarizes the Companys grants of Restricted Shares in 2012

Weighted-Average

Number of Grant Date Fair

Shares Value Per Share

Nonvested at January 28 2012 16799262 18.13

Granted 5174494 12.93

Vested 5378538 19.94

Cancelled 2046.005 18.67

Nonvested at February 2013 14549213 15.54

The total market value of Restricted Shares vested during 2012 2011 and 2010 was $7 1.4 million $73.3 million and

$96.5 million respectively

Performance Shares

In fiscal 2006 the Company began granting performance shares which are restricted stock awards whose underlying

shares are paid out and issued to the recipient only if the Company meets minimum performance targets Some of these awards

are subject to additional vesting requirements For the 2009 performance share awards payouts were based on 2009 earnings per

share performance The Company met the performance target that was established in 2009 and 0.5 million shares were awarded

in March 2010 subject to vesting over three year period

In 2010 the Company switched from granting annual performance share awards and introduced performance based

long term cash incentive plan based on meeting minimum performance targets The expense associated with these awards is

reflected as part of Selling general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of income

In July 2010 the Company granted special performance share awards totaling 0.8 million shares at target at $19.27 per

share Payout was contingent upon the Company meeting minimum performance objectives which were established in each year

of three year performance cycle One-third of the target award was applied as target amount for each of the fiscal years within

the performance cycle For fiscal years 2012 and 2011 and 2010 0% 58% and 93% of the target shares were earned based on the

extent to which the objectives were achieved As result 0.3 million shares net of forfeitures related to terminated associates

were issued in March 2013 One third of these shares vested upon issuance and the remaining two-thirds are subject to vesting

over two year period

Shares Available for Issuance

At February 2013 65.8 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under Staples 2004 Plan 401k
Plan and employee stock purchase plans

Note Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

In connection withthe acquisition ofCorporate Express Staples assumed the obligations under the pension plans Corporate

Express sponsored The pension plans cover certain employees in Europe and the United States The benefits due to U.S plan

participants are frozen number of the defined benefit plans outside the U.S are funded with plan assets that have been segregated

in trusts Contributions are made to these trusts as necessary to meet legal and other requirements

In August 2010 the Company began sponsoring an unfunded post-retirement life insurance benefit plan which provides

benefits to eligible U.S executives based on earnings years of service and age at termination of employment
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Unless otherwise noted the information contained in this note includes both continuing and discontinued operations The

following table presents summary of the total projected benefit obligation for the pension plans the fair value of plan assets and

the associated funded status recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at February 2013 and January 28 2012 in thousands

February 2013 January 28 2012

Projected Fair Value Projected Fair Value

Benefit of Plan Funded Benefit of Plan Funded

Obligations Assets Status Obligations Assets Status

Overfunded Plans

International Plans 968196 1054904 86708 779248 962428 183180

Total Overfunded Plans 968196 054904 86708 779248 962428 183180

Underfunded Plans

U.S Plans 4066l 32.273 8388 38.618 29640 8978

International Plans 155116 110654 44.462 136.542 102.24 34301

Total Underfunded Plans 195777 142927 52850 175160 131.881 43279

The following tables present summary of the total net cost recorded in the consolidated statement of income for the

pension and post-retirement life insurance benefit plans for 2012 2011 and 2010 in thousands

2012

Post-retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plan

U.S Plans International Plans Total lotal

Service cost 11579 1.579 2282

Interest cost 1.772 38.156 39928 1811

Expected return on plan assets 1750 55.418 57168

Amortization of unrecognized losses and

prior service costs 331 1.276 1.607 2.135

Total cost benefit 353 4407 4054 6228

2011

Post-retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plan

1.S PJans International Plans Total Total

Service cost 9987 9987 1765

Interest cost 1864 42.934 44 798 479

Fxpected return on plan assets 1686 58903 t60589

Amortization of unrecognized losses and

prior service costs 1461 1.461 1.716

TotaIcosbenefit 178 4.521 4343 4960

2010

Post-retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plan

LI.S Plans Inlernational Plans Total Total

Servicecost 10.717 10.717 895

lnterestcost 1.841 37718 39.559 695

Expectedreturnonplanassets L735 61.361 63.096

Amortization of unrecognized losses and

prior service costs 3.991 3993

Totalcostbenefit 108 t8.935 8.827 1590
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The total net cost disclosed above for 2012 2011 and 2010 associated with the pension plans reflects the total for both

continuing and discontinued operations The following table presents the net periodic cost recorded in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income for 2012 2011 and 2010 related to discontinued operations pension plans only in thousands

Discontinued Operations

Pension Plans

2012 2011 2010

Service cost 2487 3521 3.200

lntcrcst cost 1.940 2.236 483

Expected return on plan assets 1.836 2.430 2.499

Amortization 01 unrecognized losses and prior service

costs 95 126

Total cost 2.686 453 3184

The following table presents the changes in benefit obligations during 201 and 2112 in thousands

Post-retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Interest cost 864 42934 44798 1.479

Plan participants contributions 1.455 1.455

Actuarial losses 4816 37 388 42.204 9264

Benefits paid 493 55 668 57.161 491

Other 11.031 11.131

Currenc translation adjustments 42.579 42579

Projected benefit obligation at

January 28 2012 38 618 915790 954.408 37298

Ser ice cost 1.579 1.579 2282

Interest cost 772 38.156 39.928 811

Plan participants contributions 183 183

Actuarial losses 1.901 165.236 167.139 5220

Benefitspaid 1.632 54.815 56447 562

Currency translation adjustments 46.183 46 183

Projected benefit obligation at

February 2013 40661 1123312 1163973 46049

The accumulated benefit obligation for the U.S Plans and International Plans at February 22013 was $40.7 million and

$1.1 billion respectively The accumulated benefit obligation for the U.S Plans and International Plans at January 28 2012 was

$38.6 million and $889.5 million respectively The accumulated benefit obligation for the post-retirement benefit obligation was

$46.0 million and $37.3 million at February 2013 and January 28 2012 respectively
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The following table presents the changes in pension plan assets for each of the defined benefit pension plans during 2011

and 2012 in thousands

U.S Plans Total

Fair value of plan assets at January 29 2011 28451 1.0628 19 1091270

Actual return on plan assets 1521 85.889 87410

Employers contributions 1161 10987 12148

Plan participants contributions 1.455 1.455

Benefits paid 1.493 55.668 571 61

Other 11.031 11031

Amortization of unrecognized losses 1.461 1461

Currency translation adjustments 50383 50383

Fair value of plan assets at January 28 2012 29640 1064669 1094 309

Actual return on plan assets 3301 92.975 96276

Employers contributions 1295 14048 15343

Plan participants contributions 1.183 1.183

Benefits paid 1632 54815 56.447

Other 2.819 2819

Amortization of unrecognized losses 331 1276 1607

Currency translation adjustments 45.955 45955

Fair value of plan assets at February 2013 32273 1165558 1.197831

The funded status for the U.S Plans and International Pension Plans at February 2013 was $8.4 million underfunded

and $42.2 million overfunded respectively The funded status for the U.S Plans and International Pension Plans at January 28
2012 was $9.0 million underfunded and $148.9 million overfunded respectively

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of the following in thousands

February 2013

Pension Plans

International

Plans

International

Plans

U.S Plans

Prepaid benefit cost included in other assets 86708 86708

Current liability from discontinued operations 10.915 10915

Post-retirement

Benefit Plans

Total Total

Accrued benefit
liability included in other long-term

8388 33547 41935 46049obligations

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 7.990 222.175 230165 33895

Net amount recognized 398 264421 264023 12154

Januar 28 2012

Post-retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

International

U.S Plans Plans Total Total

Prepaid benefit cost included in other assets 183180 183180

Accrued benefit liability included in other long-term

obligations 8978 34301 43279 37298

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 7.638 19377 127015 30389

Netamountrecognized 1.340 268.256 266916 6.909
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of net

periodic pension and post-retirement costs at February 2013 and January 28 2012 are comprised of actuarial losses and prior

service costs

The amount of accumulated other comprehensive loss expected to be recognized as components
of net periodic pension

and post-retirement benefit costs during 2013 is approximately $11.4 million and $2.4 million respectively

There were no significant amendments to any of the Companys defined benefit pension plans or the post-retirement life

insurance benefit plan in 2012 or 2011 that would have had material effect on the consolidated statement of income in these

periods

Assumptions Used to Determine Plan Financial Information

The valuation of benefit obligations and net periodic pension and post-retirement benefit cost uses participant-specific

information such as salary age and years of service as well as certain assumptions the most significant of which include estimates

of discount rates expected return on plan assets rate of compensation increases interest rates and mortality rates

The following table presents the assumptions used to measure the net periodic cost and the year-end benefit obligations

for the defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans for 2012 2011 and 2010

2012

Pension Plans

U.S international Post-retirement

Plans Plans Benefit Plan

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure net periodic

pension cost

Discount rate 4.7% 4.4% 4.9%

Expected return on plan assets 6.0% 5.4%

Rate of compensation increase 2.1% 3.0%

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure benefit

obligations at year-end

Discount rate 4.3% 3.0% 4.4%

Rate of compensation increase 2.0% 2.5%

Rate of pension increase 1.1%

2011

Pension Plans

U.S international Post-retirement

Plans Plans Benefit Plan

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure net periodic

pension cost

Discount rate 57/ 4.8% 4.9%

Expected return on plan assets 7.0% 6.4%

Rate of compensation increase 2.2% 3.0%

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure benefit

obligations at year-end

Discount rate 4.7% 4.3% 4.9%

Rate of compensation increase 2.1% 3.0%

Rate of pension increase ---% 1.1%
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Rate of compensation increase 2.2% 3.0%

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure benefit

obligations at year-end

Discount rate 5.7A 4.8% 5.9%

Rate of compensation increase 2.1% 3.0%

Rate of pension increase

The following table shows the effect on pension obligations at February 2013 of change in discount rate and other

assumptions in thousands

Change in Discount Rate

No change0.25% 0.25%

Change in rate of compensation increase

0.25% 37887 2.547 40562
No change 40533 38100

0.25% 43505 2650 35749

Change in rate of pension increase

0.25% 7219 31677 68400
No change 40533 38100
0.25% 76.197 33.404 6.833

The discount rate used is the interest rate on high quality AA rated corporate bonds that have maturity approximating

the tenn of the related obligations In estimating the expected return on plan assets appropriate consideration is taken into account

of the historical performance for the major asset classes held or anticipated to be held by the applicable pension funds and of

current forecasts of future rates of return for those asset classes

Staples investment strategy for worldwide pension plan assets is to seek competitive rate of return relative to an

appropriate level of risk depending on the funded status of each plan The majority of the plans investment managers employ

active investment management strategies with the goal of outperforming the broad markets in which they invest Risk management

practices include diversification across asset classes and investment styles and periodic rebalancing toward asset allocation targets

portion of the currency risk related to investments in equity securities real estate and debt securities is hedged

The target allocation reflects risk/return profile Staples feels is appropriate relative to each plans liability structure and

return goals Staples conducts periodic asset-liability studies for the plan assets in order to model various potential asset allocations

in comparison to each plans forecasted liabilities and liquidity needs

Outside the United States asset allocation decisions are typically made by an independent board of trustees As in the

U.S investment objectives are designed to generate returns that will enable the plan to meet its future obligations In some countries

local regulations require adjustments in asset allocation typically leading to higher percentage in fixed income than would

otherwise be deployed Staples acts in consulting and governance role via its board representatives in reviewing investment

strategy with final decisions on asset allocation and investment managers made by local trustees

2010

Pension Plans

1.1%
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Equity securities

Debt eecuritles

Real estate

Other

U.S
Plans

38%

54%

8%

Actual

International

Plans

27%

57%

7%

Target

U.S International

Plans Plans

40% 25%

60% 61%

7%

7%

Total

26%

60%

7%

7%

February 2013

U.S Pension Plans International Plans

Quoted Quoted

Prices in Prices in

Active Significant
Active Significant

Markets for Other Markets for Other

Identical Observable Unobservable Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair

Market Fair Market

Ve evel Level Level Value Level Level Level

Debt securities 17.460 7742 9718 660775 534212 119576 6987

Real estate 2438 2438 82217 79021 3196

Cash 92 92 52.112 27970 24142

Other 57241 12523 22617 22101

Total 32273 22555 9718 Sl165558 944.986 169531 51041

STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
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The Companys pension plans actual and target asset allocations at February 2013 and January 28 2012 are as follows

February 22013

Total

27%

57%

7%

sh 4% 4%

5% 5%

Total 00% 1% ll%

January 28 2012

Actual Target

U.S International U.S International

Plans Plans Total Plans Plans Total

Asset allocation

Equity securities 36% 31% 31% 40% 39% 39%

Debt securities 57% 49% 49% 60% 47% 47%

Real estate 7% 8A 8% 8% 8%

Ch 5% 5%

Other 7% 7% 6% 6%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

No pension plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company during 2013

Information on Fair Value of Plan Assets

The fair values of the Companys pension plan assets at February 2013 and January 28 2012 by asset category are as

follows in thousands

C-36



STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

January 28 2012

U.S Pension Plans International Plans

Quoted Quoted

Prices in Prices in

Active Significant Active Significant

Markets for Other Markets for Other

Identical Observable Unobservable Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair

Market Fair Market
Asset Category alue Level Level Level Value Level Level Level

Equity securities

10731 10731 323373 295453 27918

Debt securities 16703 6765 9938 524357 517346 7011

Real estate i3 2206 2206 88871 80824 8047

Cash ---- 56980 56980

Other 71088 15026 56062

Total 29640 19702 9938 $1064669 965631 99038

This category includes investments in equity securities of large small and medium sized companies in the U.S and in

foreign companies including those in developing countries The funds are valued using the net asset value method in

which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund For securities with

unobservable inputs the value is based on audited statements for the underlying fund

This category includes investments in investment grade fixed income instrument U.S dollar denominated debt securities

of emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade The funds are

valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is issued

to value the fund For securities with unobservable inputs the value is based on discounted future cash flows

This category includes investments in mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities The funds are valued using the net

asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund

This category includes commodities of approximately $22.8 million and $49.9 million and non-separated investments

with insurance companies of approximately $12.4 million and $13.1 million for the years ended February 2013 and

January 28 2012 respectively Commodities are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the

market prices for the underlying investments is used the insurance contracts are based on discounted future cash flows

The change in the fair value for the pension assets valued using significant unobservable inputs Level was due to the

following

U.S Plans International Plans

Balance at January 28 2012 9938

Reclassification into Level 48419

Actual Return on Plan Assets

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 220 1414

Relating to assets sold during the period

Purchases sales and settlements

Translation adjustments 1208

Balance at February 2013 9718 51041
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The following table presents the expected benefit payments to pension plan participants for the next five years and the

aggregate for the following five years in thousands

Pension Plans

International

Plans

These payments have been estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure the plans proj ected benefit obligation

at February 2013 and include benefits attributable to estimated future compensation increases for the pension plans

The 2013 expected benefit payments to plan participants not covered by the respective pian assets that is underfunded

plans represent component of other long-term obligations in the consolidated balance sheet

The following table presents based on current assumptions the Companys expected contributions for the next five years

and the aggregate for the following five years in thousands

Pension Plans

International

PlansU.S Plans Total

2013 1343 13124 14467

2014 1313 13479 14792

2015 1605 13705 15310

2016 1761 14063 15824

2017 1738 14393 16131

2018-2022 4432 73992 78424

There are no expected benefit payments and contributions associated with the other post-retirement benefit plans

Employees401k Savings Plan and Other Defined Contribution Plans

Staples Employees 401k Savings Plan the 401k Plan is available to all United States based employees of Staples

who meet minimum age and length of service requirements Contributions by the Company to the 40 1k Plan are made in cash

and vest ratably over five year period The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan the SERF Plan which is similar in

many respects to the 40 1k Plan is available to certain Company executives and other highly compensated employees whose

contributions to the 40 1k Plan are limited and allows such individuals to supplement their contributions to the 40 1k Plan by

making pre-tax contributions to the SERF Plan Company contributions to the SERF Plan are based on similar matching formula

and vesting period

The expense associated with the Companys match for the Staples 40 1k Savings Plan and for contributions related to

certain foreign defined contribution plans for2Ol2 2011 and 2010 was $40.9 million $41.2 million and $35.6 million respectively

Expected Benefit Payments and Contributions

U.S Plans Total

2013 1762 54525 56287

2014 1843 55173 57016

2015 1915 55296 57211

2016 2021 54.970 56.991

2017 2180 54.220 56400

2018-2022 12331 264195 276.526
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Note Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Amounts included in accumUlated other comprehensive loss related to the Companys cash flow hedges and minimum

pension and other post-retirement liabilities are recorded net of the related income tax effects The following table details the

changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss for 2012 2011 and 2010 in thousands

Foreign Accumulated

Currency Other

Translation Derivative Deferred Benefit Comprehensive

Adjustment instruments Costs Income

Balance at January 30 2010 36825 5836 131.998 89.337

Foreign currency translation adjustment 333 333

Changes in fair value of derivatives net of taxes of $7.5

million 10.043 10043
Deferred pension and other post-retirement benefit costs

net of taxes of $6.1 million 501 501
Reclassification adjustments

Amortization of deferred benefit costs net of taxes of

$1.4 million 2615 2615

Balance at January 29 2011 37158 4207 129884 96933

Foreign currency translation adjustment 193.785 193785

Changes in fair value of derivatives net of taxes of $1.4

million 897 897
Deferred pension and other post-retirement benefit costs

net of taxes of $2.0 million 29.6 17 29.617

Reclassification adjustments

Realized gain on derivatives net of taxes of S40

thousand 608 608

Amortization of deferred benefit costs net of taxes of

$1.1 million 2097 2097

BalanceatJanuary282012 156.627 5712 157.404 319743

Foreign currency translation adjustment 35604 35604

Changes in fair value of derivatives net of taxes of$l.0

million 2022 2022

Deferred pension and other postretirement benefit costs

net of taxes of $36.4 million 109464 109464

Reclassification adjustments

Amortization of deferred benefit costs net of taxes of

$0.9 million 2808 2808

Balance at February 2013 12 1.023 3.690 264.060 388773

Note Stockholders Equity

Repurchase Program

In 2007 the Companys Board of Directors approved share repurchase program which went into effect in the second

quarter of 2007 the 2007 Repurchase Plan allowing for the repurchase of $1.5 billion of Staples common stock Under the

2007 Repurchase Plan total of$1 .28 billion was used to repurchase shares and $218.4 million was remaining when the plan was

terminated and replaced by new program in September 2011

On September 13 2011 the Company announced new repurchase program that had been approved by the Board of

Directors in September 2011 the 2011 Repurchase Plan Under the 2011 Repurchase Plan the Company is authorized to

repurchase up to $1.5 billion of common stock in both open market and privately negotiated transaôtions The program has no

expiration date and may be suspended or discontinued at any time Under the 2011 Repurchase Plan total of $631.7 million

was used to repurchase 47.4 million shares as of February 2013 As of February 2013 the Company has the authority to

repurchase $868.3 million of additional shares under 2011 Repurchase Plan
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Note Computation of Earnings per Common Share

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows in thousands except per

share data

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2013 January 28 2012 January 29 2011

Numerator

Loss income from continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc 160728 988220 892339

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 49978 3564 10391

Loss income attributed to Staples Inc 210706 984656 881948

Denominator

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 669479 694986 715596

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options restricted shares and performance shares 9033 10624

Weighted-average common shares outstanding assuming dilution 669479 704019 726220

Basic Earnings Per Conimon Share

Continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.24 1.42 1.24

Discontinued operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.07 0.01

Net loss income attributed to Staples Inc 0.31 1.42 1.23

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share

Continuing operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.24 1.40 1.22

Discontinued operations attributed to Staples Inc 0.07 0.01

Net loss income attributed to Staples Inc 0.31 1.40 1.21

For 2012 approximately 58.6 million potentially dilutive equity instruments were excluded from the calculation of diluted

earnings per share as the Company has recorded net loss for that period For 2011 and 2010 approximately 41.3 million and

13.3 million potentially dilutive equity instruments respectively were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per
share

as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive

Note Segment Reporting

Staples has three reportable segments NorthAmerican Stores Online North American Commercial and International

Operations During 2012 the Company realigned its organization by combining its North American retail stores with Staples.com

its North American online store to provide more integrated and consistent shopping experience for its small business and home

office customers who often shop across both channels The new North American Stores and Online segment sells office-related

products and services to customers in the United States and Canada Staples.com had previously been component of the former

North American Delivery segment
which is now referred to as North American Commercial The new North American Commercial

segment consists of the U.S and Canadian businesses that sell and deliver office products and services directly to businesses and

includes Staples Advantage and Quill.com The Companys segment information for 2011 and 2010 has been revised to reflect

this change in the Companys reportable segments

The International Operations segment consists of businesses that operate stores and that sell and deliver office products

and services directly to consumers and businesses in 23 countries in Europe Australia South America and Asia As discussed in

Note Discontinued Operations the Company has classified PSD which was formerly part of the International Operations

segment as discontinued operation Accordingly the segments measures for International Operations have been revised to

exclude PSD for all periods presented

Staples evaluates performance and allocates resources based on profit or loss from operations before goodwill and long

lived asset impairment charges integration and restructuring costs stock-based compensation interest and other expense other
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

non-recurring items and the impact of changes in accounting principles business unit income Intersegment sales and transfers

are recorded at Staples cost therefore there is no intercompany profit or loss recognized on these transactions The accounting

policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Staples North American Stores Online and North American Commercial segments are managed separately because

the way they sell and market products is different and the classes of customers they service are different The International Operations

are considered separate reportable segment because of the significant differences in the operating environment from the North

American operations

The following is summary of sales business unit income and significant accounts and balances by reportable segment

in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Sales

North American Stores Online 11.827906 1.741.998 11.541500

North American Commercial 8108402 7974.860 7837475

International Operations 4.444.202 4947.894 4756278

Total segment sales 24380510 24664752 24135253

Business Unit Income

North American Stores Online 987025 1021442 965089

North American Commercial 68001 660822 646462

International Operations 21146 103329 176442

Business unit income 1645890 1785593 1.787993

Depreciation Amortization

North American Stores Online 222381 225019 241266

North American commercial 123890 124692 133871

International Operations 141042 132345 123726

Total depreciation amortization 487313 482.056 498863

Capital Expenditures

North American Stores Online 197.025 193958 228583

North American Commercial 94 976 106989 95.492

lnternauonal Operations 57573 82707 84.814

Total capital expenditures 349.574 383.654 408889

The following is reconciliation of total business unit income to consolidated income before income taxes in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Total business unit income 645890 1.785593 1.787993

Equity compensation 117813 151822 146.879

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 810996

Integration and restructuring costs 207016 57.765

Interest and other expense net 244642 l69.127 216.812

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 265423 1464644 1366537
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The following table shows the Companys assets by reportable segment in thousands

Assets

North American Stores Online

beaànthe
International Operations

Total segment assets

European Printing Systems Division

Total consolidated assets

February 2013 January 28 2012 January 29 2011

4240597 4037508 3858095

42424 40I2G7 4O6974

3744343 5220421 5527877

l21O9$86 13259136 13692946

170819 171486 218721

122OOO5 i343U622 l91l667

The following table shows the Companys sales by each major category as percentage of total sales for the periods indicated

Off ue supplies

Services

Oflcemachmnesind tulated products

Computers and related products

OffIce furniture

February 2013

43S%

6.7%

291
14.1%

100.0%

Fiscal Year Ended

January 28 2012

44.6%

5.7%

29.4%

15.2%

January 29 2011

44O%

5.3%

299%

15.6%

Geographic Information

SaIes

United States

International

Totat censiidaWd ss

Loflg4fved Assets

United States

Cana4a

International

Tta1 conglidaled lotig.hved asseta

Note Subsequent Events

2012 2011 2010

16783592 16643255 16462822

3152116 307363 2916153

4444202 4947894 4756278

243$O51 2464752 2413253

February 2013 January 28 2012 January 29 2011

1248732 1293378 1318521

2264J7 232071 238626

488026 554912 590624

196317 2080361 2147771

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date the financial statements were issued and no events or transactions

have occurred that require disclosure or adjustment to these consolidated financial statements

5.1% 52%

100.0% 100.0%
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note Quarter Summary Unaudited

Beginning in the third quarter of2O 12 PSDs results of operations are being reported in Loss from discontinued operations

net of income taxes in the Companys consolidated statement of income The Companys results of operations for prior periods

have been revised to conform to this presentation The following table summarizes quarterly information for 2012 and 2011 in

thousands except for per share data

In thousands except per share amounts

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Qnarter Quarter 24
Fiscal Year Ended February 2013

Sales 6025421 5433969 6353140 6567980

Gross profit 1.600583 1.419.415 1751854 1719.409

Income loss from cootinuing

opcrations 192.873 125.142 568.693 89.950

Loss from discontinued operations net

of income taxes 5814l 4713 427.559 11892

Income loss attributed to Staples Inc 187059 120429 596.252 78058

Basic earnings per common share

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.28 0.19 0.85 0.14

Discontinued operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.28 0.19 0.85

Income loss attributed to Staples

0.27 0.18 0.89 0.12Inc

0.14
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STAPLES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Fiseal Year En4d Jgnuarr 20i2

Sales

C1ros profit

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter3 Quarter Quarter

6086625 5722798 6481023 6374306

16235G 1526634 I8292 1718$

Consolidated nt income 19762 116300 326330 2352l

4moul1 tfribud tt $tapt ttcc

201811 178977 323770 283662

Loss income from discontimied

operations net of income taxes 3566 c2539l 2610 69

income attributed to Staples Inc 198245 176.438 326.380 283.593

Basic earnings per common share

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc 0.29 0.25 0.47 0.41

Results of operations for this period include an $811.0 million impairment of goodwill and long-lived asset charge see

Note Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets $30.4 million restructuring charge see Note Restructuring Charges

and $15.6 million of accelerated tradename amortization related to rebranding the Companys business in Australia

Results of operations for this period include $176.6 million restructuring charge see Note Restructuring Charges

$4.5 million of accelerated tradename amortization related to rebranding the Companys business in Australia $57.0

million loss on early extinguishment of debt and $26.2 million charge related to the termination of the Companys joint

venture arrangement in India

Results of operation for this period include $20.8 million tax benefit related to refund due to Corporate Express from

the Italian government that was previously deemed uncollectible which was recorded as discrete item

The Companys fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 includes 14 weeks of operating results while all other quarterly periods

presented include 13 weeks

The sum of the quarterly earnings per common share may not tie to the year-to-date earnings per common share due to

rounding

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations attributed to

Staples Inc

Ittme attribittetl to$tples Inc

Dthited earnings per common sham 5j

Continuing operations attributed to

Staples Inc

0.01
_______________ _______________ _______________

02 025 047 041

Income attributed to Staples Inc 0.28 0.25 0.47 0.41
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Item 15a2

Staples Inc

SCHEDULE IlVALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Valuation and qualifying account information related to operations is as follows in thousands

Accounts Receivable Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Amount for 2012 includes $14.7 million relating to the Companys European Printing Systems Division business which was

reclassified to Current assets of discontinued operations in 2012

Balance at

Beginning of

Period

Additions Charged

to Expense

Deductions

Write-offs Payments

and Other

Adjustments

Fiscal year ended

January 29 2011 63024 20679 28355 55.348

January 28 2012 55348 23622 33008 45962

February 2013 45.962 34167 46584 33545

Balance at End

of Period
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Description

1.1 Underwriting Agreement dated as of January 2013 Filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the Companys Form 8-K
filed on January 2013

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated as of September 29 2008 Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 2008

Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated June 2012 Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on June 2012

3.3 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company dated June 2012 Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on June 2012

4.1 Indenture dated January 15 2009 for the 9.75% Senior Notes due 2014 by and among the Company
and HSBC Bank USA National Association Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on

January21 2009

4.2 Form of 9.75% Senior Note due 2014 Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on

January 21 2009

43 Form of 2.750% Senior Note due 2018 Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January
13 2013

44A Form of 4.375% Senior Note due 2023 Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January
13 2013

10.1 Credit Agreement dated November 2010 by and among Staples Inc the lenders named therein Bank
of America N.A as Administrative Agent Barclays Capital and HSBC Bank USA National

Association as Co-Syndication Agents and Wells Fargo Bank National Association and JPMorgan
Chase Bank N.A as Co-Documentation Agents with Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated Barclays Capital and HSBC Securities USA Inc having acted as joint lead arrangers and

joint bookrunners including schedules and exhibits Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K
filed on November 2010

10.2 Amended and Restated Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of August 2008 among the

Company and Banc of America Securities LLC Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form lO-Qfor
the quarter ended August 2008

10.3 Amended and Restated Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of August 2008 among the

Company and Lehman Brothers Inc Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form lO-Q for the quarter

ended August 2008

10.4 Letter dated as of September 29 2008 assigning Lehman Brothers Inc interests to Barclays Capital Inc
for the Amended and Restated Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of August 2008 among
the Company and Lehman Brothers Inc Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form l0-Q for the

quarter ended November 2008

10.5s Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of September 19 2008 among the Company JP Morgan
Securities Inc Filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November
2008

Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys
Form lO-Q for the quarter ended October 30 2010

l0.7/ Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement Initial Grant under the Amended
and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended January 31 2009

l0.8t Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated
2004 Stock Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form lO-Q for the quarter ended April

30 2011
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Exhibit No Description

10.8 Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated

2004 Stock Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April

30 2011

10.9 Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock

Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30 2011

10 10w Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Amended and

Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form l0-Q for the quarter

ended April 30 2011

10.11 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 2010

10 12 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive

Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 2010

10 l3 Form of Special Performance Share Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock

Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form lO-Q for the quarter ended July 31 2010

10 l4 Form of Performance Share Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive

Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 10 2009

10.1 5A Amended and Restated 1992 Equity Incentive Plan as amended Filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Companys

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2008

10 16 Amended and Restated 1990 Director Stock Option Plan as amended Filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the

Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2008

l0.l7 1997 United Kingdom Company Share Option Scheme Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-

for the fiscal year ended January 31 1998

l0.l8 1997 UK Savings Related Share Option Scheme Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended February 2003

10 l9 Amended and Restated 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on June 10 2009

l0.20\ Amended and Restated International Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended Filed as Exhibit 10.2

to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 10 2009

l0.21 2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended January 28 2012

0.22/s Non-Management Director Compensation Summary Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended April 30 2011

10.23 Form of Severance Benefits Agreement signed by executive officers of the Company filed herewith

0.24 Amended and Restated Long Term Cash Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-

filed on June 2012

l0.25 Amended and Restated Executive Officer Incentive Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-

filed on June 2012

l0.26A 2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June

2012

10.27 Form of Non-Compete and Non-Solicitation Agreement

10.28 Form of Proprietary and Confidential Information Agreement

l0.29t Form of Indemnification Agreement signed by executive officers and directors of the Company Filed as

Exhibit 10.34 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 2009

l0.30 Form of Outside Directorship Agreement Filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended January 28 2012

10.31 Offer Letter dated as of July 30 2003 by and between the Company and Michael Miles Filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form l0-Q for the quarter ended on November 2003
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1032A Second Amended and Restated Severance Benefits Agreement dated March 10 2006 by and between

the Company and Ronald Sargent Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended April 29 2006

10.33/k Amendment dated December 22 2008 to Second Amended and Restated Severance Benefits

Agreement dated March 13 2006 by and between the Company and Ronald Sargent Filed as

Exhibit 10.37 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 2009

10.34 Long Term Care Insurance Plan Summary Filed as Exhibit 10.39 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended January 29 2011

10.35 Survivor Benefit Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended on

January 29 2005

l0.36 Executive Life Insurance Plans Summary of Provisions Filed as Exhibit 10.42 to the Companys Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 28 2012

10.37 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed on June 11 2010

l0.38 Policy on Personal Use of Corporate Aircraft Filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended January 29 2005

0.39 Senior Executive Long Term Disability Supplemental Coverage Reimbursement Policy Filed as Exhibit

10.45 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 28 2012

l0.40 Tax Services Reimbursement Filed as Exhibit 10.45 to the Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 29 2011

10.41 Memorandum of Understanding dated July 2012 by and between the Company and John Mahoney
Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 28 2012

l0.42 Separation Letter Agreement dated January 18 2013 by and between the Company and Michael Miles

filed herewith

10.43 Transition Agreement dated January 2013 by and between the Company and Michael Miles filed

herewith

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

14 Code of Ethics Filed as Exhibit 14.1 to the Companys 10-K for the fiscal year ended on January 29
2011

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Principal Executive Officer-Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Principal Financial Officer-Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Principal Executive Officer-Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Principal Financial Officer-Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 .1NS XBRL Instance Document

l01.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this annual report

pursuant to Item 15b of Form 10-K

Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuant to grant of confidential treatment

An exhibit previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and incorporated herein by reference

Unless otherwise indicated such exhibit was filed under Commission File Number 0-17586

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith
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Exhibit 31.1

Principal Executive Officer Certification

Ronald Sargent certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Staples Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5e and l5d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and 15d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedurs or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013 Is Ronald Sargent

Ronald Sargent

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Principal Financial Officer Certification

Christine Komola certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Staples Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of he registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15e and 5d-1 5e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material mfonnation relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control overfinancial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013 Is Christine Komola

Christine Komola

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Principal Executive Officer Certification

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Staples Inc the Company for the period ended February

2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof the Report the undersigned Ronald

Sargent Chief Executive Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 that

the Report fuiiy complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results

of operations of the Company

Dated March 2013 Is Ronald Sargent

Ronald Sargent

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

Principal Financial Officer Certification

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Staples Inc the Company for the period ended February

2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof the Report the undersigned Christine

Komola Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results

of operations of the Company

Dated March 2013 Is Christine Komola

Christine Komola

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer
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Corporate Information

Corporate Offices

Staples Inc

500 Staples Drive

Framingham MA 01702

Telephone 508-253-5000

Internet address staples.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare is the Transfer Agent and

Registrar for the Staples Inc common

stock and maintains stockholder accounting

records Please contact the Transfer Agent

directly concerning changes in address

name or ownership lost certificates and

consolidation of multiple accounts When

corresponding with the Transfer Agent

stockholders should reference the exact

names in which the Staples stock is

registered as well as the certificate number

Computershare

P.O Box 43006

Providence RI 02940-3006

Domestic Shareowners 888-875-9002

Foreign Shareowners 201-680-6578

Domestic Shareowners 800-231-5469

Foreign Shareowners 201-680-6610

computershare.com

Financial Information

To request financial documents such

as this Annual Report which contains

Staples Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended February 2013 as filed

with the Securities and Exchange

Commission please visit Staples

Web site staples.com call our toll-free

investor hotline at 800-INV-SPL1

800-468-7751 or send written

request to the attention of Investor

Relations at Staples coroorate address

Investor Relations

Investor inquiries may be directed to

Christopher Powers

Director Investor Relations

Telephone 800-468-7751

Email investor@staples.com

General Information

Members of the media or others seeking

general information about Staples should

contact the Corporate Communications

Department Telephone 508-253-8530

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

Ernst Young LLP

200 Clarendon Street

Boston MA 02116

Dividend

On March 2013 Staples Inc

announced that its Board of Directors

had declared quarterly cash dividend

on Staples Inc common stock of $0.12

per share an increase of nine percent

over the previous quarterly cash dividend

of $0.11 per share On an annualized

basis the quarterly dividend is equal

to $0.48 per share compared to the

$0.44 per share that the Company

paid in 2012 The first quarter 2013

cash dividend was paid on April 18

2013 to shareholders of record on

March 29 2013

Direct Stock Purchase Plan

and Dividend Reinvestment

Purchase of Staples Inc common

stock can be made through Direct

Stock Purchase Plan administered by

Computershare Dividends on Staples

Inc common stock may be automatically

invested in additional shares Contact

Computershare at 888-875-9002 for

more information

Board of Directors

Basil Anderson

Retired Vice Chairman

Staples Inc

Arthur Blank

Owner and Chief Executive Officer

Atlanta Falcons and

Lead Director Staples Inc

Drew Faust

President

Harvard University

Justin King

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Operating Board

Sainsbury plc

Carol Meyrowitz

Chief Executive Officer

The TJX Companies Inc

Rowland Moriarty

Chairman of the Board

CRA International Inc

Robert Nakasone

Chief Executive Officer

NAK Enterprises L.L.C

Ronald Sargent

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Staples Inc

Elizabeth Smith

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Bloomin Brands Inc

Robert Sulentic

President and Chief Executive Officer

CE Richard Ellis Group Inc

Vijay Vishwanath

Partner

Bain Company

Paul Walsh

Former Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
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